
           

City of Lubbock, Texas
Regular City Council Meeting

Tuesday, June 8, 2021
Daniel M. Pope, Mayor
Steve Massengale, Mayor Pro Tem, District 4
Juan A. Chadis, Councilman, District 1
Shelia Patterson Harris, Councilwoman, District 2
Jeff Griffith, Councilman, District 3
Randy Christian, Councilman, District 5
Latrelle Joy, Councilwoman, District 6

    W. Jarrett Atkinson, City Manager
Chad Weaver, City Attorney

Rebecca Garza, City Secretary

http://www.mylubbock.us
Internet/Video Link: https://zoom.us/j/97566060796 or

Teleconference Phone #s: U.S.: +1-346-248-7799; +1-312-626-6799; +1-646-558-8656; +1-669-900-9128
+1-253-215-8782; +1-301-715-8592; Enter ID#: 975 6606 0796

City Council Chambers, Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas

City of Lubbock City Council Meetings are available to all persons regardless of disability. If you require special assistance,
please contact the City Secretary's Office at 775-2061 or write to Post Office Box 2000, Lubbock, Texas 79457 at least 48 hours
in advance of the meeting. 

Note: On occasion the City Council may consider agenda items out of order.

Pursuant to the Executive Orders of Governor Abbott, and other authority provided by the Texas Attorney General, the City
Council will convene in-person and via video and/or teleconference. If the Executive Orders of Governor Abbott are amended
and prohibit the use of video and/or teleconference access to the meeting, the meeting will be held in-person only.

 
1:00 p.m. - City Council convenes in City Council Chambers in Work Session regarding items for
presentation and discussion on such issues that may require in-depth consideration by the City
Council. No action will be taken by the City Council in Work Session.
           
1. Citizen Comments - According to Lubbock City Council Rules, any citizen wishing to

appear in person before the meeting of the City Council, regarding Item 2.2 on the
Work Session Agenda, shall complete the sign-up form provided at the meeting, no
later than 1:00 p.m.  If a citizen is attending the meeting by video or teleconference,
they may submit a citizen comment by email at citizencomments@mylubbock.us, no
later than 11:00 a.m., on June 8, 2021. Submitted comments must include name and
address. Each comment will be read aloud for a period of time not to exceed three
minutes pursuant to City Council Rules. Citizen Comments is an opportunity for
citizens to make comments and express a position on agenda items. Any comment
received that is in the nature of asking a question will be referred to an appropriate
member of the City staff for a response.

  

 

2. Hear and discuss presentations regarding the following and provide guidance to staff as
appropriate.

  

 

2. 1. Charter Review Committee Presentation and Recommendations   

 



2. 2. 2021 IRONMAN 70.3 Lubbock Triathlon   

 

2. 3. Parks and Recreation Operations Update   

 

At the completion of the Work Session, City Council recesses into Executive Session.
 

3. Executive Session   

 

3. 1. Hold an executive session in accordance with Texas Government Code, Section 551.071,
with legal counsel for advice about pending or contemplated litigation or settlement
agreement and on matters in which the duty of the attorney under the Texas Disciplinary
Rules of Professional Conduct conflicts with Chapter 551.

  

 

3. 1. 1. Planned Parenthood of Greater Texas Surgical Health Services, et al v. City of
Lubbock, Texas, Case No.5:21-cv-114 in the United States District Court for the
Northern District of Texas, Lubbock Division

  

 

3. 2. Hold an executive session in accordance with the Texas Government Code, Section
551.074, to discuss personnel matters, the appointment, employment, evaluation or
reassignment of the following:

  

 

3. 2. 1. City Attorney   

 

3. 2. 2. City Manager   

 

3. 2. 3. City Secretary   

 

3. 3. Hold an executive session in accordance with Texas Government Code 551.074, to discuss
personnel matters, regarding the duties, responsibilities, and/or appointments to the Building
Board of Appeals, Canadian River Municipal Water Authority, Lubbock Reese
Redevelopment Authority Board of Directors, Permit and License Appeal Board, and the
Planning and Zoning Commission.

 

3. 4. Hold an executive session in accordance with Texas Government Code, Section 551.087,
to discuss or deliberate regarding commercial or financial information that the
governmental body has received from a business prospect that the governmental body
seeks to locate, stay, or expand in or near the territory of the governmental body and with
which the governmental body is conducting economic development negotiations; and to
deliberate the offer of a financial or other incentive to a business prospect described herein
above.

  

 

3. 4. 1. Project Basil   

 

Adjourn from Executive Session
 



 

4:30 p.m. - City Council reconvenes in Open Session in City Council Chambers.
 

4. Ceremonial Items   

 

4. 1. Invocation   

 

4. 2. Pledges of Allegiance   

 

Call to Order
 

5. Citizen Comments - According to Lubbock City Council Rules, any citizen wishing to
appear in-person before a regular meeting of the City Council, regarding any matter
posted on the City Council Agenda below, shall complete the sign-up form provided
at the meeting, no later than 5:00 p.m. on June 8, 2021.  If a citizen is attending the
meeting by video or teleconference, they may submit a citizen comment by email at 
citizencomments@mylubbock.us, no later than 2:00 p.m. on June 8, 2021. Submitted
comments must include name and address.  Each comment will be read aloud for a
period of time not to exceed three minutes pursuant to City Council Rules.  Citizen
Comments is an opportunity for citizens to make comments and express a position on
agenda items.  Any comment received that is in the nature of asking a question will be
referred to an appropriate member of the City staff for a response.

  

 

6. Minutes   

 

6. 1. April 20, 2021 Special City Council Meeting - Electric Utility Board
May 11, 2021 Regular City Council Meeting 

 

7. Consent Agenda - Items considered to be routine are enacted by one motion without
separate discussion. If the City Council desires to discuss an item, the item is removed
from the Consent Agenda and considered separately. 

  

 

7. 1. Budget Ordinance Amendment 2nd Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance No.
2021-O0057, Amendment 25, amending the FY 2020-21 Budget for municipal purposes
respecting the General Fund to amend full-time equivalent (FTE) positions in Animal
Services, providing for filing; and providing for a savings clause.

 

7. 2. Budget Ordinance Amendment 2nd Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance No.
2021-O0058, Amendment 26, amending the FY 2020-21 Budget for municipal purposes
respecting the Grant Fund to accept and appropriate funding from the U.S. Department of
Treasury.

 

7. 3. Budget Ordinance Amendment 2nd Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance No.



7. 3. Budget Ordinance Amendment 2nd Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance No.
2021-O0059, Amendment 27, amending the FY 2020-21 Budget for municipal purposes
respecting the Operating Budget for Lubbock Economic Development Alliance and Market
Lubbock, Inc. - Visitors Bureau.

 

7. 4. Budget Ordinance Amendment 1st Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance
Amendment 30, amending the FY 2020-21 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the
Airport Capital Fund to appropriate additional funding for the Capital Improvement Project
8648 Airport Pavement Maintenance.

 

7. 5. Budget Ordinance Amendment 1st Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance
Amendment 31, amending the FY 2020-21 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the
Water/Wastewater Operating and Capital Funds to appropriate additional funding for Capital
Improvement Project (CIP) 92455 Water Meter Replacements.

 

7. 6. Budget Ordinance Amendment 1st Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance
Amendment 32, amending the FY 2020-21 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the
General Fund Operating, General Fund Capital, and Information Technology Operating Fund
to appropriate additional funding for Capital Improvement Project 8646 Public Safety CAD,
Mobile, and RMS Software.

 

7. 7. Budget Ordinance Amendment 1st Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance
Amendment 33, amending the FY 2020-21 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the
Grant Fund to accept and appropriate funding from the Texas Department of State Health
Services.

 

7. 8. Budget Ordinance Amendment 1st Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance
Amendment 34, amending the FY 2020-21 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the
Water/Wastewater Capital Fund to appropriate additional funding for Capital Improvement
Project 92587 Loop 88 Sewer Line Relocation.

 

7. 9. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Right-of-Way: Consider Ordinance No. 2021-O0061, abandoning
and closing a portion of a 15-foot alley located in Block 1, Hewett Addition, Lubbock County,
Texas.

 

7. 10. Ordinance 1st Reading - Right-of-Way: Consider an ordinance abandoning and closing a
portion of a Drainage Easement located in Section 7, Block JS, Lot 26, Spanish Bit Court
Addition, Lubbock County, Texas.

 

7. 11. Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute an
Easement and Right-of-Way by and between the City of Lubbock and Oncor Electric Delivery
Company, LLC ("Oncor"), to be utilized for electric power and communication lines and
associated equipment over, under, along, to, from, and through land more particularly
described in Exhibits A and B to the Easement and Right-of-Way, and including certain areas
along the following transmission lines across the City's Hancock Land Application Site.

 

7. 12. Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute a Street



7. 12. Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute a Street
Use License by and between the City of Lubbock and the Lubbock Cooper Independent
School District for a 3-foot wide corridor of the right-of-way of University Avenue between
137th Street and 146th Street, Lubbock, Texas.

 

7. 13. Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute a Street
Use License by and between the City of Lubbock and 2 Sparks and Company LLC, and
Burklee Hill Vineyards, LLC, for a portion of street right-of-way at 1109 Broadway.

 

7. 14. Resolution - Engineering: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Contract
15826, with Lone Star Dirt & Paving, Ltd., for Unpaved Roads Improvements Phase 3, for the
paving of various roadways throughout the City of Lubbock.

 

7. 15. Resolution - Public Works: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Contract
15875, with MH Civil Constructors, Inc., for the construction of a brick paving project at the
intersection of 13th Street and Texas Avenue.

 

7. 16. Resolution - Water Utilities: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute
Amendment No. 1 to Professional Services Agreement 15597, by and between the City of
Lubbock and HDR Engineering, Inc., to perform dam inspection and evaluation services.

 

7. 17. Resolution - Public Transit Services: Consider a resolution ratifying the act of the City
Manager in executing, on behalf of the City of Lubbock, a Regional Transit District
Transportation Services Agreement and an Amendment thereto with SafeRide, Inc., for
Medical Transportation Services by Citibus.

 

7. 18. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Lubbock Power & Light: Consider Ordinance No. 2021-O0062,
amending Section 22.02.103 of Title I, Chapter 22, Article 22.02, Division 3, of the Lubbock
Code of Ordinances, to permit Lubbock Power & Light to update the fee structure for
recovery of the cost of providing underground electric distribution service as part of the
annual review and approval of the LP&L Electric Rate/Tariff Schedule.

 

7. 19. Resolution - City Manager: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute an
agreement by and between the City of Lubbock and the State of Texas acting through the
Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT), for the temporary closure of State
right-of-way, the Marsha Sharp Freeway, during the 2021 IRONMAN 70.3 Lubbock Triathlon.

 

7. 20. Resolution - City Manager: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor, on behalf of the
City of Lubbock, to execute an agreement for professional legal services with Hacker
Stephens LLP, and any amendments thereto, and ratifying the acts of the City Manager in
executing an agreement for legal services with Hacker Stephens LLP.

 

7. 21. Resolution - City Manager: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute the
Third Amendment to the Memorandum of Understanding with Palisade Pipeline, LLC, to
define roles and responsibilities of the City of Lubbock and Palisade Pipeline, LLC.

 



8. Regular Agenda   

 

8. 1. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning: Consider Ordinance No. 2021-O0063, for Zone Case
1788-F, a request of McDougal Realtors for Lubbock Prosperity, L.P., for a zone change from
General Retail District (C-3) to General Retail District (C-3) Specific Use for a Blood Plasma
Center, at 4841 50th Street, located south of 50th Street and east of Wayne Avenue,
Greenbrier Addition, Lot H. 

 

8. 2. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning: Consider Ordinance No. 2021-O0064, for Zone Case
2909-E, a request of Callaway Architecture for S&S Commercial Properties, LTD, for a zone
change from Interstate Highway Commercial District (IHC) to Apartment-Medical District
(AM) at 6401 Spur 327, located south of Spur 327 and east of Milwaukee Avenue, on 2.289
acres of unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 36. 

 

8. 3. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning: Consider Ordinance No. 2021-O0065, for Zone Case
2984-M, a request of Centerline Engineering & Consulting, LLC, for 34th & Upland
Affordable Storage, Inc. and 87th Street Partners, LLC, for a zone change from Interstate
Highway Commercial (IHC) and General Retail District (C-3) to (C-3) with a Specific Use for
a Self-Storage Facility and Two-Family District (R-2), at 7115 and 7105 34th Street, located
south of 34th Street and east of Upland Avenue, on 19.74 acres of unplatted land out of Block
AK, Section 38. 

 

8. 4. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning: Consider Ordinance No. 2021-O0066, for Zone Case
2985-C, a request of Seventeen Services, LLC for Edge Construction, for a zone change from
Garden Office (GO) to Apartment Medical (AM) at 5614 114th Street, located east of Elkhart
Avenue and north of 114th Street, 114th & Elkhart Office Park Addition, Tract A. 

 

8. 5. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning: Consider Ordinance No. 2021-O0067, for Zone Case
3050-G, a request of AMD Engineering, LLC for Lubbock Land Investments IV, LP, for a
zone change from Single Family District (R-1) Specific Use to Two-Family District (R-2),
generally located north of 123rd Street and west of Memphis Avenue, on 4.50 acres of
unplatted land out of Block E2, Section 22. 

 

8. 6. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning: Consider Ordinance No. 2021-O0068, for Zone Case
3431, a request of Centerline Engineering & Consulting, LLC for 146th Street & Slide Road,
Inc., for a zone change from Transition (T) to General Retail District (C-3) with a Specific Use
for Self-Storage Facilities, at 14505 Slide Road, located east of Slide Road and north of 146th
Street, on 17.320 acres of unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 5. 

 

8. 7. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning: Consider Ordinance No. 2021-O0069, for Zone Case
3433, a request of AMD Engineering, LLC for Baxter Trusts, for a zone change from
Transition (T) to Restricted Local Retail District (C-2A), generally located south of 114th
Street and east of Memphis Avenue, on 7.84 acres of unplatted land out of Block E2, Section
22. 

 

8. 8. Ordinance 1st Reading - Planning: Consider a request for Zone Case 3432, a request of



8. 8. Ordinance 1st Reading - Planning: Consider a request for Zone Case 3432, a request of
Dwain Lane for Carolyn Lane Musgrave, for a zone change from Commercial District (C-4)
and Local Retail District (C-2) to (C-4) with a Specific Use for a Dance Hall, at 1801 19th
Street, and 1904 and 1906 Avenue R, located south of 19th Street and west of Avenue R, Lane
Addition, Block 1, Lots 1, 2, 5, and 6, and consider an ordinance.

 



   
Regular City Council Meeting 3. 3.        
Meeting Date: 06/08/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Hold an executive session in accordance with Texas Government Code 551.074, to discuss personnel
matters, regarding the duties, responsibilities, and/or appointments to the Building Board of Appeals,
Canadian River Municipal Water Authority, Lubbock Reese Redevelopment Authority Board of
Directors, Permit and License Appeal Board, and the Planning and Zoning Commission.

Item Summary

Fiscal Impact

Staff/Board Recommending

Attachments
No file(s) attached.



   
Regular City Council Meeting 6. 1.        
Meeting Date: 06/08/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
April 20, 2021 Special City Council Meeting - Electric Utility Board
May 11, 2021 Regular City Council Meeting 

Item Summary
April 20, 2021 Special City Council Meeting - Electric Utility Board
May 11, 2021 Regular City Council Meeting 

Fiscal Impact
None 

Staff/Board Recommending
Rebecca Garza, City Secretary 

Attachments
4.20.2021 S EUB 
5.11.2021 



CITY OF LUBBOCK
SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING

April 20, 2021
11:00 A.M.

The City Council of the City of Lubbock, Texas met in special session on the 20th of April, 2021, in City
Council Chambers, Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas, and via video conference and
teleconference at 11:00 a.m.

11:17 A.M. CITY COUNCIL CONVENED
City Council Chambers, Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K,
Lubbock, Texas, and via video conference and teleconference

Present:  Mayor Daniel M. Pope; Mayor Pro Tem Steve Massengale; Council Member Juan A. Chadis;
Council Member Latrelle Joy; City Manager W. Jarrett Atkinson; City Secretary Rebecca Garza;
City Attorney Chad Weaver 

Absent:  Council Member Randy Christian; Council Member Jeff Griffith; Council Member Shelia
Patterson Harris 

     Council Member Juan A. Chadis attended via video conference.

This was a meeting of the Electric Utility Board. A quorum of Council Members attended and participated in
discussions during the meeting in which the board considered the following topics as shown below.

Note:      The Electric Utility Board addressed agenda items in the following order: 
Executive Session
No quorum, of the City Council, was present for all other items.

1. PUBLIC COMMENT

1. 1. This period, of up to thirty minutes, is dedicated to public comment. Each member of the public will
have three minutes to speak. Any member of the public that requires the assistance of a translator
will have six minutes to speak. Comments must be limited to only those items posted on the Electric
Utility Board agenda. Any member of the public wishing to speak shall sign up on the public
comment sheet on the day of the Electric Utility Board Meeting. The Electric Utility Board shall
follow the order of persons wishing to speak as listed on the sign-up sheet. If everyone who signed
up to speak has been given an opportunity to speak and the thirty minutes designated for public
comment has not been exhausted, the Electric Utility Board may, at its discretion, open the floor to
anyone else wishing to address the Electric Utility Board, subject to all the same procedures and
guidelines.

*This item was deleted.

1. 2. Alternatively, any member of the public wishing to address the Electric Utility Board, regarding any



1. 2. Alternatively, any member of the public wishing to address the Electric Utility Board, regarding any
matter posted on the Electric Utility Board Agenda, may submit a public comment by email at
lplcitizencomments@mylubbock.us beginning at the time this agenda is publicly posted and no later
than 9:00 a.m. on April 20, 2021. Each comment will be read aloud for a period of time not to
exceed three minutes, in accordance with the practices and procedures of the Electric Utility Board.

*This item was deleted.
 
2. EXECUTIVE SESSION

This meeting was called into a closed session at 11:17 a.m. under the provisions of Section 551,
Texas Government Code. The meeting was called back into a public session at 1:35 p.m.

 
2. 1. Hold an executive session in accordance with V.T.C.A. Government Code § 551.086, to discuss and

deliberate, on the following competitive matters of Lubbock Power & Light, reasonably related to
the following categories:

 
2. 1. 1. Generation unit specific and portfolio fixed and variable costs, including forecasts of those

costs, capital improvement plans for generation units, and generation unit operating
characteristics and outage scheduling.

 
2. 1. 1. 1. Discuss and deliberate generation unit matters.
 
2. 1. 2. Bidding and pricing information for purchased power, generation and fuel, and Electric

Reliability Council of Texas bids, prices, offers, and related services and strategies.
 
2. 1. 2. 1. Discuss and deliberate issues regarding Electric Reliability Council of Texas prices and

related services and strategies.
 
2. 1. 3. Effective fuel and purchased power agreements and fuel transportation arrangements and

contracts.
 
2. 1. 3. 1. Discuss and deliberate purchased power matters.
 
2. 1. 4. Risk management information, contracts, and strategies, including fuel hedging and storage.
 
2. 1. 4. 1. Discuss and deliberate risk management strategies.
 
2. 1. 5. Plans, studies, proposals, and analyses for system improvements, additions, or sales (other than

transmission and distribution system improvements inside the service area for which the public
power utility is the sole certificated retail provider).

 
2. 1. 5. 1. Resolution No. EUB 2021-R0028 regarding the construction of electric transmission

infrastructure, and real estate acquisitions regarding same, ordered integrated into ERCOT.

Motion by Gwen Stafford, seconded by Edwin Schulz, to approve Resolution No. EUB
2021-R0028.

Special City Council Meeting 
April 20, 2021 Page 2 of 6

mailto:lplcitizencomments@mylubbock.us


Vote: 9-0 Motion carried by the Board.
 
2. 1. 5. 2. Discuss and deliberate plans, studies, proposals, and analyses for system improvements,

additions, or sales.
 
2. 1. 6. Customer billing, contract, and usage information, electric power pricing information, system load

characteristics, and electric power marketing analyses and strategies.
 
2. 2. Hold an executive session in accordance with V.T.C.A. Government Code § 551.071, seeking the

advice of its legal counsel about pending or contemplated litigation or settlement offers and hold a
consultation with the attorney on matters in which the duty of the attorney to the Electric Utility
Board under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct of the State Bar of Texas
conflicts with Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code: (i) legal advice and counsel regarding
the Application of the City of Lubbock, acting by and through Lubbock Power & Light for authority
to establish initial wholesale transmission rates and tariffs before the Public Utility Commission of
Texas and the State Office of Administrative Hearings, PUC Docket No. 51100, SOAH Docket
473-21-0043; (ii) legal issues regarding contract(s) herein listed on the agenda; (iii) real property
processes and acquisitions; (iv) power purchase agreements; (v) legal issues regarding customer
choice and Texas Utilities Code, Chapter 40; (vi) Federal Energy Regulatory Commission, Docket
Nos. ER16-1341, EL17-2, and EL18-9, related to SPP attachment Z2; (vii) legal advice and counsel
regarding matters identified in Section 2.1-2.1.6 of this Agenda; (viii) legal advice and counsel
regarding potential statutory changes regarding ERCOT and/or electric utility regulation; (ix) claim
regarding alleged property damage occurring on or about May 30, 2019; and (x) claims related to
alleged property damage on or about February 13-19, 2021.

 
2. 3. Hold an executive session in accordance with V.T.C.A. Government Code § 551.072, to deliberate

the purchase, exchange, lease, and value of real property, regarding Lubbock Power & Light
transmission and distribution easements (Electric Utility Easements).

 
2. 4. Hold an executive session in accordance with V.T.C.A. Government Code § 551.074 to deliberate

the appointment, employment, evaluation, reassignment, and duties of a public officer or employee
(Director of Electric Utilities and General Counsel).

 
1:00 p.m. – Approximately - Following completion of the Executive Session, the Electric Utility Board will
reconvene in open session to discuss the items listed below. It is anticipated that the open session will begin at 
1:00 p.m. However, this is an approximation and the Board may begin the open session earlier or later
depending on when the Executive Session is complete.
 
 
3. REGULAR SESSION
 
3. 1. The Board will approve the minutes from the Regular Electric Utility Board Meeting of March 30,

2021.

*This item was deleted.
 
3. 2. Presentation and discussion of the update/report by the Director of Electric Utilities, or his designee,

Special City Council Meeting 
April 20, 2021 Page 3 of 6



3. 2. Presentation and discussion of the update/report by the Director of Electric Utilities, or his designee,
regarding customer service, business center practices, procedures and policies, customer concerns
and complaints, billing forms and procedures, status of transmission and distribution projects,
mutual aid, weather events, outage, and restoration efforts, staffing levels, regulatory matters, and
operational performance metrics.

*This item was deleted.
 
3. 3. Presentation and discussion of financial and capital statements, financing options, audits, and

financial policies of Lubbock Power & Light relating to debt issuance issues, reserve account
funding, cost allocation, revenue and expense projections, power cost recovery factor, customer
metering, tariff and billing, service issues, and administrative, operational, and financial impacts
caused by or related to the COVID-19 pandemic and/or Winter Storm Uri, including but not limited
to disconnects, efforts to work with customers, payment plans, and community resources available
for assistance.

*This item was deleted.
 
3. 4. Presentation and discussion by the Director of Electric Utilities or his designee, regarding the status

of Lubbock Power & Light’s transition to the Electric Reliability Council of Texas (“ERCOT”), and
public education regarding same.

*This item was deleted.
 
3. 5. Presentation and discussion by the Director of Electric Utilities, or his designee, regarding updates

on the legislative and regulatory matters regarding ERCOT and/or the electric utility industry, and
the status of any legislation, legislative hearings, rulemakings, and/or regulatory or administrative
action regarding same.

*This item was deleted.
 
4. CONSENT AGENDA
 
4. 1. The Board will consider a budget amendment, amending the FY 2020-21 Capital Program to amend

or establish the following Capital Improvement Projects (CIP): CIP #92474, Yellow House Canyon
345/115kV Transformers; CIP #92475, Dunbar 345/115kV Transformers; CIP #92609, Blackwater
Draw to Folsom Point 345kV Line; CIP #92610, Blackwater Draw to Double Mountain 345kV
Line; CIP #92661, Posey to Oliver 115kV line; establish CIP #92710, Fiddlewood to Farmland
345kV Transmission Line, and recommend approval of same to the City Council of the City of
Lubbock.

*This item was deleted.
 
4. 2. The Board will consider a resolution authorizing the Director of Electric Utilities, or his designee, to

Special City Council Meeting 
April 20, 2021 Page 4 of 6



4. 2. The Board will consider a resolution authorizing the Director of Electric Utilities, or his designee, to
execute that certain Fourth Amendment to TMG Utility Advisory Services Professional Services
Agreement, by and between the City of Lubbock, acting by and through Lubbock Power & Light,
and TMG Utility Advisory Services, Inc., regarding professional consulting services related to
implementation of various systems for LP&L. 

*This item was deleted.
 
4. 3. The Board will consider a resolution authorizing the Chairman of the Electric Utility Board to

execute that certain Settlement Agreement and Release, by and between the City of Lubbock, acting
by and through Lubbock Power & Light, Associated Supply Company, Inc., and Federated
Insurance Company, regarding a claim of alleged property damage on or about May 30, 2019, and
ratification and approval, as applicable, of the receipt of insurance funds regarding same.

*This item was deleted.
 
4. 4. The Board will consider a resolution authorizing the Director of Electric Utilities, or his designee, to

execute a Professional Service Agreement by and between the City of Lubbock, acting by and
through Lubbock Power & Light and Black & Veatch Corporation, RFQ# 7116-21-ELD, for LP&L
Professional Services for Engineering Design for Various Substations.

*This item was deleted.
 
4. 5. The Board will consider a resolution authorizing the Purchasing Manager, or his designee, to

execute Purchase Orders by and between the City of Lubbock, acting by and through Lubbock
Power & Light, and Iljin Electric USA, Inc., RFP# 7119-21-ELD, for LP&L Substation Power
Transformers.

*This item was deleted.
 
4. 6. The Board will consider a resolution authorizing the Purchasing Manager, or his designee, to

execute a Purchase Order by and between the City of Lubbock, acting by and through Lubbock
Power & Light and Techline Inc., ITB# 7124-21-ELD, for LP&L Spare Transmission Conductor
and Shield Wire.

*This item was deleted.
 

1:35 P.M. CITY COUNCIL ADJOURNED
 

There being no further business to come before Council, the meeting was adjourned.

 
The April 20, 2021 Special City Council Meeting minutes were approved by the City Council on the 8th day
of June, 2021.

 

Special City Council Meeting 
April 20, 2021 Page 5 of 6



  ____________________________________
DANIEL M. POPE, MAYOR

ATTEST:
 

 

___________________________________
Rebecca Garza, City Secretary

 

*This item was discussed, by the Board, without a quorum of Council Members present.

Special City Council Meeting 
April 20, 2021 Page 6 of 6



CITY OF LUBBOCK
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING

May 11, 2021
1:00 P. M.

 
The City Council of the City of Lubbock, Texas met in regular session on the 11th of May, 2021, in
City Council Chambers, Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas, and via video conference
and teleconference at 1:00 p.m.

  
1:02 P.M. 
         

CITY COUNCIL CONVENED
City Council Chambers, Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas,
and via video conference and teleconference

Present:  Mayor Daniel M. Pope; Mayor Pro Tem Steve Massengale; Council Member Juan A. Chadis;
Council Member Randy Christian; Council Member Jeff Griffith; Council Member Latrelle
Joy; Council Member Shelia Patterson Harris; City Manager W. Jarrett Atkinson; City
Secretary Rebecca Garza; City Attorney Chad Weaver 

 

Note:       City Council addressed agenda items in the following order:
Citizen Comments 1; 2; 3.1-3.3; Executive Session; 5.1-5.3.2; 5.4; 5.3.3; Citizen Comments 6;
7.1; 8.1-8.24; 9.1-9.11.
Item 9.9 failed. 

               
1. Citizen Comments - According to Lubbock City Council Rules, any citizen wishing to

appear in-person before a regular meeting of the City Council, regarding Item 2. below,
shall complete the sign-up form provided at the meeting, no later than 1:00 p.m. on May
11, 2021. If a citizen is attending the meeting by video or teleconference, they may submit
a citizen comment by email at citizencomments@mylubbock.us, no later than 11:00 a.m. on
May 11, 2021. Submitted comments must include name and address. Each comment will
be read aloud for a period of time not to exceed three minutes pursuant to City Council
Rules. Citizen Comments is an opportunity for citizens to make comments and express a
position on agenda items. Any comment received that is in the nature of asking a question
will be referred to an appropriate member of the City staff for a response.

There were no comments received via email.

Sign ups: 

Mikel Ward appeared before City Council to speak in favor of Item 2 (a resolution
canvassing the returns and declaring the result of the City of Lubbock Special Election). 
Don Caldwell appeared before City Council to speak in favor of Item 3.3 (Mac Davis
Tribute Proposal and Discussion).



 
2. Resolution - City Secretary: Resolution No. 2021-R0165 canvassing the returns and declaring

the result of the City of Lubbock Special Election held on May 1, 2021, pertaining to a
citizen-led proposition to adopt an ordinance outlawing abortion within the City of Lubbock
and declaring Lubbock a sanctuary city for the unborn.

Rebecca Garza, city secretary, read the results received from the May 1, 2021 Special Election.
Votes for the proposition, 21,427; votes against the proposition, 12,874; total votes cast in the
Special Election, 34,301.  

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Jeff Griffith, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Steve

Massengale to approve Resolution No. 2021-R0165. 

  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
At the conclusion of this item, the City Council will begin the Work Session.
 
City Council convenes in City Council Chambers in Work Session regarding items for presentation and
discussion on such issues that may require in-depth consideration by the City Council. No action will be
taken by the City Council in Work Session.
 
3. Hear and discuss presentations regarding the following and provide guidance to staff as

appropriate.
 
3. 1. Parks Master Plan Update

Jarrett Atkinson, city manager; and Colby VanGundy, director of parks & recreation,
introduced the item, gave comments, and answered questions from City Council. Aaron Tuley,
with Halff Associates, gave a presentation on the Parks Master Plan and answered questions
from City Council. Topics discussed included: stakeholder listening sessions; an assessment of
current park conditions; collaborative efforts with Texas Tech University; and the Canyon
Lakes Master Plan. 

 
3. 2. Update and Discussion regarding transition to Electric Reliability Council of Texas (ERCOT)

David McCalla, director of electric utilites; and Matt Rose, LP&L government relations &
public affairs manager, gave a presentation on the status of Lubbock Power & Light's transition
to the Electric Reliability Council of Texas (ERCOT). Topics discussed included: construction,
certification, and testing updates; plans related to the transition to ERCOT; and outages and
communications planning. Mr. McCalla also introduced Chris Sims, director of grid control and
compliance; Tom Fox, operations manager; Cody Kirk, transmission operator certifier;
Michael Coomer, substation supervisor; and Kody Morris, transmission distribution manager,
who will be the primary staff members responsible for overseeing the transition to ERCOT. 

 
3. 3. Mac Davis Tribute Proposal and Discussion

Regular City Council Meeting 
May 11, 2021 Page 2 of 12



3. 3. Mac Davis Tribute Proposal and Discussion

Council member Randy Christian gave a presentation on the Mac Davis Tribute proposal as it
relates to the formation of the Mac Davis Tribute Committee, progress made to date, potential
locations for the tribute, and next steps. Council member Christian also detailed Mac Davis'
background, accomplishments, and his impact on the Lubbock community. 

 
At the completion of the Work Session, City Council recesses into Executive Session.
 
4. Executive Session

The meeting recessed at 2:19 p.m. and reconvened in Executive Session under the
provisions of Section 551, Texas Government Code. City Council reconvened in open
session at 4:38 p.m., and the meeting was called to order at 5:20 p.m.

 
4. 1. Hold an executive session in accordance with Texas Government Code, Section 551.071, with

legal counsel for advice about pending or contemplated litigation or settlement agreement and
on matters in which the duty of the attorney under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional
Conduct conflicts with Chapter 551.

 
4. 1. 1. Sanctuary City for the Unborn Ordinance
 
4. 1. 2. Leticia Aguilar v. City of Lubbock, Cause No. 2021544153 pending in the 237th Judicial

District Court of Lubbock County, Texas
 
4. 2. Hold an executive session in accordance with the Texas Government Code, Section 551.074, to

discuss personnel matters, the appointment, employment, evaluation or reassignment of the
following:

 
4. 2. 1. City Attorney
 
4. 2. 2. City Manager
 
4. 2. 3. City Secretary
 
 
 
4:30 p.m. - City Council reconvenes in Regular Session in City Council Chambers.

City Council reconvened at 4:38 p.m.
 
5. Ceremonial Items
 
5. 1. Invocation

Regular City Council Meeting 
May 11, 2021 Page 3 of 12



5. 1. Invocation

Pastor Larry Polk, New Hope Missionary Baptist Church, led the invocation.
 
5. 2. Pledges of Allegiance

Pledges of Allegiance, to the United States and Texas Flags, were led by Mayor Pro Tem Steve
Massengale.
 

 
5. 3. Proclamations and Presentations
 
5. 3. 1. Presentation of a Special Recognition in honor of the 2021 Annual Ride of Silence and in

memory of cyclists who have been killed due to a bicycle/motorist collision

Mayor Pro Tem Steve Massengale presented a Special Recognition in honor of the
2021 Annual Ride of Silence and in memory of cyclists who have been killed due to a
bicycle/motorist collision. Paul Friener, with the West Texas Cycling Association, gave
comments and thanked the Mayor and City Council for the recognition. Mr. Freiner also
encouraged all Lubbock citizens to participate in the 2021 Annual Ride of Silence,
scheduled to be held on May 19, 2021 at 6:30 p.m.

 
5. 3. 2. Presentation of a Proclamation in recognition of the 100th Anniversary of the Lubbock

Police Department

Mayor Daniel M. Pope presented a Proclamation in recognition of the 100th Anniversary
of the Lubbock Police Department. Floyd Mitchell, chief of police, thanked
all the members of the Lubbock Police Department for their dedication to keeping the
community safe and gave remarks on the founding and history of the Lubbock Police
Department. Chief Mitchell also presented commemorative 100th Anniversary badges to
the following individuals: Mayor Daniel M. Pope; Mayor Pro Tem Steve Massengale;
Council Member Juan A. Chadis; Council Member Shelia Patterson Harris; Council
Member Jeff Griffith; Council Member Randy Christian; Council Member Latrelle Joy;
Jarrett Atkinson, city manager; Chad Weaver, city attorney; Rebecca Garza, city
secretary; Bill Howerton, deputy city manager; Jesica McEachern, assistant city
manager; Brooke Witcher, assistant city manager; Blu Kostelich, chief financial officer;
Shaun Fogerson, fire chief; and Monte Monroe, Texas state historian/archivist of the
Southwest Collection. Mr. Monroe, along with Sergeant Brandon Price, gave comments
on the history of the Lubbock Police Department and the research that was undertaken
for this recognition. 

 
5. 3. 3. Presentation of a Special Recognition congratulating the Northwest Water Reclamation

Plant for receiving the 2021 George W. Blake, Jr. Facility Safety Award by the Water
Environment Federation

Jarrett Atkinson, city manager; and John Turpin, assistant director of public works,
presented a Special Recognition congratulating the Northwest Water Reclamation Plant
for receiving the 2021 George W. Blake, Jr. Facility Safety Award by the Water

Regular City Council Meeting 
May 11, 2021 Page 4 of 12



Environment Federation. Mary Gonzales, wastewater treatment plant/water reclamation
supervisor, gave comments and thanked her staff and City of Lubbock administration for
their support. Additionally, Ms. Gonzales introduced the following staff members, who
were in attendance to receive this recognition: Craig Henderson, Bill Boyd, Berta Reyna,
and Isaac Perez.

 
5. 4. Board Recognitions: Presented by Mayor Daniel M. Pope.

Animal Services Advisory Board
Grant Gerlich
 
Junked Vehicle Compliance Board
Margaret Kelley (unable to attend)
 
Lake Alan Henry Board of Appeals
Christopher Blake Seiler
Krista Jones (unable to attend)
 
Urban Design/Historic Preservation Commission
Lal Williams

  

 
Call to Order

The meeting was called to order at 5:20 p.m.
 
6. Citizen Comments - According to Lubbock City Council Rules, any citizen wishing to

appear in-person before a regular meeting of the City Council, regarding any matter
posted on the City Council Agenda below, shall complete the sign-up form provided at the
meeting, no later than 5:00 p.m. on May 11, 2021. If a citizen is attending the meeting by
video or teleconference, they may submit a citizen comment by email at 
citizencomments@mylubbock.us, no later than 2:00 p.m. on May 11, 2021. Submitted
comments must include name and address. Each comment will be read aloud for a period
of time not to exceed three minutes pursuant to City Council Rules. Citizen Comments is
an opportunity for citizens to make comments and express a position on agenda items.
Any comment received that is in the nature of asking a question will be referred to an
appropriate member of the City staff for a response.

No one appeared to speak in person; and no comments were submitted via email.
 
7. Minutes
 
7. 1. March 24, 2021 Special City Council Meeting - Lubbock Economic Development Alliance

March 30, 2021 Special City Council Meeting - Electric Utility Board
April 13, 2021 Regular City Council Meeting
April 14, 2021 Special City Council Meeting - Coffee with the Mayor

  

 
  Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Steve Massengale, seconded by Council Member Juan A.

Regular City Council Meeting 
May 11, 2021 Page 5 of 12



  Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Steve Massengale, seconded by Council Member Juan A.
Chadis to approve the March 24, 2021 Special City Council Meeting - Lubbock
Economic Development Alliance minutes; the March 30, 2021 Special City Council
Meeting - Electric Utility Board minutes; the April 13, 2021 Regular City Council
Meeting minutes; and the April 14, 2021 Special City Council Meeting - Coffee with the
Mayor minutes.  

  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
8. Consent Agenda - Items considered to be routine are enacted by one motion without

separate discussion. If the City Council desires to discuss an item, the item is removed
from the Consent Agenda and considered separately.

 
  Motion by Council Member Shelia Patterson Harris, seconded by Council Member

Latrelle Joy to approve Items 8.1-8.24.  

  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
8. 1. Budget Ordinance Amendment 2nd Reading - Finance: Ordinance No. 2021-O0042,

Amendment 19, amending the FY 2020-21 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the Grant
Fund to accept and appropriate funding from the Federal Aviation Administration.

  

 
8. 2. Budget Ordinance Amendment 2nd Reading - Finance: Ordinance No. 2021-O0043,

Amendment 20, amending the FY 2020-21 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the Grant
Fund to accept and appropriate funding from the Texas Department of State Health Services.

  

 
8. 2. 1. Resolution - Public Health Services: Resolution No. 2021-R0166 authorizing the Mayor to

execute Contract HHS001019500024, under the COVID-19 Immunizations Grant Programs,
and any associated documents, by and between the City of Lubbock and the Texas Department
of State Health Services.

  

 
8. 3. Budget Ordinance Amendment 1st Reading - Finance: Ordinance No. 2021-O0053,

Amendment 21, amending the FY 2020-21 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the
General Fund to appropriate funding for Fleet Capital Improvements.

  

 
8. 4. Budget Ordinance Amendment 1st Reading - Finance: Ordinance No. 2021-O0054,

Amendment 22, amending the FY 2020-21 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the Lake
Alan Henry Fund to appropriate funding for the purchase of customer service and payment
equipment.

  

 
8. 5. Budget Ordinance Amendment 1st Reading - Finance: Ordinance No. 2021-O0055,

Amendment 23, amending the FY 2020-21 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the
Lubbock Power & Light Capital Budget; providing for filing; and providing for a savings
clause.

  

 
8. 6. Budget Ordinance Amendment 1st Reading - Finance: Ordinance No. 2021-O0056,   

Regular City Council Meeting 
May 11, 2021 Page 6 of 12



8. 6. Budget Ordinance Amendment 1st Reading - Finance: Ordinance No. 2021-O0056,
Amendment 24, amending the FY 2020-21 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the
General Fund for the addition of one full-time position.

  

 
8. 7. Resolution - Risk Management: Resolution No. 2021-R0167 authorizing the Mayor to

execute Contract 15810 with Heritage-RM dba Sanford & Tatum Insurance Agency and USI
Southwest, Inc. for consulting and broker services for property and casualty insurance.

  

 
8. 8. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Right-of-Way: Ordinance No. 2021-O0044, abandoning and

closing a portion of a sewer line easement, located in Section 25, Block E-2, Lubbock County,
Texas.

  

 
8. 9. Resolution - Right-of-Way: Resolution No. 2021-R0168 authorizing the Mayor to execute a

Street Use License/Groundwater Monitoring Well Permit with the Air Force Civil Engineering
Center (AFCEC) to install and maintain seven groundwater monitoring wells for collecting
water samples.

  

 
8. 10. Resolution - Right-of-Way: Resolution No. 2021-R0169 rejecting all bids received for ITB

21-15787-MA, for the sale of property at 1502 Vanham Avenue, Wilson, Texas.
  

 
8. 11. Resolution - Engineering: Resolution No. 2021-R0170 authorizing the Mayor to execute a

Standard Utility Agreement (SUA) with the Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT) for
the Loop 88 Sewer Line Relocation Project.

  

 
8. 12. Resolution - Public Works Solid Waste: Resolution No. 2021-R0171 authorizing the Mayor

to accept and execute, on behalf of the City of Lubbock, four Garbage Service Collection
Easements, in connection with real property described as Lots 5 through 8, Villas of Country
Place Addition to the City of Lubbock, Lubbock County, Texas.

  

 
8. 13. Resolution - Water Utilities: Resolution No. 2021-R0172 authorizing the Mayor to execute a

new five-year Interlocal Water Sales Agreement, and all related documents, with the Lubbock
Cooper Independent School District - Woodrow Campus, for the continued purchase of water
from the City’s potable water system.

  

 
8. 14. Resolution - Water Utilities: Resolution No. 2021-R0173 authorizing the Mayor to execute 

Contract 15645, and all related documents, with West Texas Services, Inc. DBA Tom's Tree
Place, for landscape and tree maintenance, for the Water Utilities Demonstration Garden
located at 406 Municipal Drive.

  

 
8. 15. Resolution - Business Development: Resolution No. 2021-R0174 approving a Downtown

Grant Program (Facade) expenditure of Market Lubbock, Inc., to be provided to Sally Blair,
LLC at 1320 19th Street, pursuant to Article IV, Section 5, of the Amended and Restated
Bylaws of Market Lubbock Economic Development Corporation. 

  

 
8. 16. Resolution - Business Development: Resolution No. 2021-R0175 approving a Downtown   

Regular City Council Meeting 
May 11, 2021 Page 7 of 12



8. 16. Resolution - Business Development: Resolution No. 2021-R0175 approving a Downtown
Grant Program (Permittable) expenditure of Market Lubbock, Inc., to be provided to Torres
Misc. at 1630 13th Street, pursuant to Article IV, Section 5 of the Amended and Restated
Bylaws of Market Lubbock Development Corporation. 

  

 
8. 17. Resolution - Business Development: Resolution No. 2021-R0176 approving an East- Side

Grant Program (Facade) expenditure of Market Lubbock, Inc., to be provided to Angelina
Moses for the Mackenzie Village Shopping Center, pursuant to Article IV, Section 5, of the
Amended and Restated Bylaws of Market Lubbock Economic Development Corporation. 

  

 
8. 18. Resolution - Business Development: Resolution No. 2021-R0177 approving an East Side

Grant Program (Permittable) expenditure of Market Lubbock, Inc., to be provided to Angelina
Moses for the Mackenzie Village Shopping Center, pursuant to Article IV, Section 5, of the
Amended and Restated Bylaws of Market Lubbock Economic Development Corporation. 

  

 
8. 19. Resolution - Business Development: Resolution No. 2021-R0178 authorizing the Mayor to

execute Contract 15878, with James Padgett Painting, Inc., for providing professional services
for the installation of public art in the Broadway Tunnel, generally located between Avenue A
and Avenue E on Broadway. 

  

 
8. 20. Resolution - Public Health Services: Resolution No. 2021-R0179 ratifying the acts of

the Mayor in executing, for and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, Amendment No. 5 to the
Public Health Emergency Preparedness Cooperative Agreement, Contract No.
537-18-0127-0001, and any associated documents, between the City of Lubbock and the State
of Texas acting by and through its Department of State Health Services.

  

 
8. 21. Resolution - Community Development: Resolution No. 2021-R0180 authorizing the Mayor

to accept for and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, a General Warranty Deed associated with
vacant lots located in the Phyllis Wheatley Addition, and owned by the Urban Renewal Agency
of the City of Lubbock, Texas.

  

 
8. 22. Resolution - Aviation: Resolution No. 2021-R0181 authorizing the Mayor to execute

Purchase Order 25101354, with ADB Safegate, for the terminal apron lighting retrofit at the
Lubbock Preston Smith International Airport.

  

 
8. 23. Resolution - Information Technology: Resolution No. 2021-R0182 authorizing the Mayor to

execute Service Contract 15849, with Vexus Fiber, for the upgrade and installation of Dark
Fiber to add capacity and increased stability to the Public Safety radio system.

  

 
8. 24. Resolution - Police: Resolution No. 2021-R0183 authorizing the Mayor to execute Purchase

Order 10023971, with Lexipol LLC, for policy and document management services through a
proprietary web-based platform for the Lubbock Police Department.

  

 
9. Regular Agenda
 

Regular City Council Meeting 
May 11, 2021 Page 8 of 12



9. 1. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning: Ordinance No. 2021-O0045, for Zone Case 2538-S, a
request of Westar Commercial Realty, LLC for Texas Green, LLC, for a zone change to Light
Manufacturing District (M-1) from Single-Family District (R-1), generally located south of
19th Street and east of Gatland Avenue, on 4.735 acres of unplatted land out of Block AK,
Section 41.

Bryan Isham, director of planning, gave a presentation and answered questions from City
Council. 

  

 
  Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Steve Massengale, seconded by Council Member Jeff

Griffith to approve Ordinance No. 2021-O0045. 

  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
9. 2. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning: Ordinance No. 2021-O0046, for Zone Case 2921-C, a

request of Hugo Reed and Associates, Inc. for UMC Health System, for a Specific Use for a
Hospital on property zoned Commercial District (C-4) at 11003, 11011 and 11109 Slide Road,
located south of 110th Street and east of Slide Road, on 13.6 acres of unplatted land out of
Block E2, Section 16.

Bryan Isham, director of planning, gave a presentation and answered questions from City
Council. 

  

 
  Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Steve Massengale, seconded by Council Member Jeff

Griffith to approve Ordinance No. 2021-O0046. 

  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
9. 3. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning: Ordinance No. 2021-O0047, for Zone Case 3047-Z, a

request of Hugo Reed and Associates, Inc. for TK & RB Investments, LLC, for a zone change
to General Retail District (C-3) from Central Business District, General (CB-3) Specific
Use, generally located south of 114th Street and west of Quaker Avenue, on 1.1 acres of
unplatted land out of Block E2, Section 23.

Bryan Isham, director of planning, gave a presentation and answered questions from City
Council. 

  

 
  Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Steve Massengale, seconded by Council Member Jeff

Griffith to approve Ordinance No. 2021-O0047. 

  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
9. 4. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning: Ordinance No. 2021-O0052, for Zone Case 3145-H, a

request of Cox/Dirks Architects P.C. for Ramar Communications, for a Specific Use for
Antennas, Towers and Alternative Tower Structures, on a property zoned Central Business
District, Civic Center (CB-5) at 612 Avenue O, located north of 8th Street and west of Avenue
O, Memorial Center Addition, Block 7, Lot 3-A.

  

Regular City Council Meeting 
May 11, 2021 Page 9 of 12



Bryan Isham, director of planning, gave a presentation and answered questions from City
Council. 

 
  Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Steve Massengale, seconded by Council Member Jeff

Griffith to approve Ordinance No. 2021-O0052. 

  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
9. 5. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning: Ordinance No. 2021-O0048, for Zone Case 3257-K, a

request of Hugo Reed and Associates, Inc. for 1585 Development LLC, for a zone change to
Local Retail District (C-2) from Garden Office District (GO) and Apartment Medical District
(AM) at 13501 and 13701 Indiana Avenue, located south of 135th Street and east of Indiana
Avenue, on 1.3 acres of unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 1.

Bryan Isham, director of planning, gave a presentation and answered questions from City
Council. 

  

 
  Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Steve Massengale, seconded by Council Member Jeff

Griffith to approve Ordinance No. 2021-O0048. 

  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
9. 6. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning: Ordinance No. 2021-O0049, for Zone Case 3428, a

request of Gregory Dane Church, for a zone change to Two-Family District (R-2) with a
Specific Use for a Travel Trailer Park from Two-Family District (R-2), Commercial District
(C-4), and Interstate Highway Commercial District (IHC), generally located north of 77th
Street and east of Avenue P, on 35.897 acres of land out of Block E, Section 5.

Bryan Isham, director of planning, gave a presentation and answered questions from City
Council. 

  

 
  Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Steve Massengale, seconded by Council Member Jeff

Griffith to approve Ordinance No. 2021-O0049. 

  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
9. 7. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning: Ordinance No. 2021-O0050, for Zone Case 3429, a

request of SK Architecture Group for True North, for a zone change from Neighborhood
Service District (C-1) to Family Apartment District (A-1) at 2124 15th Street, located on the
north side of 15th Street and east of Avenue V, Overton Addition Block 53, Lot 13.

Bryan Isham, director of planning, gave a presentation and answered questions from City
Council. 

  

 
  Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Steve Massengale, seconded by Council Member Jeff

Regular City Council Meeting 
May 11, 2021 Page 10 of 12



  Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Steve Massengale, seconded by Council Member Jeff
Griffith to approve Ordinance No. 2021-O0050. 

  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
9. 8. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning: Ordinance No. 2021-O0051, for Zone Case 3430, a

request of Centerline Engineering, LLC for Blackstone Development, for a zone change to
Local Retail District (C-2) and Single-Family District (R-1) with a Specific Use for Garden
Homes from Transition District (T), generally located north of 110th Street and west of
Milwaukee Avenue, on 28.15 acres of unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 22.

Bryan Isham, director of planning, gave a presentation and answered questions from City
Council. 

  

 
  Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Steve Massengale, seconded by Council Member Jeff

Griffith to approve Ordinance No. 2021-O0051 

  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
9. 9. Ordinance 1st Reading- Planning: Consider a request for Zone Case 2565-E, a request of

Vipul and Indira Patel, for a Specific Use for a Travel Trailer Park on property zoned Interstate
Highway Commercial District (IHC), at 5930 Avenue Q South Drive, located south of 58th
Street and east of Avenue L, Carlton Heights Addition, Tract A, and the northwest part of Tract
F, totaling 2.85 acres of land out of Block E, Section 2, and 5903 Avenue L, located south of
58th Street and east of Avenue L, on 8.138 acres of unplatted land out of Block E, Section 2,
and consider an ordinance.

This item failed.

Bryan Isham, director of planning, gave a presentation and answered questions from City
Council. Neil Patel, representing the proponents, gave comments and answered questions from
City Council.  

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Randy Christian, seconded by Council Member Jeff

Griffith to approve this item. 

  Vote: 0 - 7 Failed

  NAY:  Mayor Daniel M. Pope 
  Mayor Pro Tem Steve Massengale 
  Council Member Juan A. Chadis 
  Council Member Randy Christian 
  Council Member Jeff Griffith 
  Council Member Latrelle Joy 
  Council Member Shelia Patterson Harris 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 
May 11, 2021 Page 11 of 12



9. 10. Resolution - City Manager: Resolution No. 2021-R0184 approving the settlement agreement
between the cities of Amarillo, Lubbock, Dalhart, and Channing, and Atmos Energy
Corporation, regarding the Atmos Application to Increase Rates, filed with the City on
September 30, 2020.

Jarrett Atkinson, city manager; and Blu Kostelich, chief financial officer, gave comments and
answered questions from City Council. 

  

 
  Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Steve Massengale, seconded by Council Member Jeff

Griffith to approve Resolution No. 2021-R0184. 

  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
9. 11. Resolution - City Manager: Resolution No. 2021-R0185 approving the Notice of Intent to

Reduce Rates from Atmos Energy Corporation within the incorporated area of Lubbock.

Jarrett Atkinson, city manager; and Blu Kostelich, chief financial officer, gave comments and
answered questions from City Council. 

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Jeff Griffith, seconded by Council Member Shelia Patterson

Harris to approve Resolution No. 2021-R0185. 

  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
5:56 P.M. CITY COUNCIL ADJOURNED
 

There being no further business to come before Council, Mayor Pope adjourned the meeting.

 
The May 11, 2021 Regular City Council Meeting minutes were approved by the City Council on the 8th day
of June, 2021.

 
  ____________________________________

DANIEL M. POPE, MAYOR
ATTEST:
 

 

___________________________________
Rebecca Garza, City Secretary

 

Regular City Council Meeting 
May 11, 2021 Page 12 of 12



   
Regular City Council Meeting 7. 1.        
Meeting Date: 06/08/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Budget Ordinance Amendment 2nd Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance No. 2021-O0057,
Amendment 25, amending the FY 2020-21 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the General Fund to
amend full-time equivalent (FTE) positions in Animal Services, providing for filing; and providing for a
savings clause.

Item Summary
On May 25, 2021, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance.

Amend the Animal Service Department Cost Center 5311, by adding 2 full-time Kennel Attendant
positions.

No additional funding is required.  The kennel cleaning service contract will not be renewed.

Fiscal Impact
Included in Item Summary

Staff/Board Recommending
D. Blu Kostelich, Chief Financial Officer

Attachments
Ordinance 







   
Regular City Council Meeting 7. 2.        
Meeting Date: 06/08/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Budget Ordinance Amendment 2nd Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance No. 2021-O0058,
Amendment 26, amending the FY 2020-21 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the Grant Fund to
accept and appropriate funding from the U.S. Department of Treasury.

Item Summary
On May 25, 2021, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance.

Accept and appropriate $6,189,025.60 from the U.S. Department of Treasury for Emergency Rental
Assistance 2.

Fiscal Impact
Included in Item Summary

Staff/Board Recommending
D. Blu Kostelich, Chief Financial Officer

Attachments
Ordinance 







   
Regular City Council Meeting 7. 3.        
Meeting Date: 06/08/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Budget Ordinance Amendment 2nd Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance No. 2021-O0059,
Amendment 27, amending the FY 2020-21 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the Operating
Budget for Lubbock Economic Development Alliance and Market Lubbock, Inc. - Visitors Bureau.

Item Summary
On May 25, 2021, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance. 

Amend the FY 2020-21 Lubbock Economic Development Alliance, Inc. Operating Budget as shown
in Exhibit A.

1.

Amend the FY 2020-21 MLI - Visit Lubbock Operating Budget as shown in Exhibit B.2.

Fiscal Impact
Included in Item Summary

Staff/Board Recommending
D. Blu Kostelich, Chief Financial Officer

Attachments
Ordinance 
Exhibit A 
Exhibit B 







Lubbock Economic Development Alliance, Inc.

Approved Revised Budget

Fiscal Year 2020-21

. Approved Approved

Budget Revised

FY 20-21 FY 20-21

REVENUES

Sales Tax Funding 6,799,676$           6,799,676$           

Investment Income 130,000 130,000                

Grant from Dept. of Commerce EDA 1,467,262 -                            1

Lease Income 13,000 49,000                  2

Lubbock Business Park TIF Reimbursement 3,265,503 3,153,965             3

Sale of Inventory 0 3,763,870             4

Total Revenue Sources 11,675,441 13,896,511

Utilization of Non-Cash Assets - Land 18,000 39,000 5

Utilization of Net Assets 10,195,671 17,945,868           6

TOTAL REVENUES 21,889,112$         31,881,379$         

EXPENSES

PERSONNEL

Salaries 1,251,800 1,251,800             

Employee Benefits 321,500                321,500                

PERSONNEL SUBTOTAL 1,573,300             1,573,300             

ADMINISTRATIVE

Bank Charges 500 500                       

Pre-employment 3,000 3,000                    

Repairs & Maintenance 5,000 5,000                    

Repairs & Maintenance - Business Parks 196,000 196,000                

Professional Services 185,000 185,000                

Meeting Expense 15,500 15,500                  

Insurance 20,000 40,000                  7

Miscellaneous 12,000 12,000                  

Professional Memberships/Dues/Subscriptions/Licenses 146,100 146,100                

Travel/Training 77,300 77,300                  

ADMINISTRATIVE SUBTOTAL 660,400 680,400

OFFICE

Office Supplies 22,500 22,500                  

Office Equipment Rental 11,200 11,200                  

Office Rent 118,000 118,000                

Telephone 19,200 19,200                  

Postage 4,000 4,000                    

OFFICE SUBTOTAL 174,900 174,900

MARKETING AND SALES

Promotions/Advertising 589,000 589,000                

Meeting Expense 31,000 31,000                  

Travel 129,300 89,300                  8

MARKETING AND SALES SUBTOTAL 749,300 709,300

BUSINESS INCENTIVES/SPECIAL PROJECTS

Special Projects 5,855,500 5,855,500             

Incentive Fund - Direct Business Incentives 1,512,000 947,000                9

BUSINESS INCENTIVES/SPECIAL PROJECTS SUBTOTA 7,367,500 6,802,500

CAPITAL COSTS

Furniture, Fixtures & Equipment 20,300 25,300                  10

Miscellaneous Land Purchases 500,000 10,208,420           11

Lubbock Business Park & Railport 10,843,412 11,707,259           12

CAPITAL COSTS SUBTOTAL 11,363,712           21,940,979           

TOTAL EXPENSES 21,889,112$         31,881,379$         

Exhibit A



Proposed
Approved Revised
2019-20 2020-21 Difference Explanation

REVENUES
1 Grant from Dept. of Commerce EDA 1,467,262 0 (1,467,262) The project associated with the EDA grant is on hold for

the current budget year.  We anticipate using the EDA
granted funds within the next two years on projects locating
at the Railport.

2 Lease Income 13,000 49,000 36,000 With the purchase of land this fiscal year, there are some
farm rents coming to LEDA.

3 Lubbock Business Park TIF Reimbursement 3,265,503 3,153,965 (111,538) LBP TIF reimbursement for the construction of N. Ivory
Ave. in Lubbock Business Park.  LEDA expects 
construction to begin and be completed in FY 2020/21.

4 Sale of Inventory 0 3,763,870 3,763,870 Funds that LEDA received for the sale of land at LBP to
ET Lubbock, LLC for the Amazon sort facility

5 Utilization of Non-Cash Assets - Land 18,000 39,000 21,000 Use of land at LBP for anticipated projects in this year

6 Utilization of Net Assets 10,195,671 17,945,868 7,750,197 Use of cash net assets for anticipated projects that could
be needed in the current fiscal year.

EXPENSES
ADMINISTRATIVE

7 Insurance 20,000 40,000 20,000 Increase need of insurance related to the purchase of
property, i.e., liability, crop and equipment coverage.

MARKETING AND SALES
8 Travel 129,300 89,300 (40,000) Overall reduction in travel in the current year as many trade

shows and face-to-face meetings are just now beginning to 
take place.

BUSINESS INCENTIVES/SPECIAL PROJECTS
9 Incentive Fund - Direct Business Incentives 1,512,000 947,000 (565,000) Two projects that we anticipated closing in the current year

have slowed down due to the pandemic

CAPITAL COSTS
10 Furniture, Fixtures & Equipment 20,300 25,300 5,000 Additional technology equipment and upgrades.

11 Miscellaneous Land Purchases 500,000 10,208,420 9,708,420 Potential projects requiring land acquisition.

12 Lubbock Business Park & Railport 10,843,412 11,707,259 863,847 Original budget based on the completion of E. Vassar Street.  The
successful landing of Amazon required the completion of the 
north side of the Business Park rather than the southern portion.

Lubbock Economic Development Alliance, Inc.
Schedule of Explanation for Selected Accounts

Approved Revised Budget
Fiscal Year 2020-21



Visit Lubbock

(Convention and Visitors Bureau and Lubbock Sports)
Approved Revised Budget

Fiscal Year 2020-21

Approved Approved Approved Approved Approved Approved 

Budget CVB Sports Amended Budget Amended CVB Amended Sports

2020-21 2020-21 2020-21 2020-21 2020-21 2020-21

REVENUES

Hotel/Motel Tax Revenue 3,147,166        2,373,470        773,696           3,147,166        2,373,470        773,696           

HOT True-Up - CVB/LSA -                   -                   322,321           1   243,082           79,239             

Investment Income 20,000             15,200             4,800               20,000             15,200             4,800               

Sale of Promotional Items 1,500               1,500               1,500               1,500               

Advertising Income -                   -                   

Events Trust Fund Reimbursement 37,100             37,100             37,100             37,100             

Event Revenue 15,000             15,000             15,000             15,000             

Payroll Protection Plan Loan Proceeds 232,360           2   196,722           35,638             

Total Revenue Sources 3,220,766        2,390,170        830,596           3,775,447        2,829,974        945,473           

Utilization of Net Assets 877,534           745,904           131,630           452,353           3   384,500           67,853             

Grant from CVB (402,714) 402,714 -                   (402,714)          402,714           

TOTAL REVENUES 4,098,300$      2,733,360$      1,364,940$      4,227,800$      2,811,760$      1,416,040$      

EXPENSES

PERSONNEL

Compensation 1,075,400$      855,020 220,380 1,075,400        855,020           220,380           

Employee Benefits 261,800$         215,400 46,400 261,800           215,400           46,400             

PERSONNEL SUBTOTAL 1,337,200        1,070,420        266,780           1,337,200        1,070,420        266,780           

ADMINISTRATIVE

Bank Charges 1,000               800 200 1,000               800                  200                  

Automobile 5,500               4,400 1,100 5,500               4,400               1,100               

Pre-Employment 1,000               800 200 1,000               800                  200                  

Member Dues/Subscriptions 60,000             48,000 12,000 64,000             4   52,000             12,000             

Miscellaneous Expense 5,000               4,000 1,000 5,000               4,000               1,000               

Professional Services 164,400           131,500 32,900 164,400           131,500           32,900             

Insurance/Workers Comp. 12,600             10,080 2,520 12,600             10,080             2,520               

Repairs and Maintenance 1,500               1,200 300 3,000               5   2,400               600                  

Capital Asset Purchase 30,000             24,000 6,000 37,000             6   29,600             7,400               

Business Meetings 2,000               1,600 400 2,000               1,600               400                  

ADMINISTRATIVE SUBTOTAL 283,000           226,380           56,620             295,500           237,180           58,320             

OFFICE

Postage and Shipping 5,000               4,000 1,000 5,000               4,000               1,000               

Rent 106,100           84,900 21,200 106,100           84,900             21,200             

Storage Fees 3,000               2,400 600 3,000               2,400               600                  

Supplies 25,000             20,000 5,000 25,000             20,000             5,000               

Telephone 19,200             15,400 3,800 26,200             7   21,000             5,200               

OFFICE SUBTOTAL 158,300           126,700           31,600             165,300           132,300           33,000             

MARKETING/SALES

Industry Conventions 70,000             56,000 14,000 70,000             56,000             14,000             

Incentives 90,000             90,000 -                   90,000             90,000             -                   

Convention and Sports Sales 503,500           241,500 262,000 518,500           8   251,500           267,000           

Servicing Items 65,000             52,000 13,000 65,000             52,000             13,000             

Site Tours 71,500             61,500 10,000             71,500             61,500             10,000             

Marketing 929,700           743,760 185,940 994,700           9   795,760           198,940           

Public Relations 80,100             65,100 15,000 80,100             65,100             15,000             

Sports Servicing 510,000           -                   510,000 540,000           10 -                   540,000           

MARKETING/SALES SUBTOTAL 2,319,800        1,309,860        1,009,940        2,429,800        1,371,860        1,057,940        

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSE 4,098,300$      2,733,360$      1,364,940$      4,227,800$      2,811,760$      1,416,040        

-$                     -$                     -$                     (0)$                   -$                     -$                     

 

Exhibit B



Visit Lubbock
Schedule of Explanation for Selected Accounts

Approved Revised Budget
Fiscal Year 2020-21

Approved Approved
2020-21 2020-21 Difference Explanation

REVENUES
1 HOT True-Up - CVB/LSA -              322,321      322,321 City revised the current year VL budget for FY2019-20 True-Up

of HOT revenue

2 Payroll Protection Plan Loan Proce -              232,360      232,360 With Board approval, VL made application and received a PPP
forgivable loan from the second release of funds that included
travel and tourism entities that were adversely affected by the
pandemic.

3 Utilization of Net Assets 877,534      452,353      (425,181) As a result of the HOT True-Up and PPP loan, VL was able to 
reduce the by just over $425k.

EXPENSES
4 Member Dues/Subscriptions 60,000        64,000        4,000 Ensure the ability to purchase sponsorships at the appropriate

level as tradeshows begin again

5 Repairs and Maintenance 1,500          3,000          1,500 VL has implemented the quarterly sanitization service of the 
offices to prevent the spread of illness

6 Capital Asset Purchase 30,000        37,000        7,000 Anticipate the need to add additional computer and iPhone to
accommodate increased internally produced videos for the 
various social media channels

7 Telephone 19,200        26,200        7,000 Upgrade in internet speed, capacity and reliability.

8 Convention and Sports Sales 503,500      518,500      15,000 Ensure the ability to purchase sponsorships at the appropriate
level as tradeshows begin again

9 Marketing 929,700      994,700      65,000 Increased emphasis on digital media buys and social media

opportunities

10 Sports Servicing 510,000      540,000      30,000 Hosting 3 new baseball tournaments in July and August



   
Regular City Council Meeting 7. 4.        
Meeting Date: 06/08/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Budget Ordinance Amendment 1st Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance Amendment 30,
amending the FY 2020-21 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the Airport Capital Fund to
appropriate additional funding for the Capital Improvement Project 8648 Airport Pavement Maintenance.

Item Summary
Amend CIP 8648, Airport Pavement Maintenance, and increase the appropriation and funding by
$409,690 from $400,000 to $809,690. The additional funding will come from the Airport
Coronavirus Response Grant Program (ACRGP).

1.

Fiscal Impact
Included in Item Summary

Staff/Board Recommending
D. Blu Kostelich, Chief Financial Officer

Attachments
Ordinance 







   
Regular City Council Meeting 7. 5.        
Meeting Date: 06/08/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Budget Ordinance Amendment 1st Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance Amendment 31,
amending the FY 2020-21 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the Water/Wastewater Operating and
Capital Funds to appropriate additional funding for Capital Improvement Project (CIP) 92455 Water
Meter Replacements.

Item Summary
Amend the FY 2020-21 Water/Wastewater Operating Budget by increasing the Transfer to Water
Capital by $510,000 from $5,340,000 to $5,850,000. The funding will be cash from
Water/Wastewater Fund Balance.

1.

Amend CIP 92455, Water Meter Replacements, and increase the appropriation and funding by
$510,000 from $2,180,000 to $2,690,000. The additional funding will come from the
Water/Wastewater Fund Balance.

2.

Fiscal Impact
Included in Item Summary

Staff/Board Recommending
D. Blu Kostelich, Chief Financial Officer

Attachments
Ordinance 







   
Regular City Council Meeting 7. 6.        
Meeting Date: 06/08/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Budget Ordinance Amendment 1st Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance Amendment 32,
amending the FY 2020-21 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the General Fund Operating, General
Fund Capital, and Information Technology Operating Fund to appropriate additional funding for Capital
Improvement Project 8646 Public Safety CAD, Mobile, and RMS Software.

Item Summary
Amend the FY 2020-21 Police Administration Operating Budget by reducing Professional Services
by $25,000 from $303,260 to $278,260.

1.

Amend the FY 2020-21 Fire Suppression Operating Budget by reducing Capital
Outlay/Reimbursements by $1,750 from $281,226 to $279,476.

2.

Amend the FY 2020-21 General Fund Operating Budget by increasing the Transfer to General Fund
Capital by $26,750 from $15,489,618 to $15,516,368.

3.

Amend the FY 2020-21 Information Technology Operating Fund by reducing Capital
Outlay/Reimbursements by $1,750 from $620,000 to $618,250.

4.

Amend the FY 2020-21 Information Technology Operating Budget by increasing the Transfer to
General Capital by $1,750 from $0 to $1,750.

5.

Amend CIP 8646, Public Safety CAD, Mobile, and RMS Software, and increase the appropriation
and funding by $28,500 from $100,000 to $128,500. The funding will be cash from the General Fund
and Information Technology Operating Fund.

6.

Fiscal Impact
Included in Item Summary

Staff/Board Recommending
D. Blu Kostelich, Chief Financial Officer

Attachments
Ordinance 







   
Regular City Council Meeting 7. 7.        
Meeting Date: 06/08/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Budget Ordinance Amendment 1st Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance Amendment 33,
amending the FY 2020-21 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the Grant Fund to accept and
appropriate funding from the Texas Department of State Health Services.

Item Summary
Accept and appropriate $126,292 from the Texas Department of State Health Services for the HIV
Prevention Services Project through the HIV Prevention Grant, increasing the total of the not to
exceed amount from $389,439 to $515,731, with an established end date of August 31, 2022.

1.

Fiscal Impact
Included in Item Summary

Staff/Board Recommending
D. Blu Kostelich, Chief Financial Officer

Attachments
Ordinance 







   
Regular City Council Meeting 7. 8.        
Meeting Date: 06/08/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Budget Ordinance Amendment 1st Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance Amendment 34,
amending the FY 2020-21 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the Water/Wastewater Capital Fund
to appropriate additional funding for Capital Improvement Project 92587 Loop 88 Sewer Line Relocation.

Item Summary
Amend CIP 92587, Loop 88 Sewer Line Relocation, and increase the appropriation and funding by
$859,132 from $750,000 to $1,609,132. The funding will be from the Texas Department of
Transportation (TxDOT).

1.

Fiscal Impact
Included in Item Summary

Staff/Board Recommending
D. Blu Kostelich, Chief Financial Officer

Attachments
Ordinance 







   
Regular City Council Meeting 7. 9.        
Meeting Date: 06/08/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Right-of-Way: Consider Ordinance No. 2021-O0061, abandoning and closing
a portion of a 15-foot alley located in Block 1, Hewett Addition, Lubbock County, Texas.

Item Summary
On May 25, 2021, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance.

The City of Lubbock is in receipt of a request to abandon and close a 172.50-foot long by 15-foot wide
alley located at 3331 34th Street. The closure will allow the property to be redeveloped into a Murphy
Express convenience store.
 
Using Lubbock Central Appraisal District values, the Right-of-Way Department appraised the land at
$2.50 per square foot, for a total of $6,470. A utility and garbage collection easement will be dedicated
back to the City at no cost; therefore, there will be a 50% credit for a total due to the City of $3,235.
 
All City departments and franchise utility companies are in agreement with the closure.

Fiscal Impact
$3,235 revenue to the General Fund

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager

Attachments
ROW Abandon and Close 15-foot Alley,Hewett Addition 
Exhibit A -Closure of a 15-foot Alley - Block 1 Hewett Addition 













   
Regular City Council Meeting 7. 10.        
Meeting Date: 06/08/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 1st Reading - Right-of-Way: Consider an ordinance abandoning and closing a portion of a
Drainage Easement located in Section 7, Block JS, Lot 26, Spanish Bit Court Addition, Lubbock County,
Texas.

Item Summary
The City of Lubbock is in receipt of a request to abandon and close a portion of a Drainage Easement
(CCFN # 2016013471) located in Section 7, Block JS, Lot 26, Spanish Bit Court Addition, Lubbock
County, Texas, adjacent to the Spanish Bit Court Development.  The drainage easement is being relocated
on a future plat.
 
All City departments and franchise utility companies are in agreement with the closure.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager

Attachments
Ordinance - Closure a Portion of a Drainage Easements - Section 7 Block JS 
Exhibit A -Closure a Portion of a Drainage Easements - Section 7 Block JS 











   
Regular City Council Meeting 7. 11.        
Meeting Date: 06/08/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute an Easement and
Right-of-Way by and between the City of Lubbock and Oncor Electric Delivery Company, LLC
("Oncor"), to be utilized for electric power and communication lines and associated equipment over, under,
along, to, from, and through land more particularly described in Exhibits A and B to the Easement and
Right-of-Way, and including certain areas along the following transmission lines across the City's
Hancock Land Application Site.

Item Summary
Lubbock Power & Light (LP&L) filed before the Public Utility Commission of Texas ("PUC") its
Application of the City of Lubbock Through Lubbock Power and Light for Authority to Connect a Portion
of its System with the Electric Reliability Council of Texas ("ERCOT"), Docket Number 47576 (the
"Application"), on or about September 1, 2017. The portion of LP&L's load, subject to that Application, is
more particularly defined therein as the "Affected Load."
 
The PUC approved LP&L's Application to integrate the Affected Load into ERCOT by its Order dated
March 15, 2018, in PUC Docket No. 47576, styled Application for the City of Lubbock through Lubbock
Power and Light for Authority to Connect a Portion of its System with the Electric Reliability Council of
Texas (the "Order").

As a part of that Order, the PUC ordered LP&L and Sharyland Utilities ("Sharyland"), as end point
owners of the subject transmission infrastructure ("Infrastructure") required to be constructed to integrate
the Affected Load into ERCOT, to agree to the split of ownership of such infrastructure. This agreement
was accomplished through the Participation Agreement (the "PA"), entered into by and between LP&L
and Sharyland.
 
Subsequent to entering into the PA, Sharyland was acquired by merger and acquisition by Oncor Electric
Delivery Company ("Oncor"). As part of the merger and acquisition, Oncor succeeded to all benefits and
obligations of Sharyland under the PA.

Oncor had responsibility under the PA to construct 345 kV and 115 kV transmission lines, some of which
will be transferred to LP&L ownership and operation at a later date. Portions of these facilities were
constructed on land owned by the City of Lubbock, including the Hancock Land Application Site in Lynn
County. This Easement and Right-of-Way being granted to Oncor is for the transmission and
communication lines and associated equipment (the "Facilities") retained by Oncor, over, under, along, to,
from, and through land more particularly described in Exhibits A and B, attached to the Easement and
Right-of-Way across the Hancock Land Application Site.

Fiscal Impact
The fiscal impact has previously been approved by the Electric Utility Board and the City Council.



The fiscal impact has previously been approved by the Electric Utility Board and the City Council.

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager

Attachments
LPandL Resolution - Easement and ROW to Oncor 
Easement and Right-of-Way to Oncor Electric Delivery 

























   
Regular City Council Meeting 7. 12.        
Meeting Date: 06/08/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute a Street Use License
by and between the City of Lubbock and the Lubbock Cooper Independent School District for a 3-foot
wide corridor of the right-of-way of University Avenue between 137th Street and 146th Street, Lubbock,
Texas.

Item Summary
The Street Use License requested by Lubbock Cooper Independent School District is for a sanitary sewer
force main pipeline, located in the right-of-way of University Avenue, between 137th Street and 146th
Street, Lubbock, Texas. The fee for the street use license will be waived. 

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager

Attachments
Resolution - Street Use License Lubbock Cooper ISD - ROW University 
Street Use License Lubbock Cooper ISD - ROW University 
Exhibit A - Lubbock Cooper ISD - ROW University 















   
Regular City Council Meeting 7. 13.        
Meeting Date: 06/08/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute a Street Use License
by and between the City of Lubbock and 2 Sparks and Company LLC, and Burklee Hill Vineyards, LLC,
for a portion of street right-of-way at 1109 Broadway.

Item Summary
Upon authorization, this Street Use License will grant the right to 2 Sparks and Company, LLC., the right
to utilize a 450 square foot portion of the dedicated right-of-way, for semi-enclosed patio seating for the
Burklee Hill Vineyards Restaurant. The Right-of-Way Department has valued the encroachment at $6.50
per square foot, for a total cost of $2,925.00, of which 10 percent per annum shall be collected. The term of
this license will be for 2 years, extendable for successive 2-year terms, not to exceed 8 years. The license
fee for each two-year period is $585.00.

Fiscal Impact
$585.00 in revenue every 2 years to the General Fund

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager

Attachments
Resolution - SUL - 2 Sparks and Co and Burklee Hill Vineyard - 
Street Use License - 2 Sparks and Company and Burklee Hill Vineyard 
Exhibit A - SUL- 2 Sparks and Company and Burklee Hill Vineyard 

















   
Regular City Council Meeting 7. 14.        
Meeting Date: 06/08/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Engineering: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Contract 15826, with
Lone Star Dirt & Paving, Ltd., for Unpaved Roads Improvements Phase 3, for the paving of various
roadways throughout the City of Lubbock.

Item Summary
This project will improve various dirt roads with asphalt pavement.  The main components of the project
will include construction of 9,254 linear feet of curb and gutter and 21,342 square yards of asphalt. Roads
selected for improvement include 13th Street from June Avenue to Keel Avenue, 74th Street from Ash
Avenue to Elm Street, Locust Avenue from Loyola Street to Kent Street, Avenue D from 76th Street to
82nd Street, North Avenue Q from Cesar E. Chavez Drive to Bates Street, and Bates Street from North
Avenue R to North Avenue Q.

In response to RFP 21-15826-JM, 1 proposal was received and opened on April 21, 2021, as follows.
  

Contractor Amount
Lone Star Dirt & Paving, Ltd., Lubbock, Texas $1,545,570

The proposal was evaluated using the following criteria: 60 points for Price, 30 points for Contractor
Qualifications, 5 points for Safety Record, and 5 points for Construction Time, for a maximum value of
100 points. After the proposal was evaluated by a 4-person committee, the following score was
determined by the committee.
  

Contractor Points
Lone Star Dirt & Paving, Ltd., Lubbock, Texas 397

The Staff and Evaluation Committee recommend award of the unit price contract to Lone Star Dirt &
Paving, Ltd. of Lubbock, Texas, in the amount of $1,545,570. Time for substantial completion is 269
calendar days with liquidated damages of $500 per day. This contract is awarded by the unit price and
actual expenditures may be more or less depending on field conditions.

Fiscal Impact
The cost of this contract is $1,545,570.  Of this amount, $1,045,570 is funded in Capital Improvement
Project 92516 Transportation Improvements/Unimproved Roads, and $500,000 is funded by a 2018
Community Development Block Grant-Account 80065.9835.

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager



Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager

Attachments
Resolution 
Construction Contract 
Location Exhibit 
Budget Detail 
CIP Detail 
Project Summary Sheet 













IDALOU

BROADWAY

ZE
N

IT
H

SOUTHEAST

M
.L

. 
KI

N
G

 J
R
.FLIN

T

10TH

CLOVIS

M
EM

PH
IS

TEXAS TECH
U

N
IV

ER
SI

TY

TO
LE

D
O

AVE Q

SO
U
TH

U
TI

CA

IN
D

IA
N

A

W
HISPERW

OOD

Q
U

AK
ER

42ND

19TH
AV

E 
L

7TH

SL
ID

E

AS
H

MUNICIPA
L

AUBURN

D
ET

R
O

IT

34TH

MARSHA SHARP

CESAR E CHAVEZ

24TH

50TH

EL
G

IN

AV
E 

K

IN
TE

RS
TA

TE
 2

7

SALEM

AVE A

AV
E 

Q

AV
E 

U

BU
D

D
Y 

H
O

LL
Y

15TH

GLENNA GOODACRE

CORONADO

JO
LI

ET

9TH

BROWNFIE
LD

SPRUCE

4TH

18TH

PARKWAY

26TH

MAIN

5TH

8TH

As required by SECTION 1. Chapter 2051, SUBCHAPTER D.
GEOSPATIAL DATA PRODUCTS of the Government Code, the City
of Lubbock hereby provides notice that the data on this map was
created by the City of Lubbock. Any data that appears to represent
property boundaries is for informational purposes and may not
have been prepared for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or
surveying purposes. It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative location of property
boundaries.

Unpaved Road Improvements, Phase 3

0 3,000 6,000 9,000 12,000
Feet

Lubbock City Limits

Unpaved Roads Improvements Phase 3

K
E

E
L 

A
V

JU
N

E
 A

V

E 14TH ST

E 13TH ST

E BROADWAY

N
 A

V
E

 R

CESAR E CHAVEZ DR

N
 A

V
E

 P

SAN J
O

SE D
R N
 A

V
E

 Q
 D

R

BATES ST

BAYLOR ST

N
 S

H
E

R
M

A
N

 A
V

N
 A

V
E

 S

N
 A

V
E

 Q

E 74TH ST

76TH
ST

74TH
ST

C
E

D
A

R
 A

V

A
S

H
 A

V

E
LM

 A
V

E 76TH ST

E 75TH ST

E LOYOLA ST

E KENT ST

N
 L

O
C

U
S

T
 A

V

78TH ST

A
V

E
 F

81ST ST

A
V

E
 B

A
S

H
 A

V

80TH ST

E 80TH ST

A
V

E
 D

82ND ST

E 81ST ST

E 82ND ST

77TH ST

79TH ST

76TH ST

A

A

B

B

C

C D

D

E

E



Capital Project Number:

Capital Project Name:

Capital Project Number:

Capital Project Name:

Capital Project Number: 92516 80065* Total

Encumbered/Expended

City of Lubbock Staff Time 132,425$         132,425      

Professional Services 47,077             47,077        

Unpaved Road Improvements Phase 2 927,285           927,285      

Agenda Item June 8, 2021

   Unpaved Roads Improvements, Phase 3 1,045,570        500,000        1,545,570   

Encumbered/Expended To Date 2,152,358        500,000        2,652,358   

Estimated Costs for Remaining Appropriation

Roadway Improvements 147,642           -                    147,642      

Remaining Appropriation 147,642           -                    

Total Appropriation 2,300,000$      500,000        2,800,000   

*A grant in the amount of $500,000 will be provided for this project through account number 80065

City of Lubbock, TX

Capital Project 

Project Cost Detail

June 8, 2021

Transportation Improvements/Unimproved Roads

80065.9835

92516

CDBG 2018 Grant



Project Name Transportation Improvements/Unimproved Roads Project Number 92516

Managing Department

Project Manager

Project Classification

Project Status

Project Scope

Engineering

Josh Kristinek

Infrastructure Improvements

Approved

This project will fund the paving and improvement of existing local residential and collector gravel roads in existing subdivisions 

where the roads were never improved by the developer. This project will fund the design and construction of various inadequate 

transportation elements within these areas of the City including unimproved roadway surfaces, unsafe roadway widths, drainage 

improvements, street lighting, and ADA compliance. 

Start Date - In House Design:  6/11/2020

Project End Date - Design: 2/1/2021

Bid Date - Construction: 3/30/2021

Award Date for Bid - Construction: 5/11/2021

Project Start Date - Construction: 6/11/2021

Project End Date - Construction: 12/11/2021

Project Justification

Areas of the City of Lubbock have existing local residential roadways that are gravel and not improved with a paved surface. These 

roadways were part of developments where the roads were never improved by the developer. These roadways do not meet the City’s 

Standard Specification and this project will help improve mobility and safety in these residential areas.

Project History

Phase 1 including North Avenue P, Avenue N, Wabash and North Guava has been completed.  Phase 2 in-house design has been 

completed and includes Ute Avenue, 16th and 17th Streets, Beech, Avenue F, 124th Street and Salem Avenue. Construction for Phase 

2 began in March 2020 and was completed in November 2020. Phase 3 constructed expected to start in May 2021 and is estimated to 

end December 2021.  Phase 4 in – house design will include 6th, 8th, Hall, Ave, and Marlboro Ave. 

$400,000 was appropriated in the FY 2017-18 Budget, Ord. No. 2017-O0111, October 1, 2017.

$400,000 was appropriated in the FY 2018-19 Budget, Ord. No. 2018-O0109, October 1, 2018.

$400,000 was appropriated in the FY 2019-20 Budget, Ord. No. 2019-O0129, October 1, 2019.

$800,000 was appropriated in the FY 2020-21 Budget, Ord. No. 2020-O0123, October 1, 2020.

$300,000 was appropriated in FY 2020-21, BCR# 2021-13, May 17, 2021.

Unappropriated Planning Years

Appropriation Detail

Appropriation to

Date

Total Project 

Amount
FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27

Construction  2,300,000  400,000  400,000  400,000  400,000  400,000  400,000  4,700,000 

Total Project Appropriation  2,300,000  400,000  400,000  400,000  400,000  400,000  400,000  4,700,000 



Project Name Transportation Improvements/Unimproved Roads Project Number 92516

Unappropriated Planning Years

Funding to

Date

Total

FundingFunding Detail
FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27

FY 2009 Tax Supported Revenue 

CO's

 400,000  0  0  0  0  0  0  400,000 

FY 2013 General Obligation Bonds  400,000  0  0  0  0  0  0  400,000 

FY 2018 General Fund Cash  400,000  0  0  0  0  0  0  400,000 

FY 2020 General Fund Cash  300,000  0  0  0  0  0  0  300,000 

FY 2021 General Fund Cash  800,000  0  0  0  0  0  0  800,000 

FY 2022 General Fund Cash  0  400,000  0  0  0  0  0  400,000 

FY 2023 General Fund Cash  0  0  400,000  0  0  0  0  400,000 

FY 2024 General Fund Cash  0  0  0  400,000  0  0  0  400,000 

FY 2025 General Fund Cash  0  0  0  0  400,000  0  0  400,000 

FY 2026 General Fund Cash  0  0  0  0  0  400,000  0  400,000 

Total Funding Sources  2,300,000  400,000  400,000  400,000  400,000  400,000  0  4,300,000 

Unappropriated Planning Years

Total ImpactFY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27Operating Budget Impact

 0 No Impact Anticipated  0  0  0  0  0  0 

Total Operating Budget Impact  0  0  0  0  0  0  0 



 
 

 

 

Purchasing and Contract Management  

 

Project Summary 

RFP 21-15826– JM Unpaved Roads Improvements Phase 3   

 
Notice was published in the Lubbock Avalanche Journal on April 3, 2021 and April 10, 2021. 

Notice was published on Electronic State Business Daily (ESBD) State of Texas Bid 

Opportunities webpage. 

Notice was published on the Purchasing Web Site under Bid Opportunities. 

Notice was published on BidSync.com and Bonfire.com April 7, 2021 to April 21, 2021. 

1 individuals attend the pre-conference meeting.  

40 vendors viewed using BidSync.com and Bonfire.com  

13 vendors downloaded the documents. 

6 vendors were notified separately.  

1 vendor submitted proposals. 

 



   
Regular City Council Meeting 7. 15.        
Meeting Date: 06/08/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Public Works: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Contract 15875, with
MH Civil Constructors, Inc., for the construction of a brick paving project at the intersection of 13th
Street and Texas Avenue.

Item Summary
This project involves the reconstruction of the 13th Street and Texas Avenue intersection, in order to
smooth out the ride of the roadway, address drainage, and rebuild aging infrastructure.

In response to RFP 21-15875-TF, the following proposals were received and opened on May 13, 2021.
  

Contractor Amount
Speedcrete, Inc., Lubbock, Texas $714,825
MH Civil Constructors, Inc., Amarillo, Texas $722,000

The proposals were evaluated using the following criteria: 60% for Price, 30% for Contractor
Qualifications, 5% for Safety Record, and 5% for Construction Time for the maximum point value of 100
points. After the proposals were evaluated by a 5-person committee, the following ranking was obtained.
  

Contractor Points
MH Civil Constructors, Inc., Amarillo, Texas 471.75
Speedcrete, Inc., Lubbock, Texas 415.00

Staff and the Evaluation Committee recommend award of the unit price contract to the highest ranked
proposer, MH Civil Constructors, Inc. of Amarillo, Texas, in the amount of $722,000. Time for substantial
completion is 90 calendar days from notice to proceed. This contract is awarded by the unit price and
actual expenditures may be more or less depending on field conditions.

Fiscal Impact
This contract amount is $722,000 and is funded in Capital Improvement Project 92697, Street
Maintenance 2021.

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager



Attachments
Resolution 
Contract 
Budget Detail 
Project Summary 
CIP Detail 



RESOLUTION 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LUBBOCK: 

THAT the Mayor of the City of Lubbock is hereby authorized and directed to execute 
for and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, Public Works Contract No. 15875 for the Brick 
Paving Project 13th Street and Texas Avenue as per RFP 21-15875-TF, by and between the 
City of Lubbock and MH Civil Constructors, Inc., of Amarillo, Texas, and related 
documents. Said Contract is attached hereto and incorporated in this resolution as if fully set 
forth herein and shall be included in the minutes of the City Council. 

Passed by the City Council on _ _ ___________ _ 

DANIEL M. POPE, MAYOR 

ATTEST: 

Rebecca Garza, City Secretary 

APPROVED AS TO CONTENT: 

Jesica 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

K~e:~omey 
ccdocs/RES.Contract 15875 - Brick Paving Project 13th Street and Texas Avenue 
May 24, 2021 

 



PROPOSAL SUBMITTAL FORM 

UNIT PRICE PROPOSAL CONTRACT 

DATE: _______________________________________ 

PROJECT NUMBER:  RFP 21-15875-TF Brick Paving Project 13th Street and Texas Avenue 

Proposal of _________________________________________________________________ (hereinafter 

called Offeror) 

To the Honorable Mayor and City Council City of Lubbock, Texas (hereinafter called Owner) 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

The Offeror, in compliance with your Request for Proposals for the Brick Paving Project 13th Street and 

Texas Avenue having carefully examined the plans, specifications, instructions to offerors, notice to offerors 

and all other related contract documents and the site of the intended work, and being familiar with all of the 

conditions surrounding the construction of the intended project including the availability of materials and 

labor, hereby intends to furnish all labor, materials, and supplies; and to construct the project in accordance 

with the plans, specifications and contract documents, within the time set forth therein and at the price stated 

below.  The price to cover all expenses incurred in performing the work required under the contract 

documents.  

ITEM DESCRIPTION 
QTY 

(+/-) 
U/M UNIT COST EXTENDED COST 

GENERAL 

1 MOBILIZATION 1 LS   

2 TRAFFIC CONTROL 1 MO   

3 
STORM WATER PREVENTION 

POLLUTION PLAN 
1 LS   

ROADWAY 

4 
ASPLHALT REMOVAL 
INCLUDES REMOVAL OF ASPHALT 

FROM AREA OF REPAVING 

391 SY   

5 

REMOVAL AND SALVAGE OF 

BRICK PAVING 
INCLUDES REMOVING/PALLETIZING 

BRICKS 

1410 SY   

6 

HISTORIC BRICK PAVING 
INCLUDES LAYING 1" OF SAND AND 

RE-LAYING BRICKS. INCLUDES 

TRANSPORTING ANY ADDITIONAL 

QUANTITY OF BRICKS NEEDED TO 

COMPLETE THE WORK 

1410 SY   

jond
Text Box
May 13, 2021

jond
Text Box
MH Civil Constructors, Inc.

jond
Text Box
$43,825.00

jond
Text Box
$15,000.00

jond
Text Box
$13,000.00

jond
Text Box
$43,825.00

jond
Text Box
$15,000.00

jond
Text Box
$13,000.00

jond
Text Box
$17,204.00

jond
Text Box
$44.00

jond
Text Box
$48.00

jond
Text Box
$67,680.00

jond
Text Box
$231.00

jond
Text Box
$325,710.00



 

 

 

 

 

 

ITEM DESCRIPTION 
QTY 

(+/-) 
U/M UNIT COST EXTENDED COST 

7 

6"CONCRETE SUBLAYER UNDER 

BRICK PAVING 

INCLUDES REWORKING AND 

COMPACTION OF SUBGRADE, ANY 

ADDITIONAL SUBGRADE REQUIRED 

TO MEET LAYER ELEVATION, 

POURING, FORMING AND FINISHING 

OF CONCRETE ACCORDING TO COL 

STANDARDS AND SPECIFICATIONS 

1410 SY   

8 

CROSSWALK BRICK PAVING  

INCLUDES PAVERS, LABOR, TOOLS 

AND SAND TO PLACE BRICK 

PAVERS PER COL STANDARDS AND 

SPECIFICATIONS 

39 SY   

9 

2" HMAC COL TYPE C - ASPHALT 

TRANSITION 

INCLUDES FURNISHING ALL 

MATERIALS AND LABOR 

ASSOCIATED WITH COMPLETING 

THE WORK 

34 SY   

10 

CURB AND GUTTER AND OTHER 

MISCELLANEOUS CONCRETE 

REMOVAL 

1545 LF   

11 

24" COL TYPE A CURB AND GUTTER 

WITH EXPANSION BOARD (HEIGHT 

VARIES) 

260 LF   

12 6" CONCRETE GUTTER REPAIR 13 SY   

13 
6" CONCRETE VALLEY GUTTER AND 

FILLET 
330 SY   

14 FLOWABLE-FILL 60 CY   

15 
MANHOLE AND VALVE BOX 

ADJUSTMENTS 
2 EA   

jond
Text Box
$82.00

jond
Text Box
$115,620.00

jond
Text Box
$231.00

jond
Text Box
$9,009.00

jond
Text Box
$264.00

jond
Text Box
$8,976.00

jond
Text Box
$10.00

jond
Text Box
$15,450.00

jond
Text Box
$35.00

jond
Text Box
$9,100.00

jond
Text Box
$82.00

jond
Text Box
$1,066.00

jond
Text Box
$82.00

jond
Text Box
$27,060.00

jond
Text Box
$180.00

jond
Text Box
$10,800.00

jond
Text Box
$1,000.00

jond
Text Box
$2,000.00



 

  

PROPOSED CONSTRUCTION TIME: 

1. Contractors proposed CONSTRUCTION TIME for completion:  

TOTAL CONSECUTIVE CALENDAR DAYS:                              (to Substantial Completion) 

TOTAL CONSECUTIVE CALENDAR DAYS:                              (to Final Completion) 

(not to exceed 90 consecutive calendar days to Substantial Completion / 120 consecutive calendar days to 

Final Completion). 

 

 

 

 

 

ITEM DESCRIPTION 
QTY 

(+/-) 
U/M UNIT COST EXTENDED COST 

16 

REPAIR AND REPLACE 

STORMWATER INLETS. 
INLCUDES, REMOVAL OF EXISTING 

TOPS AND REBAR, USE OF EXISTING 

STEEL IS PREFERRED/DOWELS TO 

BE REPLACED ONLY IF 

CORRODED/DETRERIORATED, 

CLEANING BOX AFTER REMOVAL 

OF TOP, PLACING STEEL/REBAR 

AND POURING NEW CONCRETE AND 

ANY MISCELLANEOUS 

CORRESPONDING MATERIALS AND 

LABOR ASSOCIATED WITH 

COMPLETION OF REPAIRS 

3 EA   

17 

SIDEWALK REPAIRS 
INCLUDES REMOVAL OF EXISTING 

AND REPLACING ACCORDING TO 

DRAWINGS AND C.O.L. 

SPECIFICATIONS 

50 SY   

18 

ADA RAMPS 

INCLUDES CONSTRUCTING RAMPS 

ACCORDING TO DRAWINGS AND 

C.O.L. SPECIFICATIONS and Meeting all 

TDLR REQUIREMENTS 

2 EA   

19 
3" SCHEDULE 80 CONDUIT AND 

FITTINGS 
70 LF   

Total (Items 1-19)   $ 

jond
Text Box
$5,500.00

jond
Text Box
$16,500.00

jond
Text Box
$160.00

jond
Text Box
$8,000.00

jond
Text Box
$4,500.00

jond
Text Box
$9,000.00

jond
Text Box
$100.00

jond
Text Box
$7,000.00

jond
Text Box
$722,000.00

jond
Text Box
90

jond
Text Box
120







Capital Project Number:

Capital Project Name:

Budget

Encumbered/Expended

Contract 15647 2021 Asphalt Repair 1,540,730$           

Contract 15648 2021 Concrete Repair 1,445,700             

Contract 14517 Amendment Rejuvinator 2021 1,100,000             

  Contract 15772, 2021 MicroSurfacing 3,488,251             

  Contract  15778, Wausau Avenue (S. of 82nd St) Rebuild 346,475                

Asplundh Tree Expert LLC 69,546                  

Agenda Items June 8, 2021

Contract 15875, MH Civil Constructors - 13th & Texas 722,000                

Encumbered/Expended To Date 8,712,702             

Estimated Costs for Remaining Appropriation

Construction 2,142,313             

Remaining Appropriation 2,142,313             

Total Appropriation To Date 10,855,015$         

Street Maintenance Program 2021

City of Lubbock, TX

Capital Project 

Project Cost Detail

June 8, 2021

92697



 
 

 

 

Purchasing and Contract Management  

 

Project Summary 

 
RFP 21-15875-TF Brick Paving Project 13th Street and Texas Avenue   

  

Notice was published in the Lubbock Avalanche Journal on April 25 & May 2, 2021. 

Notice was published on the Purchasing Web Site under Bid Opportunities. 

Notice was published on BidSync.com and Bonfire.com from April 25 to May 13, 2021. 

7 individuals attended the pre-proposal conference. 

65 vendors viewed using BidSync.com and Bonfire.com.  

34 vendors downloaded the documents. 

7 vendors were notified separately.  

2 vendors submitted a proposal. 

 



Project Name Street Maintenance 2021 Project Number 92697

Managing Department

Project Manager

Project Classification

Project Status

Project Scope

Streets

Mike Gilliland

Upgrade/Major Maintenance

Approved

Micro-surfacing, asphalt rejuvenation, asphalt milling, asphalt milling and overlay, full or partial depth pavement repair, total 

reconstruction, patching, crack sealing, concrete joint sealing, and brick street repair.

Project Justification

The project is a preventive maintenance program to help preserve and maintain our street infrastructure.  The maintenance program is 

an essential tool to help extend the useful life of the pavement.  Used early in a pavement's life, preventative maintenance corrects 

small problems before they become big problems, saves money, and improves safety and rideability.  At some point, all roads require 

total rehabilitation as they near the end of their useful life.  Total rehabilitation is completed when funding is available.

Project History

$10,000,000 was appropriated in the FY 2020-21 Budget, Ord. No. 2020-O0123, October 1, 2020.

$1,155,015 was appropriated in FY 2020-21, BCR# 2021-9, April 23, 2021.

Reduced appropriation by $300,000 in FY 2020-21, BCR# 2021-13,  May 17, 2021.

Unappropriated Planning Years

Appropriation Detail

Appropriation to

Date

Total Project 

Amount
FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27

Construction  10,855,015  11,000,000  12,000,000  13,000,000  14,000,000  15,000,000  0  75,855,015 

Total Project Appropriation  10,855,015  11,000,000  12,000,000  13,000,000  14,000,000  15,000,000  0  75,855,015 

Unappropriated Planning Years

Funding to

Date

Total

FundingFunding Detail
FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27

FY 2020 General Fund Cash  855,015  0  0  0  0  0  0  855,015 

FY 2021 General Fund Cash  10,000,000  0  0  0  0  0  0  10,000,000 

FY 2022 General Fund Cash  0  11,000,000  0  0  0  0  0  11,000,000 

FY 2023 General Fund Cash  0  0  12,000,000  0  0  0  0  12,000,000 

FY 2024 General Fund Cash  0  0  0  13,000,000  0  0  0  13,000,000 

FY 2025 General Fund Cash  0  0  0  0  14,000,000  0  0  14,000,000 

FY 2026 General Fund Cash  0  0  0  0  0  15,000,000  0  15,000,000 

Total Funding Sources  10,855,015  11,000,000  12,000,000  13,000,000  14,000,000  15,000,000  0  75,855,015 



   
Regular City Council Meeting 7. 16.        
Meeting Date: 06/08/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Water Utilities: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Amendment No. 1
to Professional Services Agreement 15597, by and between the City of Lubbock and HDR Engineering,
Inc., to perform dam inspection and evaluation services.

Item Summary
The Brazos River Authority (BRA) completed the construction of the John T. Montford Dam in October
1993, creating Lake Alan Henry.  In August 2005, ownership and management of the project transferred
from the BRA to the City of Lubbock. HDR performed an initial inspection of the dam in June 2005, prior
to the project transfer, to determine if conditions existed that could threaten the safety of the dam or lead
to major capital expenditures or increased operation and maintenance costs.  In 2011, HDR conducted an
inspection to follow up on issues from the 2005 inspection, and to assist the City with budgeting potential
capital improvements and maintenance expenditures at the dam.
 
On October 30, 2020, the City contracted with HDR to perform periodic inspections of the John T.
Montford Dam.  These inspections were performed in December 2020. The information collected during
these inspections was used to create a prioritized list of recommendations for maintenance and monitoring
of the dam and appurtenant structures. 
 
Amendment No. 1 to the HDR agreement expands the original scope of services to allow HDR to prepare
a dam surveillance and monitoring plan that will document current procedures and provide refinement to
the scheduled periodic inspections of the dam.  The plan will include establishing threshold and action
levels based on data being collected through routine maintenance and future inspections.

Fiscal Impact
$21,350 is the cost of this contract amendment and is funded in Capital Improvement Project 8543 Lake
Alan Henry Repairs and Maintenance. 

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager

Attachments
Resolution- HDR-DamInspect-A1 
Contract-HDR-DamInspect-A1 
CIP Detail 
CIP 8543 Budget Detail 





























Project Name Lake Alan Henry Repairs/Maintenance Project Number 8543

Managing Department

Project Manager

Project Classification

Project Status

Project Scope

Public Works Engineering

John Turpin

Upgrade/Major Maintenance

Approved

Maintenance and repairs associated with the John T. Montford Dam at Lake Alan Henry. Maintenance and repairs are restricted to the 

dam, spillway, and structures associated with the John T. Montford Dam. Maintenance and repair projects will be evaluated and 

implemented based on importance related to the structure and safety of the dam. One project that will be considered will be erosion 

control on the dam and around the spillway.  Erosion has caused decreased stability in the soils on the dam and around the spillway 

that has resulted in sedimentation buildup in the spillway. 

FY 17-18 - budget for Piezometer Installation along the Lake Alan Henry Dam

Project Justification

Maintenance and repairs necessary to maintain and operate the dam and structures associated with the operation of the facilities.

Project History

Instrumentation has been completed for this project.

$505,889 was appropriated in FY 2008-09 Budget, Ord. No. 2008-O0077, October 1, 2008.

$2.0 million was appropriated in the FY 2010-11 Budget, Ord. No. 2010-O0070, October 1, 2010.

$3.0 million was appropriated in the FY 2011-12 Budget, Ord. No. 2011-O0080, October 1, 2011.

$2.0 million was appropriated in the FY 2012-13 Budget, Ord. No. 2012-O0100, October 1, 2012.

Reduced appropriation by $2.5 million in FY 2015-16 Budget Amendment No. 8, Budget Ord. No. 2015-O0120, December 3, 2015.

Unappropriated Planning Years

Appropriation Detail

Appropriation to

Date

Total Project 

Amount
FY 2020-21 FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26

Construction  5,005,889  0  0  0  0  0  0  5,005,889 

Total Project Appropriation  5,005,889  0  0  0  0  0  0  5,005,889 

Unappropriated Planning Years

Funding to

Date

Total

FundingFunding Detail
FY 2020-21 FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26

FY 2011 Water Revenue CO's  4,000,000  0  0  0  0  0  0  4,000,000 

FY 2012 Water Revenue CO's  500,000  0  0  0  0  0  0  500,000 

LAH Repair/Replacement Fund  505,889  0  0  0  0  0  0  505,889 

Total Funding Sources  5,005,889  0  0  0  0  0  0  5,005,889 



Capital Project Number:

Capital Project Name:

 Budget

Encumbered/Expended

Dam Maint. & Repair Contracts (2008 - 2019) 4,850,416$        

  HDR- Dam Inspection & Evaluation - Original Contract (2020) 49,981               

Agenda Item June 8, 2021

  HDR- Dam Inspection & Evaluation - Amendment No. 1 21,350               

Encumbered/Expended To Date 4,921,747          

Estimated Costs for Remaining Appropriation

Additional Dam Maintenance & Repair Issues 84,142               

Remaining Appropriation 84,142               

Total Appropriation 5,005,889$        

City of Lubbock, TX

8543

Lake Alan Henry Repairs/Maintenance

Capital Project 

Project Cost Detail

June 8, 2021



   
Regular City Council Meeting 7. 17.        
Meeting Date: 06/08/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Public Transit Services: Consider a resolution ratifying the act of the City Manager in
executing, on behalf of the City of Lubbock, a Regional Transit District Transportation Services
Agreement and an Amendment thereto with SafeRide, Inc., for Medical Transportation Services by Citibus.

Item Summary
The agreement for Regional Transit District Transportation Services and the Amendment will provide a
network of transportation providers who provide non-medical transportation services, non-emergency
medical transportation services, and a technology platform to manage the ordering of transportation
services by and between the City of Lubbock and SafeRide, Inc. The non-emergency medical
transportation trips will be provided by Citibus. 
 
This Agreement will commence on the Effective Date and continue for 12 months (“Initial Term”).
Thereafter, the Agreement will automatically renew for additional 12-month periods (“Renewal Terms”)
unless either Party provides the other with written notice of its intent not to renew at least 45 days prior to
the end of the then current term.  
 
The rate structure for the contract is reflected in the chart below. 

Class of Services Load Fee Price per Mile
Ambulatory Passengers $20.00 $2.00
Non-Ambulatory Passengers $30.00 $2.00

Effective June 1, 2021, the State moved the non-emergency medical transportation services to be brokered
by the health plan companies providing Medicaid coverage.  SafeRide has partnered with Superior Health
Plans to manage the ordering of transportation services on their behalf.  Under this agreement Citibus will
be part of a network that provides non-emergency medical transportation in the city of Lubbock.

Fiscal Impact
The amount of revenue generated from this agreement will be dependent on the number of non-emergency
medical transportation trips provided by Citibus. The revenue from this contract will be available for a
local match for Citibus grants, making this a valuable asset for budgets FY 2021 and beyond.

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager  
 



Attachments
SafeRide Resolution 
SafeRide Contract 6-21 
SafeRide Amendment (c) 
SafeRide Memo of Ratification 





 

1  

REGIONAL TRANSIT DISTRICT 

TRANSPORTATION SERVICES AGREEMENT 

 

This Regional Transit District Transportation Services Agreement (“Agreement”) is entered into by SafeRide, Inc., a 

Delaware corporation with an address of 6125 Washington Blvd, Suite 200, Culver City, CA 90232 (“SafeRide”) and                  

___________                                                                     , a ________                     corporation with an address of ________                                     

("Company") effective______       __, 2021 (“Effective Date”). SafeRide and Company may be referred to herein 

individually, as “Party” and/or collectively, “Parties”. 

 

WHEREAS, SafeRide has entered into arrangements with health plans, health care providers and others (“Clients”), under 

which it provides certain services to manage non-emergent, medical transportation to Client’s members (“Members”), a 

network of transportation providers who provide non-medical transportation services and non-emergency, medical 

transportation services (collectively, “Transportation Services”), and a technology platform to manage the ordering of 

transportation services (SafeRideManager®”), and 

 

WHEREAS, Company desires to provide Transportation Services to Client’s Members under SafeRide’s arrangements 

with Clients (“SafeRide Programs”), as further defined below. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual premises and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt 

and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the Parties agree as follows.  

 

A. Obligations and Responsibilities of Company and Users.: 

 

1. Company shall: 

a. Provide Transportation Services as set forth on Exhibit A, in accordance with applicable law and as may 

be required by certain rules and regulations applicable to services provided to beneficiaries of state or 

federally funded insurance programs. 

b. Ensure driver and vehicle standards (“Standards”), as more specifically set forth on Exhibit A, are 

maintained at all times, during the Term. Upon SafeRide’s request, Company shall provide 

documentation and records, either in electronic or hard-copy format, which verify compliance with the 

Standards within seven (7) business days of such request. Should Company fail to provide SafeRide with 

documentation demonstrating compliance with the Standards, SafeRide, in its sole discretion, may 

suspend provision of Services and access to SafeRideManager® until Company adequately demonstrates 

compliance with the Standards. 

c. Deliver Transportation Services consistent with those provided by Company to riders outside SafeRide 

Programs. Company shall not discriminate on the basis of age, race, color, creed, religion, gender, sex, 

sexual preference, national origin, place of residence, health status, health insurance benefits, type of 

payor or source of payment (e.g. Medicare, Medicaid or other state health care program), income level, 

the filing of a complaint or grievance, a physical or mental disability or veteran status. Company will 

ensure that those facilities where vehicles are stored and/or maintained, as well as the corporate offices, 

are accessible as required by Title III of the Americans With Disabilities Act of 1991. 

d. Comply with requirements set forth in SafeRide Programs from time-to time, as well as applicable 

policies, procedures, rules, and regulations in such SafeRide Programs. Additional requirements shall be 

set forth in an exhibit hereto. 

e. Permit SafeRide and/or a Client with reasonable access to its facilities to enable SafeRide or Client to 

perform compliance reviews under a SafeRide Program. 

f. Report communications from riders expressing dissatisfaction with Transportation Services to SafeRide 

within 24 hours of being received.  

g. Ensure that is employees and independent contractors who will be in contact with Members or who will 

have access to Members’ personal information and personal health information, have been properly 

trained, including training with regard to the confidentiality of such information. Company agrees it shall 

obtain from all non-employees or subcontractors who have access to Members, or a Member’s personal 

information a business associate agreement substantially in the form as that which is required to be signed 

by Company, and which is attached hereto as Exhibit E. 



 

2  

h. Not use SafeRideManager® other than as expressly permitted by this Agreement. Company agrees it will 

not download, attempt to download or otherwise copy SafeRideManager®’s software, nor decompile, 

disassemble, or otherwise attempt to derive source code from SafeRideManager® software, or use 

SafeRideManager® in a manner inconsistent with the terms of www.SafeRideHealth.com. A breach of the 

Terms shall be considered a breach of this Agreement. 

2. Company represents and warrants that enrollment information provided by Company, its officers, directors, and 

employees is accurate as of the date of completion of the enrollment process. 

3. If Company utilizes SafeRideManager® for scheduling transportation services outside of a SafeRide 

contracted program, Company shall obtain necessary consents from passengers in order to allow 

SafeRideManager® to create, store, distribute and/or transmit protected health information. 

4. Company acknowledges and agrees that it is responsible for warranties it makes to third parties with respect to 

the Services or SafeRideManager® and shall indemnify and hold SafeRide harmless for any costs and 

expenses it incurs as a result of a breach of such warranties, unless SafeRide is in any way responsible for such 

breach. 

 

B. Obligations and Responsibilities of SafeRide. 

 

1. Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, SafeRide will provide Company with certain services 

and access to SafeRideManager®, as further set forth in Exhibit B (“Services”).  

2. SafeRide shall reimburse Company for Transportation Services in accordance with Exhibit C. 

3. SafeRide shall update and maintain its website Terms of Service and Privacy Policy (“Terms”), found at 

www.saferidehealth.com (“Website”). 

 

C. Restrictive Covenants.  

 

Company acknowledges and agrees that SafeRide has invested substantial time, money and resources in the 

development of its Confidential Information, as that term is defined in Paragraph F below, and in the development and 

retention of its Clients, collaborators, and employees.  

 

Company acknowledges that Company may be introduced to Clients and collaborators and agrees that “goodwill” 

associated with Clients, collaborators and employees, belongs exclusively to SafeRide. In recognition of the 

foregoing, Company acknowledges and agrees, that during the Term and for a period of 1 year thereafter, Company 

will not directly, or indirectly, in any capacity, engage in the following activities for itself or for another person, 

business, corporation, partnership or other entity:  

 

1. refer, request, solicit, induce, hire (or attempt or assist in doing any of these actions) either as employees or 

independent contractors, any employee or other persons (including consultants) who may have performed work 

or services for SafeRide during the Term to perform services for any person or entity other than SafeRide. 

Company acknowledges that loss or damage resulting from a breach of this Section C is difficult to ascertain, 

however a sum equal to two times the salary and benefits SafeRide has paid a former employee or contractor is a 

reasonable estimate of its damages and a payment equal to that amount shall be due and payable upon demand by 

SafeRide; and 

2. advise, counsel or solicit any Member to end his or her enrollment with a Client, and will not solicit any Member 

to become enrolled with any other health maintenance organization, or other hospitalization or medical payment 

plan or insurance policy, for any reason. 

 

D. Limitation of Liability. 

1. In the event of a claim for loss or injury, Company shall look first to its insurers to recover damages.  

2. Neither Party shall be liable to the other for consequential, exemplary, indirect, special, punitive or incidental 

damages, including without limitation, lost profits, even if the other Party otherwise liable has been advised of 

the possibility of such damages. 

3. SafeRide shall have no liability to Company for actual or alleged infringement by third-party products or 

applications available through SafeRideManager®.  

 

http://www.saferidehealth.com/


 

3  

E. Indemnification. To the extent permitted by law, Company agrees to defend, indemnify and hold SafeRide, and its 

officers, directors, managers, shareholders, partners, Clients, Members, employees, agents and affiliates, harmless 

from and against any and all claims, actions, costs, damages, liabilities, penalties, proceedings, suits or demands made 

against SafeRide ("Third Party Claim(s)") arising from, in connection with, or regarding i) Company’s negligence or 

intentional misconduct in the performance of services hereunder, ii) an act or omission by Company, or its Users, 

which would constitute a violation of law, including without limitation, HIPAA, and iii) a breach by Company of any 

term or condition of this Agreement. Any obligation of indemnification hereunder extends to any negligent or willful 

misconduct of Company’s Users, drivers, officers, directors, employees, contractors, consultants and/or agents.  

 

To the extent permitted by law, SafeRide agrees to defend, indemnify and hold Company, and its officers, directors, 

managers, partners, Clients, Members, employees, agents and affiliates, harmless from and against any and all claims, 

actions, costs, damages, liabilities, penalties, proceedings, suits or demands made against Company  ("Third Party 

Claim(s)") arising from, in connection with, or regarding i) SafeRide’s negligence or intentional misconduct in the 

performance of services hereunder, ii) an act or omission by SafeRide, or its officers, directors, managers, shareholders, 

partners, Clients, Members, employees, agents and affiliates, which would constitute a violation of law, including 

without limitation, HIPAA, and iii) a breach by SafeRide of any term or condition of this Agreement. Any obligation 

of indemnification hereunder extends to any negligent or willful misconduct of SafeRide’s officers, directors, 

managers, shareholders, partners, employees, agents and affiliates. 

 

F. Confidential Information. SafeRide and Company each agree to keep confidential, and to use only for purposes of 

performing under this Agreement, proprietary or confidential information of the other Party disclosed pursuant to this 

Agreement which is marked as confidential or which could reasonably be considered of a proprietary or confidential 

nature (“Confidential Information”). Except as otherwise permitted by this Section, the terms of this Agreement are 

confidential. 

The obligation of confidentiality shall not apply to: information which is already public at the time of its disclosure or 

becomes public through no unlawful act of the receiving Party; is known by the receiving Party at the time of disclosure 

as evidenced in writing; is rightfully obtained from a third party who has the right to disclose it; or which is required by 

a court to be disclosed following sufficient notice to the disclosing Party of a motion to obtain a court order to such 

effect.  

A disclosing Party's Confidential Information remains the property of the disclosing Party. Upon termination of this 

Agreement, the receiving Party will return the disclosing Party's Confidential Information to the disclosing Party, and 

all copies thereof, which are in the possession or control of the receiving Party unless otherwise provided in this 

Agreement.  

During the Term, either Party may use the other Party’s name and may reference this Agreement in press releases, 

articles, brochures, marketing materials, advertisements and other publicity, subject to the other Party’s prior written 

approval, which approval will not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed; provided that such use is not in 

violation of laws, including without limitation, laws relating to unfair advertising, and does not knowingly injure the 

goodwill of a Party or otherwise damage its trademarks and service marks. 

 

G. Term and Termination. 
 

1. Term. This Agreement will commence on the Effective Date and continue for twelve (12) months (“Initial 

Term”). Thereafter, the Agreement will automatically renew for additional twelve (12) month periods 

(“Renewal Terms”) unless either Party provides the other with written notice of its intent not to renew at least 

forty-five (45) days prior to the end of the then current term. The Initial Term and any Renewal Terms may be 

collectively referred to herein as “Term.” 

 

2. Termination.  

a. Without Cause. Either Party may terminate this Agreement by providing 30 days written notice to the other. 

b. For Cause. Either Party may terminate this Agreement immediately by giving written notice to the other of 

such termination upon the occurrence of any of the following: 

i. a material breach of this Agreement and failure to cure such breach within 30 days of receipt of 

written notice thereof; 



 

4  

ii. an assignment for the benefit of creditors, insolvency or inability to pay debts in the ordinary 

course of business; 

iii. proceedings are instituted by or against a Party in bankruptcy or under insolvency laws or for 

reorganization, receivership or dissolution, or 
iv. SafeRide upon receipt of notice or belief that Company or Users are violating obligations imposed 

by HIPAA or other federal or state privacy laws. 

 

3. Effect of Termination. Upon termination of this Agreement, the Parties will immediately secure and store 

Confidential Information it has in its possession or under its control for the greater of 4 (four) years or as may 

be required by applicable  State or  Federal law, or as may be required by a Medicare or Medicaid program 

requirement. To the extent that SafeRide has claims against Company or Company has claims against SafeRide, 

SafeRide and Company may elect to hold and preserve Confidential Information which may be required for use 

in a court proceeding or arbitration, until final resolution of such claims.  

 

H. Insurance.  

1. During the Term, Company shall maintain the following insurance, at its sole cost and expense.  The amounts 

of such insurance coverages shall be maintained at the greater of i) that set forth below, or ii) as required by 

state or federal law, including that which may be required by Medicare or an applicable state Medicaid program 

requirement (i.e. see NEMT Manual):  

a. Workers’ compensation insurance, in amounts required by State and Federal law, and / or relevant 

Medicare or Medicaid requirements, but in no event less than $300,000. Company shall require its agents 

or independent contractors to maintain similar insurance. If such agents or independent contractors fail to 

maintain such insurance, Company will ensure agents and independent contractors are covered by 

Company’s insurance, or they are specifically prohibited from providing Transportation Services 

hereunder. 

b. Commercial General Liability insurance of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence. 

c. Sexual Abuse and Molestation insurance of not less than $500,000 per occurrence or $500,000 in the 

aggregate. 

d. Comprehensive Automobile Liability insurance covering the operation of all automobiles used in 

connection with the performance of this Agreement, in an amount of not less than the greater of $500,000 

or as required under the laws of the state in which Transportation Services are rendered, covering the 

operation of automobiles to be used by Company or its officers, employees or agents in connection with 

the performance of Transportation Services hereunder.  

e. SafeRide shall be named as an additional insured on the above policies, and policies shall be written as 

primary coverage and not contributing with, or in excess of, coverage that SafeRide may carry. 

2. On the Effective Date, and upon renewal of a policy during the Term, Company shall provide SafeRide with a 

certificate of insurance and policy endorsement for the policies required above. Company’s insurance shall not 

be materially changed, canceled, not renewed or terminated unless SafeRide is provided at least thirty (30) days 

prior written notice and certificates evidencing new insurance policies meeting the requirements of this section. 

 

3. The above insurances shall be occurrence-based policies. In the event Company obtains claims-made insurance 

coverage, it shall also obtain appropriate “tail coverage” for claims made after the Term but occurring during the 

Term. 

 

I.  Compliance with Laws/Laws Governing Health Information.  

1. Each Party agrees to comply with applicable laws, rules and regulations, including, but not limited to, laws 

governing health information privacy, internet regulations and applicable export laws. Simultaneously with the 

execution of this Agreement, Company shall enter into the Subcontractor Business Associate Agreement 

attached hereto as Exhibit F.  

 

2. CDC Guidance for Transportation of Persons Under Investigation (“PUI”) and COVID-19 Members. On March 

10, 2020, the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (“CDC”) issued Interim Guidance for Emergency 

Medical Services (“EMS”) Systems and 911 Public Safety Answering Points (“PSAPs”) for COVID-19 in the 

United States outlining certain steps to be taken to mitigate the risk of spreading Covid-19 “(CDC Guidance”). 



 

5  

If Company elects to provide transport to PUI or COVID-19 passengers, Company acknowledges and agrees 

that it shall comply with such CDC Guidance.  

 

3. As of the Effective Date, neither Company, nor its owners, principals, officers, directors, employees or other 

affiliated entities or persons are identified on the Federal Department of Health and Human Services Exclusions 

List (“Exclusions List”) found at oig.hhs.gov/exclusions. Company will notify SafeRide within five (5) business 

days if, during the Term, Company or an owner, principal, officer, director, employee or affiliated party has 

been placed on the Exclusions List. 

 

J. Miscellaneous. 

1. Amendment. Except as otherwise expressly provided herein, this Agreement may only be modified in writing 

and signed by an authorized representative of each Party. 

 

2. Notices. Notices hereunder must be in writing and will be deemed given when delivered personally at the address 

below the signature blocks, by email (with confirmation of receipt), or on the third business day after deposit 

with the U.S. Post Office (registered or certified, return receipt requested), or by date of delivery if by other 

courier.  

 

3. Assignment. Company may not assign this Agreement or its rights or obligations hereunder without SafeRide’s 

prior, written consent. 

 

4. Force Majeure. Neither Party shall be responsible for delays, errors, failures to perform, interruptions or 

disruptions in Transportation Services or SafeRideManager® caused by or resulting from an act, omission or 

condition beyond its control, whether or not foreseeable or identified, including without limitation acts of God, 

strikes, lockouts, riots, acts of war, governmental regulations, fire, power failure, earthquakes, severe weather, 

floods, epidemic or pandemic, or other natural disaster, or third party breaches of the SafeRideManager®. 

 
5. Governing Law and Venue. This Agreement will be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of 

the state of Texas exclusive of its conflict of law principles. Venue for any lawsuit involving this agreement shall 

be in _______            County, Texas. 

 

6. Independent Contractors. Nothing contained in this Agreement is intended or is to be construed to create a 

partnership, joint venture or agency relationship between SafeRide and Company or its employees or agents. 

 

7. Severability. If a provision of this Agreement is held invalid, illegal or unenforceable, such provision will be 

reformed only to the extent necessary and in such a manner to effect the original intention of the Parties with all 

remaining provisions continuing in full force and effect.  

 

8. Waiver. A failure by either Party to enforce a provision of this Agreement shall not operate as a waiver of that 

provision or any subsequent breach of the same or a different kind. In actions or proceedings between the Parties, 

the prevailing Party shall be entitled to recover its costs, including reasonable attorney fees. 

 

9. Survival.  Sections C, D, E F, H, G.3. and I shall survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement. 

 

10. Publicity and On-site Demonstrations. With prior written approval by Company, Company acknowledges and 

agrees that SafeRide may use Company’s name, location and Services it has licensed, in standard press releases 

and in SafeRide’s publications. At a time of day convenient for Company and with the permission of the 

Company, SafeRide may take interested parties to the Company premises to demonstrate SafeRideManager’s®. 

 

Signature page follows  



 

6  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereby execute this Agreement effective as of the Effective Date. 

SAFERIDE, INC.    ________  

By: ___________________   By: ______________________ 

Name (Printed): Whitney Schrader  Name (Printed):_______________ 

Title: Head of Network    Title: 

Date:      Date:  

Address:     Address:  

6125 Washington Blvd, 2nd Floor 

Culver City, CA 90232 

  



 

7  

EXHIBIT A 

 

SERVICE LEVEL AGREEMENT/DRIVER AND VEHICLE STANDARDS 

 

A. Service Levels Agreement.  

a. The following definitions apply to this Exhibit A: 

i. “Advance Ride” means a ride assigned to Company prior to 4:30 PM local time on the calendar 

day prior to the ride day. 

ii. “Same Day Ride” means a ride assigned to Company on the same calendar day as the pickup 

time. 

iii. “A-LEG Ride” means a ride to care that has a scheduled appointment time. 

iv. “B-LEG Ride” means a ride from care that has only a scheduled pickup time. 

v. “Pick up time” means the scheduled pickup time in SafeRideManager®. 

vi. “Drop off time” means the scheduled drop off time SafeRideManager® 

vii. “Confirmed Ride” means a ride with the confirmation status set to “Confirmed” by Company. It 

is an indication that the Company is committed to fulfilling the ride. 

viii. “Fulfilled Ride” means a ride in which the Company delivered the rider to, or from, care, 

regardless of on-time performance.  

ix. “Service Area” means the zip codes/counties as is set forth on the applicable rate card. 

 

B. Service Levels 
SafeRide’s service levels are defined in our SafeRide Health NEMT handbook. Standard Service Levels are 

defined below.  Any additional SafeRide Program specific requirements will be shared with Company before 

those service levels are enforced. Company agrees it shall meet or exceed the following service level 

 

a. On-Time Performance (measured monthly) 

i. 95% of Advanced Rides On-Time defined as: 

1. A-Leg: Arrive less than 60 minutes prior to scheduled drop off time. 

2. B-Leg: Pick within 30 minutes after the scheduled pick-up time 

ii. 95% of Same Day Rides On-Time defined as: 

1. A-Leg: Arrive less than 60 minutes prior to a scheduled drop off time 

2. B-Leg: Pick up within 30 minutes after the scheduled pick up-time 

iii. 90% of On-Demand Hospital Discharge Rides On-Time defined as: 

1. B-Leg: Pick-up within 180 minutes of request time 

iv. 90% of Will Call Rides On-Time defined as: 

1. B-Leg: Pick-up within 60 minutes of request time 

 

b. Ride Acceptance Rates: 

i. 95% of Advance Ride requests accepted as long as trips are in the Service Area.  

ii. 50% of Same Day Ride requests accepted 

 

c. Confirmed Ride Fulfillment Rates: 

i. 99% of accepted Advance Rides fulfilled 

ii. 95% of accepted Same Day Rides fulfilled 

iii. 99% of Confirmed Same Day and Will Call Rides fulfilled 

 

a. Company must set status of all assigned rides to “confirmed” or “unable to fulfill” by 3PM the day before the 

scheduled pick-up time.  

 

b. If the driver will be late, Company must call the Rider and alert them of the delay. If the rider will be late to 

an appointment, Company shall also call SafeRide to coordinate a resolution. 

 

c. If a driver arrives early for a ride, they must wait at the location until the scheduled pickup time. 

 



 

8  

d. If a Rider is running late, the driver must wait 15 minutes before cancelling the ride and releasing the vehicle 

Company must update the status of assigned rides to “Confirmed” or “Cancelled - Patient No-Show”. 

 

e. Dispatchers must answer 95% of on-demand live chats within 5 minutes of request. 

 

 

f. Compliance Standards: 

 

• For a Medicare and Medicaid programs, Company must upload Company, driver, and vehicle information 

into SafeRideManager® as part of the onboarding compliance process. Company shall update this 

information no less than bi-annually, or in accordance with program requirements. 

• Company must provide notice to SafeRide of any complaints or grievances within 24 hours of receipt of 

the information. 

• Company must alert SafeRide to vehicle accidents or passenger injuries within the following time periods: 

▪ Accident with injury – Notification within 1 hour 

▪ Incident with injury - Notification within 1 hour 

▪ Accident without injury – Notification within 24 hours 

▪ Incident without injury – Notification within 24 hours 

• Company must alert SafeRide to non-compliant vehicles or drivers within 24 hours of discovery of non-

compliance. 

 

 

A. Standards 

 

Upon prior, written notice from SafeRide, Company shall allow for inspections of its vehicles by SafeRide or 

Client representatives, accreditation bodies, or by authorized government officials, including, but not limited to, 

the United States Department of Health and Human Services, Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services, the 

DOI, and applicable State or federal agency(ies). Company agrees to provide, in a timely and complete manner, 

documents, data or other information as may be required to evidence compliance with this Agreement and 

applicable law. 

 

Company shall ensure that: 

a. Drivers shall: 

i. be at least 21 years old or as is required by applicable law in the market serviced; 

ii. have a valid driver's license for the vehicle operated and be able to safely operate such vehicle and any 

associated equipment; 

iii. know the geography and be able to manage the conditions of the required driving environment; 

iv. have not had more than one accident or two moving violations in the previous three years; 

v. not have had a driver’s license suspended or revoked in the previous five years; 

vi. have passed background checks and drug screens in accordance with standards set forth in Federal 49 

CFR Part 382, as well as standards for medical transportation proscribed by state and local authorities 

and laws; 

vii. prohibit smoking in vehicles passengers and post "no smoking" signs in vehicle interiors which are 

readily visible to passengers; 

viii. not eat while transporting passengers; 

ix. not allow friends or family to ride in the vehicle while transporting passengers, unless authorized by 

SafeRide; 

x. allow service animals in their vehicles; 

xi. ensure passengers enter and exit the vehicle in unobstructed and safe locations. Drivers must provide 

assistance to passengers entering and exiting, when needed, and ensure doors are closed before vehicle is 

put in motion; 

xii. safely secure folding wheelchairs and walking aids; 



 

9  

xiii. not touch passengers except as appropriate and necessary to assist the passenger into a seat or to secure 

the seatbelt, or as necessary to render first aid for which the driver has been trained. Drivers must request 

permission from the passenger prior to touching the passenger. 

xiv. not make sexually explicit comments or solicit favors, medications, or money from passengers; 

xv. not accept responsibility for passenger’s personal items; 

xvi. not allow firearms or other weapons, unauthorized controlled substances, or highly combustible materials 

to be transported in the vehicle; 

xvii. check their vehicle to ensure that all passengers have vacated the vehicle at the end of the trip; 

xviii. ensure vehicles meet State, Federal, local, and manufacturer's safety and mechanical operating and 

maintenance standards and shall comply with the American's with Disabilities Act (ADA); 

xix. have no prior convictions for substance abuse, sexual abuse, felonies or violent crime;  

xx. not use prescription medications that impact the ability of the driver to perform his or her duties; 

xxi. not operate a vehicle while impaired, including by the use of alcohol or narcotics, or use illegal drugs, at 

any time; 

xxii. wear, or have visible, easily readable and proper identification; 

xxiii. not use mobile devices (including texting) or headphones while the vehicle is in motion; 

xxiv. utilize child safety seats when transporting children under age five or age as defined by applicable laws. 

Drivers shall not place children in child restraint seats in the front seat of a vehicle. 

xxv. possess medical certifications or specialty training required by federal law and the laws of the state in 

which services are provided for NEMT driver training, including: 

● Passenger sensitivity and customer service; 

● Vehicle safety; 

● Passenger loading/unloading and securement; 

● Defensive driving techniques; 

● Service area familiarization; 

● Accident and emergency procedures, and 

● Operation of a vehicle of the type to be driven. 

 

b. Vehicles shall: 

i. Be maintained in compliance with applicable federal and State regulatory requirements; 

ii. be equipped with a two-way communication system linking all vehicles used in delivering the 

Transportation Services with the Company’s major place of business; 

iii. carry an information packet containing up-to-date vehicle registration, insurance card and accident 

procedures and forms; 

iv. be equipped with a complete first-aid kit; 

v. have functioning, clean and accessible seat belts for each passenger seat position; 

vi. have, at a minimum, the following in good working order: brakes, tire, tread, turn signals, and horn; 

vii. have a clean passenger compartment, free from torn upholstery, floor, or ceiling covering, damaged or 

broken seats, protruding sharp edges; 

viii. have a functioning speedometer, odometer, heating and air-conditioning systems; and 

ix. have the Company's name, vehicle number (if applicable), and phone number prominently displayed 

within the interior of the vehicle. 

  



 

10  

EXHIBIT B 

SAFERIDE SERVICES 

 
A. SafeRideManager®  

1. License. During the Term and subject to the terms and conditions contained herein, SafeRide hereby grants 

to Company, a nonexclusive and nontransferable license to use SafeRideManager® for its own use and 

those of its Users, and for only for those purposes contemplated herein. As used herein, “User” shall mean, 

and include, a Company employee or agent or other person or entity identified by Company as a permitted 

user under this Agreement. 

 

2. SafeRide shall maintain SafeRideManager® in accordance with applicable law, as a safe and secured host 

environment. 

 

3. SafeRide may, from time-to-time, upgrade and/or modify SafeRideManager’s® features and functionality. 

Company shall monitor SafeRideManager® and the Website from time to time for upgrades and/or 

modifications and shall be responsible for notifying Users of such modifications within five (5) business 

days. 

 

4. SafeRide retains all right, title and interest, in, and to, SafeRideManager®. All software, source and object 

code, specifications, designs, processes, techniques, concepts, improvements, discoveries, and inventions 

(whether patentable or not) made or developed in connection with the Services and SafeRideManager® 

shall be the sole and exclusive property of SafeRide. 

 

5. If SafeRide suspects, or is aware of, unlawful or inappropriate use of SafeRideManager®  by Company or a 

User, or a use in violation of the Website Terms of Service, SafeRide shall attempt to notify Company of 

such inappropriate use in order for Company to remedy such inappropriate use. If the inappropriate use is 

not discontinued, SafeRide may, in its sole discretion, immediately suspend or terminate the provision of 

Services and access to SafeRideManager®  by Company and its Users. 

 
B. Set up, deployment and implementation services 

 

1. SafeRide will utilize technical information and requirements information provided by Company for set-up, 

implementation and deployment. Company is responsible for accuracy of information provided to SafeRide. 

 

2. SafeRide shall perform initial account set up and provide initial training for Users of 

SafeRideManager®. SafeRide shall provide telephonic, email and video conferencing support.  Company 

shall assist as needed during the set-up configuration and training. 

 

3. SafeRide is available to provide up to two (2) training sessions on the System at no additional cost. 

Subsequent training sessions will be provided at the discretion of SafeRide and additional fees may be 

charged for each additional training session. 

 

4. Ongoing telephonic and email support will be provided between the hours of 7:00am to 5:00 pm Pacific 

Standard Time Monday through Friday, with the exception of federal holidays. SafeRide reserves the right 

to revise this schedule in its sole discretion. 

 

5. Company shall maintain the following: 

Mobile: Apple IOS (11.0 or higher) or Android (6.0 or higher) 

Operating System: Windows (7 or higher) or MAC (10.10 or higher) 

Browsers: Internet Explorer (10 or higher), Chrome (50 or higher) or Safari (10 or higher) 

         High Speed Internet Connection – Recommended 

 



 

11  

6. For Services provided under SafeRide Program, there shall be no cost to Company for dispatch of those 

program rides, however, certain SafeRideManager® features may be locked. 

 

7. For transportation services provided by Company to riders outside of a SafeRide Program (“Non-SafeRide 

Program”), SafeRideManager® may be utilized by SafeRide’s Premier Companies. Premier status is by 

SafeRide’s invitation only. Upon obtaining Premier status, Company shall 

a. be permitted to dispatch up to 100 rides per-day for Non-SafeRide Programs at no cost; 

b. Rate cards for rides associated with Non-SafeRide Programs may be set by Company; and  

c. Certain SafeRideManager features may remain be locked. 

 

8. To unlock a SafeRideManager® feature or perform over 100 rides per day for Non-SafeRide Programs, 

contact network@saferidehealth.com. 

 

Disclaimer of Warranties. 

EXCEPT AS OTHERWISE EXPRESSLY SET FORTH HEREIN, SAFERIDE PROVIDES THE SERVICES, AND 

SAFERIDEMANAGER® “AS IS”, AND “WHERE IS.”  SAFERIDE MAKES NO WARRANTY, EXPRESS OR 

IMPLIED, REGARDING SERVICES OR SAFERIDEMANAGER® AND SPECIFICALLY DISCLAIMS 

IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY, FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE AND NON-

INFRINGEMENT OF THIRD-PARTY RIGHTS, TO THE MAXIMUM EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW. Further, 

except as otherwise expressly provided in this Agreement, SafeRide makes no warranties regarding the quality, 

reliability, timeliness or security of the Services or SafeRideManager® or that the Services or SafeRideManager® 

will be uninterrupted or error free. SafeRide assumes no responsibility or liability for the deletion or failure to store, 

or to store properly, electronic data other than as required of it by law. Company and Users assume the risk in 

downloading or otherwise accessing any data, files or other materials obtained from third parties by means of 

SafeRideManager®. 

  



 

12  

EXHIBIT C 

 

TRANSPORTATION RATE CARD AND REIMBURSEMENT 

1. Term of rates paid hereunder: Rate cards, the form of which is attached to this Exhibit C, once approved by 

SafeRide are binding for 12 months from the approval date of such rate card. SafeRide and the Company, however, 

may re-negotiate this rate at any time, for additional volume, additional clients or additional scope (e.g., PUI/ COVID 

19 transport rates). 

2.    Rate reimbursement details: 

a. For Transportation Services approved by a Client under a SafeRide Program, Company 

agrees to accept payment of the rates in effect at the time, qualified by the following: 

i. SafeRide shall not be obligated to pay for Transportation Services that have not been approved by 

SafeRide, or a Client’s authorized personnel. Additional charges (e.g. stair charges or oxygen tanks), if 

allowed by the Client, shall be processed in SafeRide’s sole discretion. 

ii. SafeRide will pay the selected transport mode (e.g., Wheelchair) as identified in the 

SafeRideManager® platform. Changes made outside of the platform are not eligible for payment by 

SafeRide. 

iii. SafeRide shall pay the pre-approved loading fee and mileage identified as the most direct route as 

according to SafeRide's platform (powered by MapBox /Google Maps).  In the event of a discrepancy, 

Company may request to have a ride’s mileage confirmed or reviewed prior to the submission of a 

claim for payment.   

iv. Unauthorized and undisclosed changes to rate cards made by Company or Users for SafeRide 

Programs shall be a material breach and grounds for immediate termination of this Agreement.   

v. Company acknowledges and agrees that SafeRide has no obligation to bill or collect from riders or CMS for 

Transportation Services provided hereunder.  

vi. Company shall provide ride data and claims data in a format defined by SafeRide. SafeRide shall not 

be obligated to pay for claims submitted after thirty (30) days after the actual trip date. For 

Transportation Services provided under a SafeRide Medicaid program, Company shall provide ride 

data and claims no later than ninety-five (95) days following the actual trip date.  

vii. SafeRide shall pay claims within 30 calendar days of the adjudication date of a properly completed 

invoice from Company, which shall include accurate ride and claims data. 

viii. When required by Medicare, Medicaid or instructed by SafeRide, Company must provide pick up and 

completion time stamps for all rides.  Claims for rides without this data will not be reimbursed by 

SafeRide. Claims that are denied for missing information will be promptly returned to Company by 

SafeRide. Any such claims may be resubmitted with the missing information for payment so long as 

each is filed within the time periods set forth in Section 2.vi. above.  

ix. Company must utilize SafeRideManager®, for dispatch only or dispatch and the driver mobile 

application, for no less than ninety-five percent (95%) of Transportation Services provided under 

SafeRide Programs if average weekly volume exceeds 25 rides-per-week.   

 

3. For Transportation Services under Non-SafeRide Programs (ie. a school system), Company acknowledges and agrees 

that it is responsible for billing and collecting payment from such third parties. SafeRide will capture and maintain data 

set forth above, but Company must access and process its own invoicing and billing for Transportation Services rendered 

to such third parties.  
  



 

13  

ADDENDUM 1 TO EXHIBIT C 

FORM OF RATE CARD 

  



 

14  

EXHIBIT D 

DIVISION OF RESPONSIBILITIES  

 

The table below illustrates the division of responsibilities for key services in a typical fully managed Medicare or 

Medicaid program.  However, each program is unique and delivered in accordance with local market regulations and 

the needs of our client (who for example may have their own care navigation teams booking rides).   

 

 
Healthcare 

Organization SafeRide NEMT/Company 

Accept Transportation request from member  X 
 

Determine eligibility of member  X  

Authorize transport for member  X  

Determine appropriate transport type 

(NEMT/Lyft) 
 X 

 

Determine appropriate transport mode 

(Ambulatory, Wheelchair, etc) 

  

X 

 

Schedule / update transportation requests  X 
 

Accuracy of transport information (times, dates, 

addresses, etc.) 
 X 

 

Pay SAFERIDE for transport X   

Provide transport booking, management and 

real-time monitoring system 

  

X 

 

Develop / maintain transport network 
 

X 
 

Pay transport network  X  

Capture and maintain ride data, billing data, 

rating data and patient analytics 

 
X 

 

Provide transport   X 

Provide required encounter data for billing / 

reimbursement 

   

X 

Name SafeRide as add’l insured on CGL policy, 

automotive policy 

                  

               X 

Driver and Vehicle Oversight (ensure licensing, 

insurance, and training requirements meet state / 

contractual requirements) 

   

 

X 

Maintain service level requirements 
  

X 

Company will provide SAFERIDE access to all 

HIPAA-related materials  

  
X 

Encounter data and complaint reporting 
  

X 

 

  



 

15  

EXHIBIT E 

SUBCONTRACTOR BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT 

This Subcontractor Business Associate Agreement (“Agreement”) is made and effective the ___ day of ____, 

2021 (“Effective Date”), by and between SafeRide, Inc. (“Business Associate”) and _____ (“Subcontractor”) (each a 

“Party” and collectively, “Parties”). 

 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, both Parties desire to comply with the requirements of the Health Insurance Portability and 

Accountability Act of 1996 as amended by the American Recovery and Investment Act of 2009 (“HIPAA”), and 

implementing regulations which are codified at 45 C.F.R. Part 160, 162 and 164, as such regulations may be amended 

from time to time and the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health Act, as incorporated in the 

American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 and implementing regulations and guidance issued by the Secretary, as 

may be amended from time to time (“HITECH”) (collectively referred to hereinafter as the “HIPAA Standards”); and 

 

WHEREAS, such HIPAA Standards require Business Associate to enter into a Subcontractor Business Associate 

Agreement with its Subcontractors that provide or assist Business Associate with a function or activity which may involve 

the use or disclosure of protected health information (“PHI”);  

 

WHEREAS, the Parties entered into an arrangement whereby Subcontractor provides services to Business 

Associate related to services Business Associate is performing for Covered Entities involving Protected Health 

Information (“Services”). As a result, Subcontractor may create, receive, maintain or transmit Protected Health 

Information on behalf of Business Associate in fulfilling its obligations under the Services. Subcontractor qualifies as a 

“Subcontractor” and business associate under the Regulations. 

 

WHEREAS, Business Associate and Subcontractor agree to enter into this Agreement to ensure compliance with 

the HIPAA Standards including amendments thereto set forth in HITECH Act and applicable state laws. 

  

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the Parties’ continuing obligations to each other, compliance with the 

HIPAA Security and Privacy Rules and the HITECH Act, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and 

sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the Parties agree to the provisions of this Agreement.   

  

1.   DEFINITIONS. 

The following terms used in this Agreement shall have the same meaning as those terms in the HIPAA Standards: 

Breach, Data Aggregation, Designated Record Set, Disclosure, Health Care Operations, Individual, Minimum 

Necessary, Protected Health Information (PHI), Required By Law, Secretary, Security Incident, Subcontractor, 

Unsecured Protected Health Information, and Use.  
In the event of an inconsistency between the provisions of this Agreement and mandatory provisions of the 

HIPAA Standards, the HIPAA Standards in effect at the time shall control.   

 

2. RESPONSIBILITIES OF SUBCONTRACTOR 

a. Use or Disclosure. Subcontractor shall not use or disclose PHI other than to perform the Services or as 

Required By Law. 

b. Compliance with the HIPAA Security Regulations. Subcontractor agrees to use appropriate, 

commercially reasonable safeguards to prevent use or disclosure of PHI. 

c. Mitigation. Subcontractor agrees to mitigate harmful effects of a use or disclosure of PHI.  

d. Reporting. Subcontractor agrees to report to Business Associate within thirty (30) business days from 

the date Subcontractor knew or reasonably should have known i) use or disclosure of PHI not permitted 

by this Agreement, ii) Security Incidents of which Subcontractor becomes aware or iii) Discovery of a 

Breach of Unsecured PHI. 

 

 Security Incident” means a successful unauthorized access, use, disclosure, modification or destruction of 

PHI. The Parties acknowledge and agree that this Section 2.d constitutes notice by the Parties of the 



 

16  

ongoing occurrence of attempted but Unsuccessful Security Incidents which shall include, but not be 

limited to, pings and other broadcast attacks on Subcontractor’s firewall, port scans, unsuccessful log-on 

attempts, denials of service, malware such as worms or viruses and any combination of the above, so long 

as such incidents do not result in unauthorized access, use or disclosure, modification or destruction of 

PHI. 

e. Subcontractors and Agents. Subcontractor shall not assign or further subcontract Services. 

f. Access to PHI.  If Subcontractor maintains PHI in a Designated Record Set, Subcontractor agrees to 

provide access to such PHI to Business Associate or its designee within thirty (30) days of Business 

Associate’s written request to allow Business Associate to meet HIPAA requirements. If an individual 

requests access to PHI from Subcontractor, Subcontractor shall promptly notify Business Associate so 

that Business Associate can respond directly to such individual.   

g. Amendment of PHI.  Upon receipt of a written request by Business Associate for the amendment of an 

individual’s PHI contained in a Designated Record Set, Subcontractor shall provide such information to 

Business Associate for amendment, within thirty (30) days of receipt of written request from Business 

Associate, and if applicable, incorporate such amendments to such PHI. If an individual requests 

amendment to PHI directly from Subcontractor, Subcontractor shall notify Business Associate so that 

Business Associate can respond directly to such individual. 

h. Records.  Subcontractor shall make its internal practices, books, and records relating to the Use and 

Disclosure of PHI received from Business Associate, or created by Subcontractor for Business Associate, 

available to the Secretary in order to determine compliance with HIPAA Standards. 

i. Documentation of Disclosures. Subcontractor agrees to document Disclosures of PHI, if any, and related 

information related so Business Associate may respond to a request by an Individual for an accounting of 

Disclosures.   

j. Accounting of Disclosures. Within thirty (30) days of receipt of written notice from Business Associate 

that it has received a request by an individual for an accounting of Disclosures of PHI, Subcontractor 

agrees to provide such information as necessary for Business Associate to satisfy its obligations under 

HIPAA. 

k. Prohibition on Sale of PHI.  Subcontractor shall not sell PHI.  

l. Minimum Necessary Use and Disclosure.  In performing the Services that involve the use of PHI, 

Subcontractor agrees to limit PHI to the minimum amount of information necessary to perform Services.  

 

3. PERMITTED USES AND DISCLOSURES BY SUBCONTRACTOR 

a. General Use and Disclosure Provisions. Subcontractor may use PHI only in connection with Services. 

 

b. Specific Use and Disclosure Provisions. 

(1) Subcontractor may only use PHI for management and administration or to meet its legal 

responsibilities, provided, however, that PHI may only be disclosed if the disclosures are required 

by law.  

(2) Subcontractor will notify Business Associate if the confidentiality of PHI been breached.    

(3) Subcontractor may use and disclose PHI to report violations of law to appropriate Federal and 

State authorities. 

(4) De-Identification.  Subcontractor may de-identify Protected Health Information, provided that 

such de-identification is performed in accordance with HIPAA. Such de-identified information is 

no longer deemed PHI under HIPAA Standards. 

 

4. OBLIGATIONS OF BUSINESS ASSOCIATE 

a. Business Associate shall notify Subcontractor in writing of changes in, or revocation of, permission by 

Individual to use or disclose PHI, if changes affect Subcontractor's permitted or required uses and 

disclosures of PHI. 

b. Business Associate shall notify Subcontractor in writing of restrictions to the use of PHI that it has agreed to or 

is required to abide by in accordance with HIPAA if such restriction affects Subcontractor’s use of PHI. 

c. Business Associate shall not request Subcontractor impermissibly use or disclose PHI.  

 

5.   TERM AND TERMINATION 



 

17  

a. Term.  This Agreement will commence upon the Effective Date and will continue as long as Subcontractor has 

use, custody or access to PHI subject to this Agreement, and thereafter for the period required by the 

Regulations. 

b. Termination for Cause. Upon either Party’s knowledge of a material breach by the other Party, the 

terminating Party shall notify the other Party in writing and provide an opportunity for the breaching 

Party to cure the breach within thirty (30) days of such notice. If a cure is not reasonably possible, the 

terminating Party may immediately terminate this Agreement and the Services Agreement, upon written 

notice to the other Party. 

c. Effect of Termination. Upon termination of this Agreement, Subcontractor shall return or destroy (as directed 

by Business Associate) PHI received from Business Associate. Subcontractor shall not retain copies of 

PHI. If Subcontractor determines that returning or destroying PHI is infeasible, Subcontractor shall 

extend the protections of this Agreement to such PHI for so long as Subcontractor maintains such PHI.  

 

6. MISCELLANEOUS 

a. Survival. The respective rights and obligations of Business Associate and Subcontractor under Sections 2, 5, 6 

and 7 hereunder will survive the termination of this Agreement. 

b. Notices. Except as otherwise agreed to in this Agreement, notices hereunder must be in writing and delivered 

personally or sent by certified mail, return receipt requested, to the addresses in the signature blocks below. 

c. Interpretation. Ambiguity in this Agreement will be resolved in a way that permits Business Associate (and 

Covered Entities to which Business Associate is a business associate) to comply with HIPAA, the Regulations, 

and other applicable law, including HITECH and regulations promulgated thereunder. 

d. No Third-Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement does not create third-party beneficiary rights. 

e. Waiver. No waiver of liability or obligation hereunder by a Party will be deemed a waiver of other liabilities or 

obligations. 

f. Independent Contractors. Each of the Parties are independent contractors. Nothing herein will make them 

partners or joint venturers or make Subcontractor an agent of Business Associate. 

g. Entire Agreement. This Agreement represents the Parties’ sole agreement concerning the subject matter herein 

and supersedes previous drafts, understandings or communications. 

h. Representations and Warranties. Subcontractor warrants and represents that it is in compliance with the Security 

Rule and the provisions of the Privacy Rule that apply to business associates. 

 

 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement to be effective as of the Effective Date. 

 

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE    SUBCONTRACTOR 

 

By:____________________    By:_____________________ 

Its: ______________________   Its:________________________ 

Address:      Address: 







SafeRide, Inc.
6125 Washington Blvd, 2nd Floor

Culver City, CA 90232
SafeRideHealth.com

To all concerned,

SafeRide Health understands that the agreement with Citibus is subject to ratification by the
Lubbock City Council after the initial signing of the agreement.

We look forward to working together as partners moving forward.

Thank you.

--
Chris Koenig

Director of Network-Texas | SafeRide Health

210-557-2114



   
Regular City Council Meeting 7. 18.        
Meeting Date: 06/08/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Lubbock Power & Light: Consider Ordinance No. 2021-O0062, amending
Section 22.02.103 of Title I, Chapter 22, Article 22.02, Division 3, of the Lubbock Code of Ordinances, to
permit Lubbock Power & Light to update the fee structure for recovery of the cost of providing
underground electric distribution service as part of the annual review and approval of the LP&L Electric
Rate/Tariff Schedule.

Item Summary
On May 25, 2021, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance.

For any new development project within LP&L’s service territory, engineering staff must collaborate with
developers to determine the best route to deliver electricity.  Doing so requires underground line
extensions through easements or public right of way.  Utility cost recovery fees are assessed to permit the
utility to re-coup a portion of costs incurred during construction of such extensions.  The intent of any
assessment is to balance the initial investment to increase meters with actual installation costs. 
 
The last change to the fee structure for utility recovery of fees occurred in 2004 for commercial
developments and in 2006 for residential developments.  In addition to increases in construction costs
since that time, residential subdivisions without alleys have been introduced, which significantly increases
construction costs.    
 
The EUB has recommended to the City Council the amendment of Section 22.02.103 of the City Code of
Ordinances to permit LP&L to make changes to the fee structure through the LP&L Electric Rate/Tariff,
which is updated at least annually as part of the LP&L Electric Rate/Tariff review and approval process.

Fiscal Impact
Utility cost recovery fees are dependent on new development projects and vary annually.  A proposed
increase will be submitted as part of the FY 2021-22 operating budget to recoup a portion of these costs.

Staff/Board Recommending
David McCalla, Director of Electric Utilities

Attachments
City Council Ordinance Amendment 









   
Regular City Council Meeting 7. 19.        
Meeting Date: 06/08/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - City Manager: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute an agreement by and
between the City of Lubbock and the State of Texas acting through the Texas Department of
Transportation (TxDOT), for the temporary closure of State right-of-way, the Marsha Sharp Freeway,
during the 2021 IRONMAN 70.3 Lubbock Triathlon.

Item Summary
The City of Lubbock is hosting the 2021 IRONMAN 70.3 Lubbock Triathlon. The event is scheduled to
take place in the City of Lubbock on Sunday, June 27, 2021. Organizers anticipate 2,000 athletes to
participate in this one-day event. The event will incorporate a 1.2-mile swim at Canyon Lake #6, a 56-mile
bike ride into Lubbock County, Crosby County, and back onto the Texas Tech University (TTU) Campus,
and a 13-mile run around the TTU campus.

The proposed resolution authorizes the Mayor to execute an agreement with the State of Texas acting
through the Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT), for the temporary closure of State
right-of-way, the Marsha Sharp Freeway, during the 2021 IRONMAN 70.3 Lubbock Triathlon. This
agreement is in the best interest of the public safety and welfare of the citizens of Lubbock, to expedite all
other traffic matters related to the 2021 IRONMAN 70.3 Lubbock Triathlon.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Joe Moudy, Director of Emergency Management

Attachments
Resolution 
IRONMAN 70.3 2021 TxDOT Agreement 
IRONMAN Host Venue Agreement 





Agreement No.________________ 

Traffic Closure Incorporated (TEA30A) Page 1 of 8 Rev. 02/22/2019 

STATE OF TEXAS  § 

COUNTY OF TRAVIS § 

AGREEMENT FOR THE TEMPORARY CLOSURE 
OF STATE RIGHT OF WAY 

THIS AGREEMENT is made by and between the State of Texas, acting by and through the 
Texas Department of Transportation, hereinafter called the “State,” and the City  
of Lubbock, Texas, a municipal corporation, acting by and through its duly authorized officers, 
hereinafter called the “local government.” 

W I T N E S S E T H 

WHEREAS, the State owns and operates a system of highways for public use and benefit, 
including East 19th,MLK, Parkway Dr., Marsha Sharp Fwy, West bound frontage rd., 
University Dr. , in Lubbock , County; and 

WHEREAS, the local government has requested the temporary closure of Texas State 
Highway MSFWY  for the purpose of conducting a portion of the 56 mile bike of the Ironman 
70.3 Lubbock, to include a coning off of MSFWY 4th on ramp & University off ramp as 
described in the attached “Exhibit A,” hereinafter identified as the “Event;” and 

WHEREAS, the Event will be located within the local government’s incorporated area; and 

WHEREAS, the State, in recognition of the public purpose of the Event, wishes to cooperate 
with the City so long as the safety and convenience of the traveling public is ensured and that 
the closure of the State’s right of way will be performed within the State’s requirements; and 

WHEREAS, on the           day of                                  , 20        , the  __                          City 
Council passed Resolution / Ordinance No.         , attached hereto and identified 
as “Exhibit B,” establishing that the Event serves a public purpose and authorizing the local 
government to enter into this agreement with the State; and 

WHEREAS, 43 TAC, Section 22.12 establishes the rules and procedures for the temporary 
closure of a segment of the State highway system; and 

WHEREAS, this agreement has been developed in accordance with the rules and 
procedures of 43 TAC, Section 22.12; 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and of the mutual covenants and 
agreements of the parties hereto, to be by them respectively kept and performed as 
hereinafter set forth, it is agreed as follows: 

A G R E E M E N T 

Article 1. CONTRACT PERIOD 
This agreement becomes effective upon final execution by the State and shall terminate upon 
completion of the Event or unless terminated or modified as hereinafter provided. 



Agreement No.________________  

Traffic Closure Incorporated (TEA30A) Page 2 of 8 Rev. 02/22/2019 

Article 2. EVENT DESCRIPTION 
The physical description of the limits of the Event, including county names and highway 
numbers, the number of lanes the highway has and the number of lanes to be used, the 
proposed schedule of start and stop times and dates at each location, a brief description of 
the proposed activities involved, approximate number of people attending the Event, the 
number and types of animals and equipment, planned physical modifications of any man-
made or natural features in or adjacent to the right of way involved shall be attached hereto 
along with a location map and identified as “Exhibit C.” 
 
Article 3. OPERATIONS OF THE EVENT 
A. The local government shall assume all costs for the operations associated with the Event, 
to include but not limited to, plan development, materials, labor, public notification, providing 
protective barriers and barricades, protection of highway traffic and highway facilities, and all 
traffic control and temporary signing.  
B. The local government shall submit to the State for review and approval the construction 
plans, if construction or modifications to the State’s right of way is required, the traffic control 
and signing plans, traffic enforcement plans, and all other plans deemed necessary by the 
State.  The State may require that any traffic control plans of sufficient complexity be signed, 
sealed and dated by a registered professional engineer.   The traffic control plan shall be in 
accordance with the latest edition of the Texas Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices.  
All temporary traffic control devices used on state highway right of way must be included in 
the State’s Compliant Work Zone Traffic Control Devices List.  The State reserves the right to 
inspect the implementation of the traffic control plan and if it is found to be inadequate, the 
local government will bring the traffic control into compliance with the originally submitted 
plan, upon written notice from the State noting the required changes, prior to the event.  The 
State may request changes to the traffic control plan in order to ensure public safety due to 
changing or unforeseen circumstances regarding the closure.  
C.  The local government will ensure that the appropriate law enforcement agency has              
reviewed the traffic control for the closures and that the agency has deemed them to be 
adequate.  If the law enforcement agency is unsure as to the adequacy of the traffic control, it 
will contact the State for consultation no less than 10 workdays prior to the closure. 
D.     The local government will complete all revisions to the traffic control plan as requested 
by the State within the required timeframe or that the agreement will be terminated upon 
written notice from the State to the local government.  The local government hereby agrees 
that any failure to cooperate with the State may constitute reckless endangerment of the 
public and that the Texas Department of Public Safety may be notified of the situation as 
soon as possible for the appropriate action, and failing to follow the traffic control plan or 
State instructions may result in a denial of future use of the right of way for three years. 
E. The local government will not initiate closure prior to 24 hours before the scheduled Event 
and all barriers and barricades will be removed and the highway reopened to traffic within 24 
hours after the completion of the Event. 
F. The local government will provide adequate enforcement personnel to prevent vehicles 
from stopping and parking along the main lanes of highway right of way and otherwise 
prevent interference with the main lane traffic by both vehicles and pedestrians.  The local 
government will prepare a traffic enforcement plan, to be approved by the State in writing at 
least 48 hours prior to the scheduled Event.  Additionally, the local government shall provide 
to the State a letter of certification from the law enforcement agency that will be providing 
traffic control for the Event, certifying that they agree with the enforcement plan and will be 
able to meet its requirements. 
G. The local government hereby assures the State that there will be appropriate passage 



Agreement No.________________ 

Traffic Closure Incorporated (TEA30A) Page 3 of 8 Rev. 02/22/2019 

allowance for emergency vehicle travel and adequate access for abutting property owners 
during construction and closure of the highway facility.  These allowances and accesses will 
be included in the local government’s traffic control plan. 
H. The local government will avoid or minimize damage, and will, at its own expense, restore
or repair damage occurring outside the State’s right of way and restore or repair the State’s
right of way, including, but not limited to, roadway and drainage structures, signs, overhead
signs, pavement markings, traffic signals, power poles and pavement, etc. to a condition
equal to that existing before the closure, and, to the extent practicable, restore the natural
and cultural environment in accordance with federal and state law, including landscape and
historical features.

Article 4. OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS 
Upon completion or termination of this agreement, all documents prepared by the local 
government will remain the property of the local government.  All data prepared under this 
agreement shall be made available to the State without restriction or limitation on their further 
use. At the request of the State, the Local Government shall submit any information required 
by the State in the format directed by the State. 

Article 5. TERMINATION 
A. This agreement may be terminated by any of the following conditions:

(1) By mutual written agreement and consent of both parties.
(2) By the State upon determination that use of the State’s right of way is not

feasible or is not in the best interest of the State and the traveling public.
(3) By either party, upon the failure of the other party to fulfill the obligations as set

forth herein.
(4) By satisfactory completion of all services and obligations as set forth herein.

B. The termination of this agreement shall extinguish all rights, duties, obligations, and
liabilities of the State and local government under this agreement.  If the potential termination
of this agreement is due to the failure of the local government to fulfill its contractual
obligations as set forth herein, the State will notify the local government that possible breach
of contract has occurred.  The local government must remedy the breach as outlined by the
State within ten (10) days from receipt of the State’s notification.  In the event the local
government does not remedy the breach to the satisfaction of the State, the local government
shall be liable to the State for the costs of remedying the breach and any additional costs
occasioned by the State.

Article 6. DISPUTES 
Should disputes arise as to the parties’ responsibilities or additional work under this 
agreement, the State’s decision shall be final and binding. 

Article 7. RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE PARTIES 
The State and the Local Government agree that neither party is an agent, servant, or 
employee of the other party and each party agrees it is responsible for its individual acts and 
deeds as well as the acts and deeds of its contractors, employees, representatives, and 
agents. 

Article 8. INSURANCE 
A. Prior to beginning any work upon the State’s right of way, the local government and/or its
contractors shall furnish to the State a completed “Certificate of Insurance” (TxDOT Form
1560, latest edition) and shall maintain the insurance in full force and effect during the period



Agreement No.________________ 

Traffic Closure Incorporated (TEA30A) Page 4 of 8 Rev. 02/22/2019 

that the local government and/or its contractors are encroaching upon the State right of way.
B. In the event the local government is a self-insured entity, the local government shall
provide the State proof of its self-insurance.  The local government agrees to pay any and all
claims and damages that may occur during the period of this closing of the highway in
accordance with the terms of this agreement.

Article 9. AMENDMENTS 
Any changes in the time frame, character, agreement provisions or obligations of the parties 
hereto shall be enacted by written amendment executed by both the local government and 
the State. 

Article 10. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS 
The local government shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local environmental 
laws, regulations, ordinances and any conditions or restrictions required by the State to 
protect the natural environment and cultural resources of the State’s right of way. 

Article 11. LEGAL CONSTRUCTION 
In case one or more of the provisions contained in this agreement shall for any reason be 
held invalid, illegal or unenforceable in any respect, such invalidity, illegality or 
unenforceability shall not affect any other provisions hereof and this agreement shall be 
construed as if such invalid, illegal or unenforceable provision had never been contained 
herein. 

Article 12. NOTICES 
All notices to either party by the other required under this agreement shall be delivered 
personally or sent by certified U.S. mail, postage prepaid, addressed to such party at the 
following respective addresses: 

Local Government:  

________________________________ 

_________________________________ 

__________________________________ 

_________________________________ 

State: 

Texas Department of Transportation 

135 Slaton Road 

Lubbock, Texas 79404 

_______________________________ 

All notices shall be deemed given on the date so delivered or so deposited in the mail, unless 
otherwise provided herein.  Either party hereto may change the above address by sending 
written notice of such change to the other in the manner provided herein. 

Article 13. SOLE AGREEMENT 
This agreement constitutes the sole and only agreement between the parties hereto and 
supersedes any prior understandings or written or oral agreements respecting the within 
subject matter. 

City of Lubbock

Attn: City Manager

1314 Ave K

Lubbock, TX 79401



Agreement No.________________ 

Traffic Closure Incorporated (TEA30A) Page 5 of 8 Rev. 02/22/2019 

Each party is signing this agreement on the date stated beside that party’s signature.

THE CITY OF LUBBOCK     
Executed on behalf of the local government by:

By_________________________________    Date__________________________ 

Typed or Printed Name and Title _________________________________________ 

_________________________________________ 

THE STATE OF TEXAS  
Executed for the Executive Director and approved for the Texas Transportation Commission 
for the purpose and effect of activating and/or carrying out the orders, established policies or 
work programs heretofore approved and authorized by the Texas Transportation 
Commission. 

By_________________________________    Date__________________________ 
District Engineer 

Daniel M Pope, Mayor



84

27

378

40

789

1729

400

 U
N

IV
E

R
S

IT
Y 

A
V

E

B
U

D
D

Y 
H

O
LL

Y 
A

V
E

4T H S T

C O UN T Y R O A D 67 0 0

E C OUN T Y R D 6600 A C UF F R D

CO
U

N
TY

 R
O

AD
 3

4
00

C OUN T Y R O A D 6 9 0 0

M
LK

 J
R

 B
LV

D

E  19T H S T

C A N Y ON L A K E DR

C E S A R E . C H AV E Z DR

ID A L OU R D
5

10

40

35

25

30

20
15

50

45

B I K E  C O U R S E

56 MILES

LUBBOCK, TEXAS

COPYRIGHT © WORLD TRIATHLON CORPORATION. ALL RIGHTS RESERVED.

LEGEND

1 MILE MARKERS

FINISH LINE

START LINE

TRANSITION AREA

U-TURN

NORTH AMERICAN TRICLUB CHAMPIONSHIP - CENTRAL



T U R N  B Y  T U R N  D I R E C T I O N S

• Begin on MLK Jr Blvd

• Right on E 19th St 

• Right on Spruce Ave/E 19th St 

• Continue on E County Rd 6700

• Right on County Rd 3000/FM 1729

• Left on E Farm to Market Rd 3523/E County Rd 6900

• Left on FM 400

• Right on E county Rd 6600/E FM 40 

• Right on FM 378 

• Turn Around (200 meters prior to FM 378 & Ranch Rd 1525)

• Left on FM 40

• Left on FM 400

vRight on E Farm to Market Rd 3523/E County Rd 6900

• Right on County Rd 3000/FM 1729

• Left on E County Rd 6700

• Continue on E 19th St 

• Left on US Hwy 62 

• Right on Canyon Lake Dr 

• Right on Cesar E. Chavez Dr

• Left on Cesar E. Chavez Dr 

• Straight on Avenue J 

• Left on 1st Pl

-Right on Buddy Holly Ave 

• Right on 4th St

• Right on Avenue L

• Left on 4th St 

• Left on University Ave 

vRight on Glenna Goodacre Blvd 

• Finish Lot Z1 Transition 2

Start Elevation:  3146 ft  �  Finishing Elevation: 3212 ft  �  Gain: 593 ft

3.3K

3.2K

3.1K

0 5 10 15 20 25 30 35 40 45 50 55MILES

B I K E  C O U R S E

56 MILES

LUBBOCK, TEXAS

COPYRIGHT © WORLD TRIATHLON CORPORATION. ALL RIGHTS RESERVED.

NORTH AMERICAN TRICLUB CHAMPIONSHIP - CENTRAL



BRO A D WAY S T

A
K

R
O

N
 A

V
E

18T H S T

18T H S T

15T H S T

FL
IN

T 
A

V
E

FL
IN

T 
A

V
E

C
A

N
TO

N
 A

V
E

B
O

S
TO

N
 A

V
E

ME MOR I A L C IRC L E

R
E

D
 R

A
ID

E
R

 A
V

E

TE
X

A
S

 T
E

C
H

7T H S T

IN
D

IA
N

A
 A

V
E

MAIN
 S

T

D R I V E  O F CH A MP IONS

AKRON
 AV

E

82

62

R U N  C O U R S E

13.1 MILES / 3 LOOP

LUBBOCK, TEXAS

COPYRIGHT © WORLD TRIATHLON CORPORATION. ALL RIGHTS RESERVED.

5

9

10

11

13

12

6

7

8

1

2

3

4

LEGEND

1 1ST LOOP MILE MARKERS

5 2ND LOOP MILE MARKERS

9 3RD LOOP MILE MARKERS

FINISH LINE

ONE DIRECTION/NO LOOP

START LINE

TRANSITION AREA

NORTH AMERICAN TRICLUB CHAMPIONSHIP - CENTRAL



T U R N  B Y  T U R N  D I R E C T I O N S

• Green Run Once  

• Red Run 3 Times  

• Right out of transition 2 onto Akron Ave

• Right onto walkway in front of Jones AT&T Stadium 

• Left into Jones AT&T Stadium 

• Run the perimeter of the football field

• Exit Jones AT&T Stadium onto Drive of Champions 

• Left on Canton Ave (Start of 3 lap section)

• Left on 7th St 

• Right on Boston Ave 

• Left on Memorial Circle 

• Left on Broadway St 

• At Texas Tech Campus entrance turn around run on the other side Broadway 

• Left on Akron Ave 

• Continue on 18th St 

• Right on Flint Ave 

• Right on 15th St 

• Turn around at Agricultural of science building (15thst & Boston Ave)

• Left on Flint Ave 

• Right on 18th St 

• Right on Indiana Ave 

• Right in Main St 

• Left on Flint Ave 

• Continue on Flint Ave (9thst & Flint Ave) 

vRight on Drive of Champions 

• Right on Canton Ave 

• Repeat Loop for 3 total laps

• 3rd lap finish on Boston Ave 

R U N  C O U R S E

13.1 MILES / 3 LOOP

LUBBOCK, TEXAS

COPYRIGHT © WORLD TRIATHLON CORPORATION. ALL RIGHTS RESERVED.

NORTH AMERICAN TRICLUB CHAMPIONSHIP - CENTRAL

Start Elevation: 3214 ft  �  Finishing Elevation: 3216 ft  �  Gain: 71 ft

0

3.3K

3.2K

3.3K

1 2 4 5 6 7 9 10 11 12

F
E

E
T

MILES



DELAWARE

STATE PARK

Canyon Lake Dr

S W I M  C O U R S E

1.2 MILES / 1 LAP

LUBBOCK, TEXAS

COPYRIGHT © WORLD TRIATHLON CORPORATION.  ALL RIGHTS RESERVED.

LEGEND

TURN BUOYS

FINISH LINE

START LINE

TRANSITION AREA

OUTBOUND SIGHTING BUOYS

RUN OUT TO TRANSITION

RETURN SIGHTING BUOYS

NORTH AMERICAN TRICLUB CHAMPIONSHIP - CENTRAL



T1

Bike Start from 

Transition 1



T2 Bike In

T2 Run Out

Transition Area 2:

Texas Tech Lot Z1

Corner of Akron Ave. and Glenna 

Goodacre Blvd. Lubbock, TX 

79401

GPS Coordinates:

33°35'15.8"N 101°52'17.5"W

33.587716, -101.871532

Bike Finish 

at T2

























































Intersect ion 
Plan  



MAP LEGEND

Direction of Out Bound Bicycles

Direction of In Bound Bicycles

Direction of Vehicle Traffic

Traffic Cones

Police/Sheriff/State Trooper Traffic Control

KDOT Traffic Post (Green)/ Pointer (Orange)

Traffic Signal



Canyon Lake Dr & MLK Jr Blvd



MLK Jr Blvd & E 19th St



E 19th St & Spruce Ave 



E 19th St & 289 



E County Rd 6700 & FM 1729



FM 1729 & E Farm to Market Rd 3523



E Farm to Market Rd 3523 & 3400/400



3400 & E County Rd 6600



40 & 378 



Type III with no Thru Traffic Sign

Local Access Only

Cyclist 

Turnaround 

378 & 1525























































   
Regular City Council Meeting 7. 20.        
Meeting Date: 06/08/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - City Manager: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor, on behalf of the City of
Lubbock, to execute an agreement for professional legal services with Hacker Stephens LLP, and any
amendments thereto, and ratifying the acts of the City Manager in executing an agreement for legal
services with Hacker Stephens LLP.

Item Summary
This item amends the May 14, 2021 engagement letter for legal services with Hacker Stephens LLP, by
providing Council approval as contemplated in the original agreement.

Fiscal Impact
Sufficient funds are available for this engagement.

Staff/Board Recommending
W. Jarrett Atkinson, City Manager

Attachments
Resolution - Hacker Stephens LLP 
Engagement Letter - Hacker Stephens LLP 
Amendment - Hacker Stephens LLP Agreement 















   
Regular City Council Meeting 7. 21.        
Meeting Date: 06/08/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - City Manager: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute the Third
Amendment to the Memorandum of Understanding with Palisade Pipeline, LLC, to define roles and
responsibilities of the City of Lubbock and Palisade Pipeline, LLC.

Item Summary
On June 11, 2019, the City of Lubbock entered into a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with
Palisade Pipeline, LLC, (Palisade) to set forth certain expectations of discussion and negotiation between
the City and Palisade regarding the potential purchase by Palisade of up to 6 million gallons per day
(MGD) of reclaimed water produced by the City, and the lease of real property from the City. The term of
the MOU was for a period of 12 months with the opportunity for two 45-day extensions, if needed. This
time period, called the exclusivity period, allows Palisade to conduct its due diligence and negotiate the
terms of the Reclaimed Water Use Agreement with the City. Pursuant to the obligations set forth in the
MOU, Palisade paid $120,000 to the City, for the 12-month exclusivity period.

On May 26, 2020, staff recommended amending the MOU to extend the exclusivity period for an
additional 6 months at no additional cost, in light of the COVID-19 pandemic in which widespread travel
restrictions and business closures to the public were enacted.  On December 15, 2020, staff again
recommended amending the MOU to extend the exclusivity period for an additional 6 months at no
additional cost due to the ongoing impact of the pandemic.

Palisade Pipeline is requesting an extension of the MOU and exclusivity period for another 12 months, in
order to continue developing the project.  Staff recommends approval of the extension request at a cost of
$120,000.  Additionally, the amendment reduces the overall term of the future Reclaimed Water Purchase
Agreement to 24 years.

Fiscal Impact
Revenue of $120,000 to the General Fund

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager

Attachments
Resolution 





   
Regular City Council Meeting 8. 1.        
Meeting Date: 06/08/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning: Consider Ordinance No. 2021-O0063, for Zone Case 1788-F, a
request of McDougal Realtors for Lubbock Prosperity, L.P., for a zone change from General Retail
District (C-3) to General Retail District (C-3) Specific Use for a Blood Plasma Center, at 4841 50th Street,
located south of 50th Street and east of Wayne Avenue, Greenbrier Addition, Lot H. 

Item Summary
On May 25, 2021, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance.

For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto. As noted in the report, staff recommends approval of the request. The Planning and Zoning
Commission heard this case on May 6, 2021, and recommended approval of the request by a unanimous
vote.

Fiscal Impact
None 

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager
Planning and Zoning Commission 

Attachments
Ordinance 1788-F 
Staff Report 1788-F 
Documentation 1788-F 









Page 1 of 2 
 

 
Planning Department 
City of Lubbock 
 

Staff Report  Zone Case 1788-F 
City Council Meeting  May 25, 2021 

 
Applicant McDougal Realtors 
 
Property Owner  Lubbock Prosperity, LP 
 
Council District   4 
 
Recommendations   

• Staff recommends approval. 
 
Prior Board or Council Action 

• April 28, 1955: This property was annexed through Ordinance No. 1683.  
• November 22, 1955, Zone Case 540: This property was zoned to Single-Family District (R-1).  
• November 22, 1966, Zone Case 1430-A: This property was zoned from R-1 to Local Retail District (C-2), 

Multi-Family District (R-3), and High-Rise Apartment District (A-3). 
• July 10, 1969, Zone Case 1585-A-1: This property was zoned from R-3 to Family Apartment District (A-1) 
• March 9, 1972, Zone Case 1788: This property was zoned from C-2, A-3 and A-1 to C-2 and High-Density 

Apartment District (A-2). 
• July 12, 1973, Zone Case 1788-A: This property was zoned from R-1, C-2, and A-2 to C-2. 
• April 10, 1980, Zone Case 1788-B: This property was zoned from C-2 to General Retail District (C-3).  
• April 16, 1980, Special Exception Case E-0887: This property was granted a special exception for a 

greenhouse and plant nursery. 
• May 6, 2021, Zone Case 1788-F: The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of a zone 

change to C-3 with a Specific Use for a Blood Plasma Center by a vote of 5-0-0. 
 
Notification Summary   

• Notifications Sent: 25 
• Received In Favor: 0 
• Received In Opposition: 0 

 
Site Conditions and History 
The subject property was annexed in 1955 and was developed with a commercial building in 1980.  
 
Adjacent Property Development  
The property northwest of the subject property is zoned C-2, and the properties to the east are zoned C-2 and 
Commercial District (C-4) with a Specific Use for a Self-Storage Facility, and have been developed with 
commercial buildings. The properties to the north are zoned C-2 and Restricted Local Retail District (C-2A), and 
have been developed with commercial buildings. The properties to the south are zoned R-1 and have been 
developed with homes.  
 
Zoning Request and Analysis 
Item Summary 
The subject property is addressed at 4841 50th Street and is located south of 50th Street and east of Wayne 
Avenue. The applicant requests to re-zone the subject property from C-3 to C-3 with a Specific Use for a Blood 
Plasma Center.  
 
Current zoning:  General Retail District (C-3)  
 



Page 2 of 2 
 

Requested zoning:  General Retail District (C-3) with a Specific Use for a Blood Plasma Center  
 
Intent Statements 
The intent of the current C-3 zoning is “…to provide for general commercial uses which are medium activity 
centers in terms of generated traffic. Such districts should be adjacent to local or regional thoroughfares such 
as state or federal highways. Because of the commercial nature of the permitted uses, compatibility with 
adjacent residential areas should be considered.” 

 
The intent of the proposed Specific Use District zoning is “…to provide for design and land use flexibility in the 
various districts. This district provides for variations in the land use standards within the [zoning] ordinance, 
provided the intent, principles, and innovations of modern urban planning and design are used. The regulations 
require specific site planning on all aspects of proposed development to ensure that any variations of land uses 
or land use standards will be in harmony with the purposes and objectives of the zoning ordinance as stated in 
Section 1.”  
 
Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts 
The proposed Specific Use location is along 50th Street, which is designated as a Principal Arterial, and Wayne 
Avenue, which is designated as a Local street by the Master Thoroughfare Plan. Principal Arterial roads are 
designed for a higher intensity of traffic, while Local streets are designed for medium volumes of vehicles 
operating at lower speeds and provide access and movement within residential, commercial, and industrial areas 
(Comprehensive Plan, page 87). The proposed Specific Use will be suitable for these types of roads.  
 
Compatibility with Surrounding Property 
The proposed zoning is compatible with the surrounding area and will not change the character of the existing 
development. 
 
Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 
The proposed zoning request is in conformance with the zoning ordinance and is appropriate adjacent to other 
residential uses that are already established.  
 
Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 
The property is suitable for the proposed uses and will not need additional public improvements to support the 
intensity of uses described in the C-3 zoning district. 
 
Attachments 

A. Case Information 
B. Thoroughfare Plan Map 
C. Aerial Map 
D. Zoning Map 
E. Photos 
F. Application and supporting documents 

 
Staff Contacts 
Jacob Hawkins    Kristen Sager 
Planner     Planning and Zoning Manager 
Planning Department   Planning Department 
806-775-2096    806-775-2109 
jhawkins@mylubbock.us   ksager@mylubbock.us 

mailto:jhawkins@mylubbock.us
mailto:ksager@mylubbock.us


Attachment A   Page 1 of 2 

Case Information: Zone Case 1788-F 

Allowable Uses: General Retail District (C-3) 

Transportation:  The proposed development has points of access from 50th Street and Wayne 

Avenue.   

Thoroughfare Existing 
Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

50th Street 
Principal Arterial, 

Completed 

R.O.W. 110 feet, seven-
lane, undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 110 feet, five-
lane, undivided, paved 

Wayne Avenue 
Local, Completed 

R.O.W. 56 feet, two-lane, 
undivided, paved 

Two-lane, undivided, 
paved  

Engineering Comments:  No comments. 

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments: No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes 

5.2 Case 1788-F: McDougal Realtors for Lubbock Prosperity, LP 

Request for a Specific Use to allow a Blood Plasma Center on property zoned General Retail 

District (C-3), at: 

• 4841 50th Street, located south of 50th Street and east of Wayne Avenue, Greenbrier

Addition, Lot H.

PLANNER JACOB HAWKINS stated twenty-five (25) notifications were sent out with zero returned. Staff 

shared the location with maps and pictures and discussed the surrounding area. Staff recommends 

approval of the request. 

ASSISTANT CITY ATTORNEY KELLI LEISURE asked if the above address is the address in its entirety.  Staff 

replied it is, as the other tenant has a separate address.      

JEREMY STEEN with McDougal Realtors, 1500 Broadway, representing the applicant, advised he could 

answer any questions.  

Public Hearing 

WAYNE ARMSTRONG 3408 Belton Avenue stated the old Virginia College is going to be turned into 

Southcrest Christian School and wanted to know if there would be a separation requirement. Staff advised 

there would not. 

https://z2codes.franklinlegal.net/franklin/Z2Browser2.html?showset=lubbockset&collection=lubbock&doccode=z2Code_z20001272


Zone Case 1788-F 

Attachment A   Page 2 of 2 

In the matter of Zone Case 1788-F a motion was made by JAMES BELL seconded by JORDAN WHEATLEY 

to approve as presented and the Commission members voted 5 (in favor) to 0 (in opposition) to approve 

the motion. The item will be forwarded to City Council for consideration. 









1788-F 
 
 

 

View of subject property. View south. View of adjacent property. View east. 
 
 

 

 

View of adjacent property. View west. View of adjacent property. View north. 



aka Jui-Lien Chou Ho



ZAMHE SPACE 

L E A S E SPACE 
r5,55o 6CL r r . 

HOri L E A S E S P A C E S T I B SO. FT. 

iopoo sa. FT. 

L E A S E SPACS 
e.T04 SO. FT. 

•VI 

PROPOSES^ 
P L O O R P L A N 
SCALE, MOT TIP SCALE 

HEZ2AN>e SPACE 
IDS5 5 3 . F T . 

j v oJ 

[3 

v 

7 

, _ - AMI uuumfoo ^ 

a t tenon to O n M c **o 

Architects 
Daniel D. McQueen 
laaa m l s m L O I L , ICI 



Site Plan 

I; Bzzasvne Common 
Space Area 

\ 

• .34.5-

Family Dollar 
(O p e n i n g S e p t , 2 0 0 2) 

80.5' SxT 
OH Door 

M 

Picket Fence 
Craft Mail 

Hong Kong 
Restaurant 

^1 

S, 

50th Street 



   
Regular City Council Meeting 8. 2.        
Meeting Date: 06/08/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning: Consider Ordinance No. 2021-O0064, for Zone Case 2909-E, a
request of Callaway Architecture for S&S Commercial Properties, LTD, for a zone change from Interstate
Highway Commercial District (IHC) to Apartment-Medical District (AM) at 6401 Spur 327, located south
of Spur 327 and east of Milwaukee Avenue, on 2.289 acres of unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 36. 

Item Summary
On May 25, 2021, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance.

For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto. As noted in the report, staff recommends approval of the request. The Planning and Zoning
Commission heard this case on May 6, 2021, and recommended approval of the request by a unanimous
vote.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager
Planning and Zoning Commission 

Attachments
2909-E Ordinance 
2909-E Staff Report 
2909-E Documentation 









Ursuline  Street

M
ars

ha S
harp

e   
   

  U
S 6

2-8
2

S
lid

e
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
R

o
a
d

98th   Street

82nd   Street

Loop 2
89

Clovis Hwy.   US 84

M
ilw

a
u
k
e
e
 A

v
e
n
u
e

U
p
la

n
d
  
A

v
e
n
u
e

A
lc

o
v
e
  
  
A

v
e
n
u
e

F
ra

n
k
fo

rd
  
  
  
  
  
  
 A

v
e
n
u
e66th  Street

SPUR 327

In
le

r 
  
  
  
A

v
e
n
u
e

19th    Street

Q
u
it
s
n
a
  
 A

v
e
n
u
e

A
lc

o
v
e
  
  
A

v
e
n
u
e

U
p
la

n
d
  
A

v
e
n
u
e4th      Street

  
 M

ilw
a
u
k
e
e
  
  
A

v
e
n
u
e

A
v
e
n
u
e
  
  
  
A

M
.L

. 
K

in
g
 B

lv
d
.

Q
u
a
k
e
r 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
A

v
e
n
u
e

US 84

In
d
ia

n
a
  
 A

v
e
n
u
e

U
n
iv

e
rs

it
y
  
  
A

v
e
n
u
e

In
te

rs
ta

te
 H

w
y
. 
2
7

66th      Street

50th   Street

A
v
e
n
u
e
  
  
 P

Slaton Hwy.
82nd   Street

Erskine

U
n
iv

e
rs

it
y
  
  
  
  
  
  
A

v
e
n
u
e

19th                     Street

34th   StreetIn
d
ia

n
a
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
A

v
e
n
u
e

Erskine           Street

A
v
e
n
u
e
  
  
  
  
  
Q

4th    Street

Kent  Street

W
o
o
d

     
  M

unicipal D
r.

M
.L

. 
K

in
g
  
  
  
 B

lv
d
.

19th      Street

L
o
o
p
 2

8
9

Regis

Kent      Street

Bluefield

O
liv

e

US 8
2

130th   Street( F.M. 1585)

114th   Street

146th   Street

SITE

Loop 289

FIELD NOTES on a 2.289 acre tract out of the 3.174 acre tract described in

Lubbock County Clerk File Number 2016031692 and out of Section 36, Block

AK and further described by metes and bounds as follows:

BEGINNING at a set 1/2” iron rod with green cap marked RPLS 4460

(hereinafter referred to Abacus Cap) having Texas North Central Zone

Coordinates of North 7259592.77, East 915905.35 (NAD 83, 2011, Epoch

2010.0000) in the South line of the 3.174 acre tract for the Southwest corner of

this tract which bears S 88°10'18" E (Texas North Central Zone Bearing Basis),

598.09 feet and N 01°44'49” E, 1149.41 feet from the Southwest corner of

Section 36, Block AK;

THENCE  N 01°49'14" E, at 337.58 feet pass a set Abacus Cap, continuing for

a total distance of 393.33 feet to a set Abacus Cap for the Northwest corner of

this tract;

THENCE S 88°10'39" E, with the South line of Spur 327, a distance of 239.19

feet to a found 1/2" iron rod with yellow cap for the most Northerly Northeast

corner of this tract;

THENCE S 43°08'50" W, 21.19 feet to a found “X” in concrete in the West line

of La Salle Avenue, for the most Easterly Northeast corner of this tract;

THENCE S 01°50'50" W, with the West line of La Salle Avenue, 363.31 feet to

a found 1/2” iron rod with steel cap marked Abacus Engineering RPLS 4460

for the most Easterly Southeast corner of this tract;

THENCE S 46°33'42" W, 21.19 feet to a found 1/2” iron rod with steel cap

marked Abacus Engineering RPLS 4460 for the most Southerly Southeast

corner of this tract;

THENCE N 88°10'18" W, with the North line of 62nd Street, 239.09 feet to the

PLACE OF BEGINNING and containing 2.289 acres.

S:\COORDINATES\ALTA'S\MILWAUKEE BUISNESS PARK\TRACT C\35 AK 327 and La Salle.dwg, 1/11/2021 11:00:31 AM, DWG To PDF.pc3



Page 1 of 2 
 

 
Planning Department 
City of Lubbock 
 

Staff Report  Zone Case 2909-E 
City Council Meeting  May 25, 2021 

 
Applicant Callaway Architecture 
 
Property Owner  S&S Commercial Properties, LTD 
 
Council District   5 
 
Recommendations   

• Staff recommends Approval of this request. 
 
Prior Board or Council Action 

• September 11, 1958: The property was annexed through Ordinance No. 2535 and zoned Single-Family 
District (R-1).  

• April 12, 2001, Zone Case 2909: Subject Property rezoned to Interstate Highway Commercial District 
(IHC) from R-1. 

• May 6, 2021 Zone Case 2909-E: Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of a zone change 
to Apartment-Medical District (AM) from IHC by a vote of 5-0-0. 
 

Notification Summary   
• Notifications Sent: 6  
• Received In Favor: 2 
• Received In Opposition: 0 

 
Site Conditions and History 
The subject site has remained vacant since its annexation in 1958. 
 
Adjacent Property Development  
The subject property is bounded by Spur 327 to the north. All other surrounding properties are zoned IHC. There 
are hotels to the south and southeast. The lot to the west is vacant. Finally, the adjacent lot to the east is 
developed with an auto dealership. 
 
Zoning Request and Analysis 
Item Summary 
The subject property is addressed as 6401 Spur 327, located south of Spur 327 and east of Milwaukee Avenue. 
The applicant requests a zone change from Interstate Highway Commercial District (IHC) to Apartment-Medical 
District (AM), on as 2.289 acres of unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 36. The intent of this request is to 
develop a hospital. 
 
Current zoning:  Interstate Highway Commercial District (IHC) 
 
Requested zoning:  Apartment-Medical District (AM) 
 
Intent Statements 
The intent of the current IHC zoning is “… to provide for quality commercial office, retail and wholesale uses 
which serve a city-wide or regional area. Such uses require careful consideration when adjacent to residential 
areas.” 
 



Page 2 of 2 

The intent of the requested AM zoning is “… to provide for quality medical and related development through 
proper planning and design. The regulations are intended to produce an attractive environment which will ensure 
the compatibility between medical and other uses; encourage and protect future development; provide modern 
facilities for the public; provide proper accessory uses; and promote, stabilize, and enhance the city as a medical 
center.” 

Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts 
The proposed zone change location is along Spur 327, which is designated as a Freeway by the Master 
Thoroughfare Plan, 2018. Freeways are intended to serve regional needs with high volumes of traffic. The existing 
infrastructure can easily service the intensity of uses in this district.  

Compatibility with Surrounding Property 
The proposed zone change is compatible with the surrounding area and the existing development. A hospital will 
be compatible with the adjacent non-residential uses of the auto dealership and hotels.  

Conformance with Comprehensive Plan Principles and Future Land Use Map 
The principles outlined in the Comprehensive Plan designates the subject property for commercial/light retail 
land uses. The proposed zoning of AM is identified as low intensity office (p. 61), which is appropriate as 
nonresidential infill, and therefore appropriate in this location with other commercial uses. 

Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 
The proposed zone change is in conformance with the zoning ordinance and is appropriate adjacent the existing 
auto dealership and hotel uses already established.  

Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 
The property is suitable for the proposed use and will not need additional public improvements. 

Attachments 
A. Case Information
B. Thoroughfare Map
C. Notification Map
D. Aerial Map
E. Zoning Map
F. Future Land Use Map
G. Photos
H. Application and supporting documentation
I. Response Letters 

Staff Contacts 
Aaron Calloway  Kristen Sager 
Planner  Planning and Zoning Manager 
Planning Department Planning Department 
806-775-2120 806-775-2109
acalloway@mylubbock.us ksager@mylubbock.us

mailto:acalloway@mylubbock.us
mailto:ksager@mylubbock.us


Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 1 of 1 
 

 

Case Information: Zone Case 2909-E 

 

Allowable Uses:   Apartment-Medical District (AM) 

Transportation:  The proposed development has points of access from Spur 327 Frontage Road.  

Thoroughfare Existing 
Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

Spur 327 Frontage 
Road 

Freeway, Completed 

R.O.W. 110 feet, six-lane, 
divided, paved 

R.O.W. 110 feet, six-
lane, divided, paved 

  

Engineering Comments:  No comments. 

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments:  No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes 

5.3  Case 2909-E: Callaway Architecture for S&S Commercial Properties, LTD.     

Request for a zone change to Apartment-Medical District (AM) from Interstate Highway 

Commercial District (IHC) at:  

• 6401 Spur 327, located south of Spur 327 and east of Milwaukee Avenue, on 2.289 acres 

of unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 36. 

PLANNER AARON CALLOWAY stated six (6) notifications were sent out, with two (2) returned in favor and 

zero (0) returned opposed. Staff shared the location with maps and pictures and discussed the 

surrounding area. Staff recommends approval of the request. 

JEREMY STEEN with McDougal Relators 1500 Broadway representing the applicant as well as the buyer 

Dr. Patel, advised this will be a micro-hospital which allows longer stays for patients than freestanding 

Emergency rooms, which are limited to 23 hours maximum. 

Public Hearing 

No one spoke in favor or in opposition to the request.  

In the matter of Zone Case  2909-E a motion was made by JORDAN WHEATLEY  seconded by JAMES BELL 

to approve as presented and the Commission members voted 5 (in favor) to 0 (in opposition) to approve 

the motion. The item will be forwarded to City Council for consideration. 

 

https://z2codes.franklinlegal.net/franklin/Z2Browser2.html?showset=lubbockset&collection=lubbock&doccode=z2Code_z20001175
https://z2codes.franklinlegal.net/franklin/Z2Browser2.html?showset=lubbockset&collection=lubbock&doccode=z2Code_z20001175












Zone Case 2909-E 

 
 

 

 

View west. Subject Site.  View north. 
 
 

 

 

View east. View south. 





!�����
���*��)

���������"
��
*��)

�������������
���*� )

	�*��)

��*��)

����������

����������

�����������������!�
������

�����������������!�
�����������!����� �� �������

����������"�
���������
���


������������������
���
�

������������!�
����

�����������
�����

�������

����������"������������
���	

�����������������!���"����
�����������!����� �� ������

�����������������!�
������

�������!�����������
����

�����������
��

!�����!
!���

�����������

����,���������������
�����������������

����,���������������
�����������������

������������������������"
�����

����������������������
����


��������

�������-�����'�"��(�
�$���������!���

��$�����

����������������
�����

!�����!
!���

!�����!
!���

	*�
)

�#*�%)

��������

�����������������
���#
�*��)

���������!


*�%)


%*����,	)

����������

�,�
)�C��*��)
 ��������������

!�����
���*��)

���������"
��
*��)

�������������
���*� )

����������"����������
���


�������������
���

�����������������!�
�����������!����� �� �������

�����������������!
������

�����������������!
����

�����������������!
������

�����������
�����

������������!�
����

�����������������
�����

������+��"��

�������!������������!
�����

�������!���������������
������������!
��
�

�������!���������������
������������!
����

����������������
����

�����������������,�����
������������������

����������������
�����

����������"����������
���	�

�����������
�����

���������� ���������!

�*��)

��*��)

	�*��)

���������

���������



*�%)

����������"����������
���	�

�,�
)�C��*��)� ���������������

!�����
���*��)

���������"
��
*��)

�������������
���*� )

�����������������!�
������

�����������������!�
�����������!����� �� �������

����������"����������
���


������������������
�����

������������!�
����

�����������
�����

�������

����������"������������
���	

�����������������!�
������

�������!�����������
����

�����������
��	

!�����!
!���

��!��!�
'����������������!�( �����������

����,���������������
�����������������

����,���������������
�����������������

������������������������"
�����

����������������������
����


��������

��������

�������-�����'�"��(�

�$���������!���
��$�����

����������������
�����

���������!�

!�����!
!���

!�����!
!���

	*�
)

�#*�%)

�����������������
���#


%*����,	)

����������


�*�%)


*�%)

�,�
)�C��*��)	 ��������������

!�����
���*��)

���������"
��
*��)

�������������
���*� )

����������������
����

�����������������!�
������

�����������������!�
������

�����������
�����

�������!���!��!��
'���������������(�

����������"����������
���	�

�����������������
�����

�������!���������������
������������!���
�

�����������������
�����

������������������������"�
�������

�������������
��"����

����������
���


�����������

�*��)

����������

����������"�������������"���
���


�����������������!
������

�������!���!��!��'���������������(�

�����������������!
����

�������!���������������
������������!

���

�������!���������������
������������!

��


	�*��)

����������

��*��)

����������

������������������������"����
����
��

������������������������"�
�������

�����������������!�
�����������!����� �� �������

������+��"��

��������,!�����������������
���

����������"
���
�

�����������������
���#

�������!������������!����������
����

����������"
�����

����������"
����

�������������������"���
����

�����������������!���"���
������



*�%)

�*��)

����������

�,�
)�C��*��)� ���������������

������������
��������	
��������
��������������
�������������

������������

��  �!�"�#�$%&'�&(#'��)*

���������	
��

���������	��

����������	

����� ���	
	���������������������������
������ �����������������������������

������������
����� ������������������������
��������� 	��
���
� ���	
	�����������������������������
������ ����������������
����� ���������������
��������� 	��
����� ��� �����������!����������
������ ������!�
�"��� ���������
����� �����������
���	� ��� �����������!����������
������ ������!�
�"��� ��������
����� ������������
���#� ������#��$������������������������
������ ������
�"��� �������������������
����� �����������

���� ���	 	 ������������������!
������ ������
������� ������������
�������� �����%�%
��������� � ��
����� ������������ �� &#&�� ��������
��� ���	 	 ������������������!
������ ������
������� ������������
�������� �����%�%
��������� � ��
����� ������������ ��� �	�� ��������
���� ���	 	 ������������������!
������ ������
������� ������������
�������� �����%�%
��������� � ��
����� ������������ ��� ���� ��"�����
���% ���	 	 ������������������!
������ ������
������� ������������
�������� �����%�%
��������� � ��
����� ������������ ����	��� ������"�

!��"
���& ���	 	 ������������������!
������ ������
������� ������������
�������� �����%�%
��������� � ��
����� ������������ ����		�� ������!�

!��"
����� ���	 	 ������������������!
������ ������
������� ������������
�������� �����%�%
��������� � ��
����� ������������ �������� ��!���!���!�
����� ���	 	 ������������������!
������ ������
������� ������������
�������� �����%�%
��������� � ��
����� ������������ ��  ���� ������!����

���� �&�
	���������������������������
�����!

������ �����������"������
������� ��������������������
����� ������������ �������� ��!��!���!�
������� '��������$(
���
 �&�
	���������������������������

�����!
������ �����������"������
������� ��������������������
����� ������������ ����������������
������� '��������$(

���� �%�	��������������
������ ��������������������������������
������� ������� ��
����� ��������������

��� �%�		��������������
������ ��������������������������������
������� � ���������"�����
���������
����� ��������������

��� ��� ����������������!���
������ ������!��������������������������
����� ��������������
��
 ��� ����������������!���
������ ������!��������������������������
����� ���������������
��� ��� ����������������!���
������ ������!��������������������������
����� ��������������

���� �	�
����������"����������
������ �����"����"����������
����� ����!���������� !������

�������������������������������
�������������

��$����� ���������

!��� �%�%����!�����!
������ ��!�������������������������
�����) �)
�"��� ���������
!��
 �%�%����!�����!
������ ��!
�����) �)
�"��� ����������������������
!��� �%�%����!�����!
������ ��!
�����) �)
�"��� ��������

����� ���%
��������������
������ ������������������
�"��� ��!��������������
����� �������������������������������

�������������

������ �	�	����������������������������"
������ ��������
�"��� ���!�������������
����� �������������������������������

�������������
����
� �	�	����������������������������"
������ ��������
�"��� ���!��������������� �%)�$�
	)
����� �������������������������������

�������������

���������	
�����	�������



������������
��������	
��������
��������������
�������������

������������

��  �!�"�#�$%&'�&(#'��)*

���������	
��

���������	��

����������	



���������	

������
������


������	
������
�������
�
����	��������

�������	
��������

�	�����	����
���
������	�����

���������	


�	��������

�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�

������������
��������	
��������
��������������
�������������

������������

��  �!�"�#�$%&'�&(#'��)*

��������������

�������������

���	 �	!�!�







   
Regular City Council Meeting 8. 3.        
Meeting Date: 06/08/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning: Consider Ordinance No. 2021-O0065, for Zone Case 2984-M, a
request of Centerline Engineering & Consulting, LLC, for 34th & Upland Affordable Storage, Inc. and
87th Street Partners, LLC, for a zone change from Interstate Highway Commercial (IHC) and General
Retail District (C-3) to (C-3) with a Specific Use for a Self-Storage Facility and Two-Family District
(R-2), at 7115 and 7105 34th Street, located south of 34th Street and east of Upland Avenue, on 19.74
acres of unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 38. 

Item Summary
During the May, 25, 2021 City Council meeting, the thoroughfare types listed in the Staff Report for this
item were questioned.  Staff researched the concern, and identified inconsistencies within the data fields
included in the GIS version of the Master Thoroughfare Plan map.  These items are being corrected by the
City of Lubbock GIS Department, and the Staff Report has been updated to identify the correct
thoroughfare types.

On May 25, 2021, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance.

For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto. As noted in the report, staff recommends approval of the request. The Planning and Zoning
Commission heard this case on May 6, 2021, and recommended approval of the request by a unanimous
vote.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager
Planning and Zoning Commission 

Attachments
2984-M Ordinance 
2984-M Staff Report 
2984-M Documentation 









C-3 Specific Use 

(Self Storage) 

Description 

BEING a 4.5 acres out of a 20.5 acre tract described in Volume 10361, Page 115, Official Public Records, 
Lubbock, Texas, located in Section 38, Block AK, G.C. S.F. Railroad Co Survey, Lubbock County, 
Texas, and being further described be metes and bounds as follows; 

 

COMMENCING at a point being the Northwest Corner of said Section 38 and being the same as 
Northwest Corner of said 20.5 acre tract; 

 

THENCE South 88°11’18” East a distance of 85.00 feet along the north line of said Section 38, and South 
1°52’11” West a distance of 54.97 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING; 

 

THENCE South 88°11’11” East a distance of 519.87 feet to a point for this tract; 

 

THENCE South 1°48’27” West a distance of 357.52 feet to a point for this tract; 

 

THENCE North 88°10’54” West a distance of 550.26 feet to a point for this tract; 

 

THENCE North 1°52’11” East a distance of 327.48 feet to a point for this tract; 

 

THENCE North 46°50’30” a distance of 42.45 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING and containing within 
these calls a calculated area of 4.5 acres more or less. 

 

 



R-2 

Description 

BEING a 13.26 acres out of a 20.5 acre tract described in Volume 10361, Page 115, Official Public 
Records, Lubbock, Texas, located in Section 38, Block AK, G.C. S.F. Railroad Co Survey, Lubbock 
County, Texas, and being further described be metes and bounds as follows; 

 

COMMENCING at a point being the Northwest Corner of said Section 38 and being the same as 
Northwest Corner of said 20.5 acre tract; 

 

THENCE South 88°11’18” East a distance of 604.81 feet along the north line of said Section 38, and 
South 1°48’27” West a distance of 54.99 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING; 

 

THENCE South 88°11’33” East a distance 282.00 feet to a point for this tract; 

 

THENCE South 1°48’27” West a distance of 712.74 feet to a point for this tract; 

 

THENCE South 46°45’46” West a distance 14.09 feet to a point for this tract; 

 

THENCE North 88°11’34” West a distance of 548.32 feet to a point for this tract; 

 

THENCE South 1°48’27” West a distance of 674.22 feet to a point for this tract; 

 

THENCE North 70°20’55” West a distance 288.91 feet to a point for this tract; 

 

THENCE North 1°52’11” East a distance of 950.99 feet to a point for this tract; 

 

THENCE South 88°10’54” East a distance of 550.26 feet to a point for this tract; 

 

THENCE North 1°48’27” East a distance of 357.52 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING and containing 
within these calls a calculated area of 13.26 acres more or less. 



Page 1 of 3 
 

 
Planning Department 
City of Lubbock 
 

Staff Report  Zone Case 2984-M 
City Council Meeting  May 25, 2021 

 
Applicant Centerline Engineering & Consulting LLC 
 
Property Owner  34th & Upland Affordable Storage Inc. and 87th Street Partners LLC 
 
Council District   4 
 
Recommendations   

• Staff recommends Approval. 
 
Prior Board or Council Action 

• September 27, 1984: The north half of this property was annexed through Ordinance No. 8660 and zoned 
Transition (T). 

• October 10, 1985, Zone Case 2538: The north half of this property was rezoned from T to Single-Family 
District (R-1). 

• January 14, 1999: The south half of this property was annexed through Ordinance No. 10117 and zoned 
T.  

• November 6, 2003, Zone Case 2984: A portion of the north half of this property was rezoned from R-1 to 
General Retail District (C-3). 

• August 16, 2004, Zone Case 2984-A: The south half of this property was rezoned from T to Interstate 
Highway Commercial (IHC).  

• January 22, 2019, Zone Case 3365: A portion of the north half of this property was rezoned from R-1 to 
C-3 Specific Use for mini-warehouses.  

• May 6, 2021, Zone Case 2984-M: The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of a zone 
change to C-3 with a Specific Use for a Self-Storage Facility and Two-Family District (R-2) by a vote of  
5-0-0. 

 
Notification Summary   

• Notifications Sent: 75 
• Received In Favor: 0 
• Received In Opposition: 1 

 
Site Conditions and History 
The subject property was annexed in 1984 and 1999, and has remained vacant and unsubdivided.  
 
Adjacent Property Development  
The properties to the north are zoned R-1 with a Specific Use for Residential Estates and have been developed 
with homes. The properties to the east are zoned R-1 with a Specific Use for reduced setbacks and have been 
developed with single-family homes. The properties to the south are zoned Family Apartment District (A-1), R-1 
Specific Use for reduced setbacks, and Industrial Park (IDP). The properties to the west are zoned R-1, T, and C-
3 and have been developed with homes.  
 
 
 
 
 



Page 2 of 3 
 

Zoning Request and Analysis 
Item Summary 
The subject property is addressed as 7115 and 7105 34th Street and is located south of 34th Street and east of 
Upland Avenue. The applicant requests to rezone the subject property from C-3 to C-3 with a Specific Use for a 
Self-Storage Facility and Two-Family District (R-2).  
 
Current zoning:  General Retail District (C-3) and Interstate Highway Commercial (IHC) 
 
Requested zoning:  General Retail District (C-3) with a Specific Use for a Self-Storage Facility and 

Two-Family District (R-2).  
Intent Statements 
The intent of the current and proposed C-3 zoning is “…to provide for general commercial uses which are medium 
activity centers in terms of generated traffic. Such districts should be adjacent to local or regional thoroughfares 
such as state or federal highways. Because of the commercial nature of the permitted uses, compatibility with 
adjacent residential areas should be considered.” 
 
The intent of the current IHC zoning is “…to provide for quality commercial office, retail and wholesale uses 
which serve a city-wide or regional area. Such uses require careful consideration when adjacent to residential 
areas.” 
 
The intent of the proposed R-2 zoning is “…to promote stable, quality residential development of slightly 
increased densities and multiple occupancy. This district may include entire neighborhoods or when used in 
accordance with the intent of the comprehensive plan, may provide a “buffer” district between low-density and 
high-density or non-residential districts.”  
 
Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts 
The proposed rezoning location is along 34th Street and Upland Avenue, both of which are designated as Principal 
Arterials (Modified) by the Master Thoroughfare Plan, 2018. Principal Arterial (Modified) roads are designed for 
a higher intensity of traffic. The proposed rezoning will be suitable for these types of roads.  
 
Compatibility with Surrounding Property 
The proposed zoning is compatible with the surrounding area and will not change the character of the existing 
development.  
 
Conformance with Comprehensive Plan Principles and Future Land Use Map 
The principles outlined in the Comprehensive Plan designate this area for “Commercial/Light Retail”. The level 
of intensity for a self-storage facility is appropriate for this area, and C-3 conforms to the Comprehensive Plan 
principles and Future Land Use Plan. The surrounding properties are designated low-density residential, and R-2 
would be compatible adjacent to those properties.  
 
Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 
The proposed zoning request is in conformance with the zoning ordinance. The R-2 zoning is appropriate adjacent 
to other residential uses that are already established and the Specific Use for a Self-Storage Facility will provide 
a buffer between the residential uses and adjacent thoroughfares.  
 
Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 
The property is suitable for the proposed uses and will not need additional public improvements to support the 
intensity of uses described in the R-2 zoning district, or for the Self-Storage Facility. 
 
Attachments 

A. Case Information 
B. Thoroughfare Plan Map 
C. Notification Map 



Page 3 of 3 
 

D. Aerial Map 
E. Zoning Map 
F. Future Land Use Map 
G. Photos 
H. Application and supporting documents 
I. Notification Response Letters 

 
 
 
Staff Contacts 
Jacob Hawkins    Kristen Sager 
Planner     Planning and Zoning Manager 
Planning Department   Planning Department 
806-775-2096    806-775-2109 
jhawkins@mylubbock.us   ksager@mylubbock.us 

mailto:jhawkins@mylubbock.us
mailto:ksager@mylubbock.us


Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 1 of 2 
 

 

Case Information: Zone Case 2984-M 

 

Allowable Uses:   General Retail District (C-3) and Two-Family District (R-2) 

Transportation:  The proposed development has points of access from 34th Street and Upland 

Avenue.   

Thoroughfare Existing 
Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

34th Street 
Minor Arterial 

Modified, Partial 

R.O.W. 110 feet, two-lane, 
undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 110 feet, five-
lane, undivided, paved 

Upland Avenue 
Minor Arterial 

Modified, Partial 

R.O.W. 110 feet, two-lane, 
undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 110 feet, two-
lane, undivided, paved  

  

Engineering Comments:  No comments. 

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments:  No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes 

 5.4  Case 2984-M: Centerline Engineering & Consulting LLC for 34th & Upland Affordable 

Storage Inc. and 87th Street Partners LLC 

Request for a zone change from Interstate Highway Commercial (IHC) and General Retail District 

(C-3) to C-3 with a Specific Use for a Self-Storage Facility and Two-Family District (R-2), at: 

• 7115 and 7105 34th Street, located south of 34th Street and east of Upland Avenue, on 

19.74 acres of unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 38. 

PLANNER JACOB HAWKINS stated there were seventy-five (75) notifications sent out, with zero (0) 

returned in favor and one (1) returned opposed with no additional comments. Staff shared the location 

with maps and pictures and discussed the surrounding area. Staff recommends approval of the request. 

APPLICANT PHILLIP TRUONG Centerline Engineering 8312 Upland advised they are wanting to develop a 

residential area on the R-2 parcel, which is adjacent to the already existing residential property, and 

construct a self-storage facility on the hard corner, where they are requesting C-3 Specific Use. 

Public Hearing 

No one spoke in favor or in opposition to the request.  

https://z2codes.franklinlegal.net/franklin/Z2Browser2.html?showset=lubbockset&collection=lubbock&doccode=z2Code_z20001272
https://z2codes.franklinlegal.net/franklin/Z2Browser2.html?showset=lubbockset&collection=lubbock&doccode=z2Code_z20001107


Zone Case 2984-M 
 

Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 2 of 2 
 

In the matter of Zone Case 2984-M a motion was made by JORDAN WHEATLEY seconded by JAMES BELL 

to approve as presented and the Commission members voted 5 (in favor) to 0 (in opposition) to approve 

the motion. The item will be forwarded to City Council for consideration. 

 





TR
EN

TO
N 

  A
VE

UP
LA

ND
    

 AV
E

35TH  PL

ROCHES
TE

R   A
VE

34TH   PL

36TH   ST 35
TH

  S
T

38TH  ST

34TH    ST

SA
RA

TO
GA

   A
VE

ROSS   AVE

SA
RA

TO
GA

   A
VE

37TH   ST

ROCHESTER   AVE

PZC Mailout 
Notifications Received

³
Legend

Mailout Buffer 2984-M
Notification Result

In Favor
No Feedback
Opposed

0 340 680170 Feet
Date: 5/6/2021

Created by Planning Department









2984-M 
 
 

 

View of subject property. View south. View of adjacent property. View east. 
 
 

 

 

View of adjacent property. View north. View of adjacent property. View west. 



Lubbock -If' TEXAS 

Project Information 

Lubbock Planning Department 
PO Box 2000 / 1314 Avenue K 

Lubbock, TX 79457 
APPLICATION FOR ZONING CHANGE 

Location or Address: SE Corner of Upland Ave. & 34th Street (Proposed West Milwaukee Ridge Addition) 

Lots/Tracts: Tract A, Lots 1 thru 70 

survey & Abstract: Section 38 , Block AK, GC&SF RR CO Survey, Abstract 689 

Metes and Bounds Attached: Yes 0 No □ Total Acreage of Request:_1_9_
. 7_4 ______ _ 

Existing Land Use: Vacant Existin� Zoning:_IH--,--C _&_ C_-3 ________ _

Requested zoning: C-3 Specific  Use - Self Storage (Tract A) & R-2 (Lots 1 thru 70 ) 

If property is not subdivided, will a preliminary plat be submitted? 

Representative/ Agent Information (if different from owner) 

Firm Name: Centerline Engineering & Consulting LLC 

Name: Phillip Truong 

Yes 0 No □

Address: 8312 Upland Ave City: Lubbock state: TX 
----------- -----

ZIP Code: 79424 Telephone: 806 -4 70 -8686 Email: ptruong@centerlineengineering.net 
-------

Applicant's Signature: � /� .. 
Date: 3/31/2021 Printed Name: Ph1ll1p Truong 

Owner Information 

Firm Name: 

----------------

--------------------------------

0 w n er: 34 th & Upland Affordable Storage INC/ 87 th Street Partners LLC 

Address: 3110 Frankford Ave/ 6305 82 nd St City: Lubbock stat�:_T_X __ _ 

ZIP Code: 79407 / 79424 - - 806-797-9494 Email: postarmicheal@gmail.com/ Rickb@betenbough.com 

Property Owner's Signature:
--i

.,._,,_ .......... ..__-"--+ _ __,__,,, ___ �+------------------
Date: 3/31/2021 

Preparer Information 

rinted Name: Micheal Postar / Rick Betenbaugh 

Preparers Signature:-J-A..1.� ..... �""· .... �"1!""'. :......L./-'-'1 .... u ... '4.u.��'-------.-.--------------
Date: 3/31/2021 Printed Name: Phillip Truong 

For City Use Only 

Zone Case No: ----------- Planning and Zoning Commission Date: ______ _ 

Request for zoning change from: ___________ To: ____________ _ 

Lots: ______________ Blocks: _________________ _ 
Addition: 

---------------------------------

1 f you have any questions pertaining to the zoning process, please contact the City of Lubbock Planning Department 
by phone at (806) 775 - 2108 or by e-mail at cityplanning@mylubbock.us. 





   
Regular City Council Meeting 8. 4.        
Meeting Date: 06/08/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning: Consider Ordinance No. 2021-O0066, for Zone Case 2985-C, a
request of Seventeen Services, LLC for Edge Construction, for a zone change from Garden Office (GO) to
Apartment Medical (AM) at 5614 114th Street, located east of Elkhart Avenue and north of 114th Street,
114th & Elkhart Office Park Addition, Tract A. 

Item Summary
On May 25, 2021, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance.

For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto. As noted in the report, staff recommends approval of the request. The Planning and Zoning
Commission heard this case on May 6, 2021, and recommended approval of the request by a unanimous
vote.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager
Planning and Zoning Commission 

Attachments
2985-C Ordinance 
2985-C Staff Report 
2985-C Documentation 







Page 1 of 2 

Planning Department 

City of Lubbock 

Staff Report Zone Case 2985-C 
City Council Meeting May 25, 2021 

Applicant Seventeen Services, LLC 

Property Owner  Edge Construction  

Council District  5 

Recommendations 

 Staff recommends Approval of the request.

Prior Board or Council Action 

 January 14, 1999: This property was annexed through Ordinance No. 10117 and was zoned Transition

(T).

 December 18, 2003: This property was rezoned to Garden Office (GO) from T through Ordinance No.

2003-O0129.

 May 6, 2021, Zone Case 2985-C: The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of a zone

change to Apartment Medical (AM) from GO by a vote of 5-0-0.

Notification Summary 

 Notifications Sent: 18

 Received In Favor: 0

 Received In Opposition: 0

Site Conditions and History 

The subject property was annexed in 1999 and has since remained vacant. 

Adjacent Property Development 

The properties to the east and south are zoned Garden Office (GO). New garden offices are being developed to 

the south and the property to the east is vacant. The property to the west is zoned High Density Apartment 

District (A-2) and is vacant. The properties to the north are zoned Single Family District (R-1) with a Specific Use 

for reduced setbacks and are developed with homes.  

Zoning Request and Analysis 

Item Summary 

The subject property is addressed as 5614 114th Street and is located north of 114th Street and east of Elkhart 

Avenue. The applicant is requesting a zone change to Apartment Medical (AM) from GO. 

Current zoning:  Garden Office (GO)  

Requested zoning: Apartment-Medical District (AM) 

Intent Statements 

The intent of the proposed AM zoning is “…to provide for quality medical and related development through proper 

planning and design. The regulations are intended to produce an attractive environment which will ensure the 

compatibility between medical and other uses; encourage and protect future development; provide modern 

facilities for the public; provide proper accessory uses; and promote, stabilize, and enhance the city as a medical 

center. When proposed development in this district is adjacent to any residentially zoned property, the proposed 



Page 2 of 2 

 

development shall be designed to provide for maximum compatibility with the adjacent development. 

Architectural design, landscaping, screening, and parking areas shall be properly provided to ensure maximum 

protection of the adjacent uses.” 

 

The intent of the current GO zoning is “…provide for quality garden office development through proper planning 

and design. The regulations are intended to produce an attractive environment which will ensure the 

compatibility between offices and adjacent uses and promote a stable environment between residential and 

commercial uses. When proposed garden office development is adjacent to any residentially zoned property, 

design standards and site planning shall provide for maximum compatibility with the adjacent residential zoning 

districts.”  

 

Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts 

The proposed rezoning location is along 114th Street, which is designated as a Minor Arterial by the Master 

Thoroughfare Plan, 2018. Minor Arterials serve high volume needs of local traffic and regional traffic and are 

more than capable of supporting the level of traffic that AM zoning generates. 

 

Compatibility with Surrounding Property 

The proposed zoning is compatible with the surrounding area and will not change the character of the existing 

development. The proposed use for the subject property is a daycare facility which is compatible with 

surrounding GO and R-1 zoning.  

 

Conformance with Comprehensive Plan Principles and Future Land Use Map 

The principles outlined in the Comprehensive Plan designates this area for “Low Intensity Office” and notes that 

land uses in these areas can take numerous forms depending on context. The AM zoning is consistent with the 

Low Intensity Office designation. 

 

Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 

The proposed zoning request is in conformance with the zoning ordinance and is appropriate adjacent to other 

residential and garden office uses that are already established.  

 

Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 

The property is suitable for the proposed uses and will not need additional public improvements to support the 

intensity of uses described in the AM zoning district. 

 

Attachments 

A. Case Information 

B. Thoroughfare Plan Map     

C. Aerial Map 

D.  Zoning Map 

E.  Future Land Use Map 

F.  Photos 

G.  Application and Supporting Documents 

 

Staff Contacts 

Ashley Vasquez    Kristen Sager 

Planner     Planning and Zoning Manager 

Planning Department   Planning Department 

806-775-2107    806-775-2109 

ashleyvasquez@mylubbock.us   ksager@mylubbock.us 

 

 

 

mailto:ashleyvasquez@mylubbock.us
mailto:ksager@mylubbock.us


Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 1 of 1 
 

 

Case Information: Zone Case 2985-C 

 

Allowable Uses:   Apartment-Medical (AM)   

Transportation:  The proposed development has points of access from 114th Street.  

Thoroughfare Existing 
Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

114th Street 
Minor Arterial, Partial 

R.O.W. 110 feet, three-
lane, undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 110 feet, five-
lane, undivided, paved 

  

Engineering Comments:  No comments. 

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments:  No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes 

 5.5  Case 2985-C: Seventeen Services LLC for Edge Construction 

Request for a zone change to Apartment Medical (AM) from Garden Office (GO) at: 

• 5614 114th Street, located east of Elkhart Avenue and north of 114th Street, 114th & 

Elkhart Office Park Addition, Tract A. 

PLANNER ASHLEY VASQUEZ stated that were eighteen (18) notifications sent out, with zero (0) returned. 

Staff shared the location with maps and pictures and discussed the surrounding area. Staff recommends 

approval of the request. 

APPLICANT ETHAN MORRISON with Seventeen Services, 1500 Broadway, Suite 203, advised he did not 

have anything else to add, but was available for questions. 

Public Hearing 

No one spoke in favor or in opposition to the request.  

In the matter of Zone Case 2985-C a motion was made by JAMES BELL seconded by JORDAN WHEATLEY 

to approve as presented and the Commission members voted 5 (in favor) to 0 (in opposition) to approve 

the motion. The item will be forwarded to City Council for consideration. 

https://z2codes.franklinlegal.net/franklin/Z2Browser2.html?showset=lubbockset&collection=lubbock&doccode=z2Code_z20001175










2985-C 

 

  

Subject property view to the east. View to the north. 

View to the west. View to the south across 114th Street. 

  





   
Regular City Council Meeting 8. 5.        
Meeting Date: 06/08/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning: Consider Ordinance No. 2021-O0067, for Zone Case 3050-G, a
request of AMD Engineering, LLC for Lubbock Land Investments IV, LP, for a zone change from Single
Family District (R-1) Specific Use to Two-Family District (R-2), generally located north of 123rd Street
and west of Memphis Avenue, on 4.50 acres of unplatted land out of Block E2, Section 22. 

Item Summary
On May 25, 2021, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance.

For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto. As noted in the report, staff recommends approval of the request. The Planning and Zoning
Commission heard this case on May 6, 2021, and recommended approval of the request by a vote of 4-1-0.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager
Planning and Zoning Commission 

Attachments
3050-G Ordinance 
3050-G Staff Report 
3050-G Documentation 









AMD ENGINEERING, LLC

 
Rezone to R-2 

 

METES AND BOUNDS DESCRIPTION of a 4.50 acre (196,055 SF) tract of land 

located in Section 22, Block E-2, City of Lubbock, Lubbock County, Texas, prepared for 

Zone Change Purposes only and being further described as follows: 
 

BEGINNING at a point in which bears N 41°45’06” E approximately 1465.10 feet from 

the southwesternmost corner of the recorded plat for Lots 1-40, Hatton Place, an addition 

to the City of Lubbock, Lubbock County, Texas; 
 

THENCE S 88°10’50” E an approximate distance of 894.06 feet; 

 

THENCE S 43°11’07” E an approximate distance of 21.21 feet; 

 

THENCE S 01°48’37” W an approximate distance of 90.00 feet; 

 

THENCE S 46°48’53” W an approximate distance of 14.14 feet; 

 

THENCE N 88°10’50” W an approximate distance of 302.59 feet; 

 

THENCE S 01°49’10” W an approximate distance of 125.00 feet; 

 

THENCE S 46°49’10” W an approximate distance of 14.14 feet; 

 

THENCE N 88°10’50” W an approximate distance of 113.13 feet; 

 

THENCE southwesterly, along a curve to the left, and arc distance of 167.07 feet, said 

curve having a radius of 532.51 feet, delta angle of 72°01’28”, a chord distance of 166.38 

feet, and a chord bearing of S 85°24’22” W, to a point of reverse curvature; 

 

THENCE southwesterly, along a curve to the left, and arc distance of 80.64 feet, said 

curve having a radius of 300.00 feet, delta angle of 74°35’57”, a chord distance of 80.40 

feet, and a chord bearing of S 84°07’08” W, to a point of tangency; 

 

THENCE N 88°10’50” W an approximate distance of 48.86 feet; 

 

THENCE N 43°12’02” W an approximate distance of 21.21 feet; 

 

THENCE N 88°12’02” W an approximate distance of 56.00 feet; 

 

THENCE S 46°47’58” W an approximate distance of 21.21 feet; 

 

THENCE N 88°12’02” W an approximate distance of 93.50 feet; 



THENCE N 43°12’02” W an approximate distance of 14.14 feet; 

 

THENCE N 01°47’58” E an approximate distance of 259.36 feet; 
 

THENCE N 46°47’58” E an approximate distance of 14.14 feet to the Point of 

Begginning and containing approximately 4.50 acres, including any Right of Way. 
 

PREPARED FOR ZONE CHANGE REQUEST ONLY; DOES NOT REPRESENT A SURVEY. 

 
 

Prepared for:  Brooke Heights II, LTD. 

March 31, 2021 

 

 

 





Page 1 of 2 
 

 
Planning Department 
City of Lubbock 
 

Staff Report  Zone Case 3050-G 
City Council Meeting May 25, 2021 

 
Applicant AMD Engineering, LLC  
 
Property Owner  Brooke Heights II, LTD 
 
Council District   4 
 
Recommendations   

• Staff recommends Approval. 
 
Prior Board or Council Action 

• June 23, 2005: This property was annexed through Ordinance No. 2005-O0067 and zoned Transition (T).  
• November 10, 2005, zone case 3050: This property was rezoned from Transition (T) to Single-Family 

District (R-1) with a Specific Use for reduced setbacks through Ordinance No. 2005-O0128. 
• May 6, 2021 Zone Case 3050-G: The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of a zone 

change to Two-Family District (R-2) from Single-Family District (R-1) with a Specific Use for reduced 
setbacks by a vote of 4-1-0. 

 
Notification Summary   

• Notifications Sent: 13 
• Received In Favor: 1 
• Received In Opposition: 1 

 
Site Conditions and History 
The subject property was annexed in 2005 and has since remained undeveloped and unplatted.  
 
Adjacent Property Development  
The properties to the east, south and west are zoned Single-Family District (R-1) with a Specific Use for reduced 
setbacks and are partially developed with single family homes.  The property to the north is vacant, but was 
recently rezoned to High-Density Apartment District (A-2) and Garden Office (GO).  
 
Zoning Request and Analysis 
Item Summary 
The subject property is located south of 122nd Street and west of Memphis Avenue. The applicant requests to 
rezone 4.50 acres of unplatted land out of Block E2, Section 22, with the intent to construct townhomes. 
 
Current zoning:  Single-Family District (R-1) with a Specific Use for reduced setbacks 
 
Requested zoning:  Two-Family District (R-2) 
 
Intent Statements 
The intent of the proposed R-2 zoning is, “…to promote stable, quality residential development of slightly 
increased densities and multiple occupancy. This district may include entire neighborhoods or when used in 
accordance with the intent of the comprehensive plan, may provide a “buffer” district between low-density 
and high-density or non-residential districts.” 

 



Page 2 of 2 

The intent of the current R-1 zoning is “…to promote orderly and proper development of single-family residential 
units; to protect established and future single-family residential developments from inharmonious and harmful 
land uses; and to provide a “quality environment” for the residents of the district and city.” 

Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts 
The proposed rezoning location will be along 122nd Street, which is designated as a proposed Collector street, 
and Memphis Avenue, which is designated as a proposed Collector street by the Master Thoroughfare Plan, 2018. 
This type of road allows for an efficient and highly connected means of transportation by limiting trip lengths 
throughout the City and providing multiple route options for roadway users.  Depending on the number of units 
being proposed and the need for fire hydrants, a significant water line extension may be required.

Compatibility with Surrounding Property 
The proposed zoning is compatible with the surrounding area and will not change the character of the existing 
development. The proposed use is for the development for townhomes. 

Conformance with Comprehensive Plan Principles and Future Land Use Map 
The principles outlined in the Comprehensive Plan designates this area for “Low Density Residential” land uses 
and notes that land uses in these areas can take numerous forms depending on context. The level of intensity 
for R-2 is appropriate for this area. The Future Land Use Plan designates all surrounding properties as Low Density 
Residential. The Comprehensive Plan and Future Land Use Plan anticipates that additional areas for Medium 
Density residential land uses could be developed in the future.  

Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 
The proposed zoning request is in conformance with the zoning ordinance and is appropriate adjacent to other 
residential uses that are already established.  

Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 
The property is suitable for the proposed uses and will not need additional public improvements to support the 
intensity of uses described in the R-2 zoning district. 

Attachments 
A. Case Information
B. Thoroughfare Plan Map
C. Notification Map
D. Aerial Map
E. Zoning Map
F. Future Land Use Map
G. Photos
H. Application and Supporting Documentation
I. Notification Response Letters

Staff Contacts 
Ashley Vasquez  Kristen Sager 
Planner  Planning and Zoning Manager 
Planning Department Planning Department 
806-775-2107 806-775-2109
ashleyvasquez@mylubbock.us ksager@mylubbock.us

mailto:ashleyvasquez@mylubbock.us
mailto:ksager@mylubbock.us


Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 1 of 2 
 

 

Case Information: Zone Case 3050-G 

 

Allowable Uses:   Two-Family District (R-2)    

Transportation:  The proposed development has points of access from 122nd Street.  

Thoroughfare Existing 
Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

122nd Street 
Collector, Partial 

R.O.W. 64 feet, two-lane, 
undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 64 feet, four-
lane, undivided, paved 

  

Engineering Comments:  Water is very limited in this area with 4 and 6-inch mains. Depending on the 

number of units and the need for fire hydrants, a significant water extension 

may be required to serve this area for this use.   

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments:  No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes 

 5.6  Case 3050-G: AMD Engineering, LLC for Brooke Heights II, LTD 

Request for a zone change to Two-Family District (R-2) from Single Family District (R-1) Specific 

Use at: 

• Generally located north of 123rd Street and west of Memphis Avenue, on 4.50 acres of 

unplatted land out of Block E2, Section 22. 

PLANNER ASHLEY VASQUEZ stated there were thirteen (13) notifications sent out, with one (1) returned 

in favor and one (1) returned in opposition. There was also two letters received from outside of the 

notification area. The concerns are that new residents will use the park without paying HOA fees, along 

with drainage and safety issues.  Staff shared the location with maps and pictures and discussed the 

surrounding area. Staff recommends approval of the request. 

BOARDMEMBER SUSAN TOMLINSON asked if staff could point out the park in the aerial photo. Mrs. 

Kristen Sager deferred to the applicant. 

CHAIR ZACH SAWYER stated that concerns regarding drainage and use of the park are outside of the 

Commission’s purview. 

ASSISTANT CITY ATTORNEY KELLI LEISURE stated that is correct it is not part of the zone change 

request. 

BOARDMEMBER DAN WILSON stated it is a common concern for residents, as most people believe all 

parks are City owned. This would need to be addressed by the builders or developers if it is an issue. 

https://z2codes.franklinlegal.net/franklin/Z2Browser2.html?showset=lubbockset&collection=lubbock&doccode=z2Code_z20001107


Zone Case 3050-G 
 

Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 2 of 2 
 

APPLICANT WESTIN MCCOWEN AMD Engineering 6515 68th Street stated that he did not have anything 

else to add. He answered the questions regarding the park and advised the development would be 

townhomes. 

Public Hearing 

No one spoke in favor or in opposition to the request.  

In the matter of Zone Case 3050-G a motion was made by JAMES BELL seconded by DAN WILSON to 

approve as presented and the Commission members voted 4 (in favor) to 1 (in opposition) to approve the 

motion. The item will be forwarded to City Council for consideration.  

JORDAN WHEATLEY cast the vote in opposition. 

 













3050-G 

 

  

Subject property view to the east. View to the north. 

View to the west. View to the south. 

  









From: CityPlanning
To: Ashley Vasquez
Subject: FW: Zone Case 3050-G
Date: Thursday, May 6, 2021 8:28:18 AM

 
 
From: Terry Ely <terryely2@gmail.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, May 5, 2021 7:33 PM
To: CityPlanning <cityplanning@mail.ci.lubbock.tx.us>
Subject: Zone Case 3050-G
 
RE: Zone Case 3050-G
 
We are opposed to the request for a variance change by Lubbock
Land Company. 
 
 
The proposed plat has been changed to a high density housing project directly across the street
from our small park where many little children play every day, neighbors walk their dogs in
the park and others exercise in the park, our home is just south of the park.      
 
  
Almost three years ago, we had our home built and moved to Brooke Heights with the hope of
enjoying family, friends and neighbors in a well-kept and safe subdivision.  The concerns we
all share as a community essentially fall into two areas: overall security of our neighborhood
and diminished property values. 
 
 
We are very concerned about these 29 acres that is or was a part of the original Brooke
Heights sub-division located south of 122nd Street to 128th Street, from Memphis to
Nashville. We would like to see the continuation of rear-entry single family homes with a
minimum of 2,200 square feet not high density housing. 
 
 
 Thank you and most sincerely,
 
Terry & Jo Ann Ely
3913 – 124th Street
806-798-2259 (home)

mailto:cityplanning@mail.ci.lubbock.tx.us
mailto:AshleyVasquez@mail.ci.lubbock.tx.us


From: CityPlanning
To: Ashley Vasquez
Subject: FW: Case # 3050-G
Date: Friday, April 30, 2021 10:29:50 AM

 
 

From: Mary Jo Lagoski <mjlagoski@yahoo.com> 
Sent: Friday, April 30, 2021 10:27 AM
To: CityPlanning <cityplanning@mail.ci.lubbock.tx.us>
Subject: Case # 3050-G
 
To Whom It May Concern-
 
    We are totally opposed to the variance requested by Lubbock Land Company.  The current proposed
plat shows multiple lots included which were not there when presented to Brooke Heights and the City.
 This addition of high density building directly across from our small neighborhood park will automatically
draw multiple families to usage without Brooke Heights obtaining HOA fees to maintain the park
equipment.
    In additon to this, the streets in the new plat have been changed without consideration to the water flow
during rain.  This brings a future drainage issue.  
    This is the second time we have seen Lubbock Land Company present and agree to one proposal,
only to have them change it at the last minute without consideration for the adjoining property.  
    Therefore, please consider denying the proposed variance request. Thank you.  
                                                                            Sincerely,
                                                                            Mike and Mary Jo Lagoski
                                                                            3910 126th Street
                                                                            Brooke Heights

mailto:cityplanning@mail.ci.lubbock.tx.us
mailto:AshleyVasquez@mail.ci.lubbock.tx.us


   
Regular City Council Meeting 8. 6.        
Meeting Date: 06/08/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning: Consider Ordinance No. 2021-O0068, for Zone Case 3431, a
request of Centerline Engineering & Consulting, LLC for 146th Street & Slide Road, Inc., for a zone
change from Transition (T) to General Retail District (C-3) with a Specific Use for Self-Storage Facilities,
at 14505 Slide Road, located east of Slide Road and north of 146th Street, on 17.320 acres of unplatted
land out of Block AK, Section 5. 

Item Summary
During the May, 25, 2021 City Council meeting, the Thoroughfare types listed in the Staff Report for this
item were questioned.  Staff researched the concern, and identified inconsistencies within the data fields
included in the GIS version of the Master Thoroughfare Plan map.  These items are being corrected by the
City of Lubbock GIS Department, and the Staff Report has been updated to identify the correct
Thoroughfare types.

On May 25, 2021, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance.

For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto. As noted in the report, staff recommends approval of the request. The Planning and Zoning
Commission heard this case on May 6, 2021, and recommended approval of the request by a unanimous
vote.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager
Planning and Zoning Commission 

Attachments
3431 Ordinance 
3431 Staff Report 
3431 Documentation 









C-3 Zone 

Description 

 

12.902 acres out of a 17.320 acre tract of land located in Section 5, Block AK, Lubbock County Texas, 
being the same as a tract described in Volume 4748, Page 130 of the Real Property Records of Lubbock 
County, Texas, being further described as follows; 

 

BEGINNING at a Point, being the same as the Southwest corner of Section 5, Block Ak, Lubbock County, 
Texas and also being the same as the Southwest corner of said 17.320 acre tract; 

 

THENCE North 0°00’18” East a distance of 398.00 feet to a point in the west line of said Section 5; 

 

THENCE South 89°57’00” East a distance of 734.50 feet to a point; 

 

THENCE North 0°00’18” East a distance of 262.00 feet to a point; 

 

THENCE South 89°57’00” East a distance of 408.65 feet to a point; 

 

THENCE South 0°00’18” West a distance of 660.00 feet to a point; 

 

THENCE North 89°57’00” West along the south line of said Section 5 to the POINT OF BEGINNING. 

 



C-3 Specific Use  

Description 

 

4.418 acres out of a 17.320 acre tract of land located in Section 5, Block AK, Lubbock County Texas, 
being the same as a tract described in Volume 4748, Page 130 of the Real Property Records of Lubbock 
County, Texas, being further described as follows; 

 

BEGINNING at a Point that bears North 0°00’18” East a distance of 660.00 feet from the Southwest 
corner of Section 5, Block AK, Lubbock County, Texas; 

 

THENCE South 89°57’00” East a distance of 734.50 feet to a point; 

 

THENCE South 0°00’18” West a distance of 262.00 feet to a point; 

 

THENCE North 89°57’00” West a distance of 734.50 feet to a point; 

 

THENCE North 0°00’18” East a distance of 262.00 feet along the west line of said Section 5 to the POINT 
OF BEGINNING. 



Page 1 of 2 
 

 
Planning Department 
City of Lubbock 
 

Staff Report  Zone Case 3431 
City Council Meeting   May 25, 2021 

 
Applicant Centerline Engineering & Consulting, LLC  
 
Property Owner  146th Street & Slide Road, Inc. 
  
Council District   5 
 
Recommendations   

• Staff recommends approval of this request. 
 
Prior Board or Council Action 

• March 12, 2019: This property was annexed through Ordinance No. 2019-O0030 and was zoned 
Transitional District (T).  

• May 6, 2021: The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of a zone change to General 
Retail District (C-3) with a Specific Use for Self-Storage Facilities by a vote of 5-0-0.  

 
Notification Summary   

• Notifications Sent: 12 
• Received In Favor: 0 
• Received In Opposition: 1 

 
Site Conditions and History 
The subject property was annexed in 2019 and is currently developed with a single family residence built in 1947. 
 
Adjacent Property Development  
The properties to the west and south of the subject property are outside of city limits and are sparsely developed 
with single family residences. The property to the north is zoned General Retail District (C-3) and is undeveloped. 
The properties to the northeast are zoned Single Family District with a Specific Use for Garden Homes and are 
also undeveloped. 
 
Zoning Request and Analysis 
Item Summary 
The subject property is addressed at 14505 Slide Road and is located north of 146th Street and east of Slide Road. 
The applicant requests a zone change for 17.32 acres of unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 5 from Transition 
(T) to General Retail District (C-3).  
 
Current zoning:  Transition (T)  
 
Requested zoning:  General Retail District (C-3) Specific Use for Self-Storage Facilities  
 
Intent Statements 
The intent of the proposed C-3 zoning is, “…to provide for general commercial uses which are medium activity 
centers in terms of generated traffic. Such districts should be adjacent to local or regional thoroughfares such 
as state or federal highways. Because of the commercial nature of the permitted uses, compatibility with 
adjacent residential areas should be considered.” 
 
The intent of the current T zoning is “…to protect existing and future development in newly annexed territory 
until the proper zone classification can be determined and established by zone change.”  



Page 2 of 2 

Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts 
The proposed zone change location is along Slide Road, which is designated as a Principal Arterial and 146th 
Street, which is designated as a Principal Arterial (Modified) by the Master Thoroughfare Plan. The current 
roadway network is capable of supporting the amount of traffic that General Retail District zoning generates.  
With no water lines existing in the immediate vicinity, water lines will need to be extended for fire suppression. 

Compatibility with Surrounding Property 
The proposed zoning is compatible with the surrounding area and will not change the character of the existing 
development. General Retail District (C-3) currently exists directly to the north of the subject property. 

Conformance with Comprehensive Plan Principles and Future Land Use Map 
The Future Land Use Plan designates the subject area as a “Retail Node” which includes “light commercial, 
retail, office, and mixed-use” development according to the comprehensive plan. The level of intensity in C-3 is 
appropriate for this area, and is compatible with both the Comprehensive Plan and Future Land Use Plan. 

Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 
The proposed zoning request is in conformance with the zoning ordinance and is appropriate adjacent to other 
residential and commercially zoned properties in the area.  

Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 
The property is well suited for the proposed use and may require additional public improvements to support the 
intensity of this use. 

Attachments A. Case Information
B. Thoroughfare Map
C. Notification Map
D. Aerial Map
E. Zoning Map
F. Future Land Use Map
G. Photos
H. Application and supporting documentation
I. Response Letters

Staff Contacts 
Bailey Shillings  Kristen Sager 
Planner  Planning and Zoning Manager 
Planning Department Planning Department 
806-775-3147 806-775-2109
bshillings@mylubbock.us ksager@mylubbock.us

mailto:bshillings@mylubbock.us
mailto:ksager@mylubbock.us


Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 1 of 2 
 

 

Case Information: Zone Case 3431 

 

Allowable Uses:   General Retail District (C-3) Specific Use for Self-Storage Facilities  

Transportation:  The proposed development has points of access from Slide Road and 146th Street.  

Thoroughfare Existing 
Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

Slide Road 
Principal Arterial, 

Partial 

R.O.W. 110 feet, one-lane, 
undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 110 feet, seven-
lane, undivided, paved 

146th Street 
Minor Arterial, 

Partial 

R.O.W. 110 Feet, one-lane, 
undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 110 feet, five-
lane, undivided, paved 

  

Engineering Comments:  There is no water in the area. Water will be needed for fire suppression. 

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments:  No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes 

 5.7  Case 3431: Centerline Engineering & Consulting, LLC for 146th Street & Slide Road, Inc. 

Request for a zone change to General Retail District (C-3) with a Specific Use for Self-Storage 

Facilities from Transition (T), at: 

• 14505 Slide Road, located east of Slide Road and north of 146th Street, on 17.320 acres 

of unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 5. 

PLANNER BAILEY SHILLINGS stated there were twelve (12) notifications sent out, with zero (0) returned 

in favor and one (1) returned in opposition. Staff shared the location with maps and pictures and discussed 

the surrounding area. Staff recommends approval of the request. 

APPLICANT PHILLIP TROUNG 8312 Upland Avenue advised he was available to answer any questions. 

BOARDMEMBER DAN WILSON asked the applicant how much of the parcel will be used for the self-

storage facility. Mr. Wilson also asked how Hugo Reed’s name ended up on the documentation for this 

case. Mr. Troung stated the survey was provided to them by their client. 

Public Hearing 

IN FAVOR MICHAEL POSTER 3110 Frankford stated Hugo Reed completed the survey, which is why their 

name was on the survey. 

https://z2codes.franklinlegal.net/franklin/Z2Browser2.html?showset=lubbockset&collection=lubbock&doccode=z2Code_z20001272


Zone Case 3431 
 

Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 2 of 2 
 

In the matter of Zone Case 3431 a motion was made by JAMES BELL seconded by JORDAN WHEATLEY to 

approve as presented and the Commission members voted 5 (in favor) to 0 (in opposition) to approve the 

motion. The item will be forwarded to City Council for consideration.  

 

 













3431 

 

  

Subject property at 14505 Slide Road. View to the north. 

View to the west directly across Slide Road. View to the south. 

  



Lubb6�k 
� TEXAS

Project Information 

Lubbock Planning Department 
PO Box 2000 / 1314 Avenue K 

Lubbock, TX 79457 
APPLICATION FOR ZONING CHANGE 

Location or Address: 14505 SLIDE RD, L_UBBOCK, TX 79424

Lots/Tracts:_2 _______________________________ _

survey & Abstract: Section 5, Block AK, Lubbock County, EL&RR RR CO. Abstrqct 163 

Metes and Bounds Attached: Yes 0 No □ 

Existing Land use: Farm Improvements 

Requested zoning: C-3 Specific Use & C3

Total Acreage of Reque�t:._1_7_. _3 _2 _0 _____ _ 

Existing zoning: Transitional

If property is not subdivided, will a preliminary plat be submitted? Yes □ 

Representative/ Agent Information (if different from owner) 

Firm Name: Centerline Engineering & Consulting LLC. 

Name: Phillip Truong

No □

Address: 8312 Upland Avenue City: Lubbock State: TX 
----

ZIP Code: 79424 Telephone: 806-4 70-8686 Email: survey@centerlineengineering.net ·

Applicant's Signature: j)� / ,u,µntT .. 
Date: 3/24/2021 Printed Name: Ph1ll1p Truong ----------------

Owner Information 

Firm Name: 146th Street & Slide Road INC

Owner: Michael Postar 

Address: 3110 Frankford Avenue City: Lubbock State: TX 
----------- ·-----

ZIP Code: 79407
-------

6-771-( 147 Email: postarmichael@gmail.com 
----+-..__ ______ _ 

Date: 

Preparer lnfor 

Preparer's Signature: ,P� / �� .. 
Date: 3/24/2021 Printed Name: Phil hp Truong 

. _____ ___;:_ __________

For City Use Only 

Zone Case No:. __________ _ Planning and Zoning Commission Date: ______ _ 

Request for zoning change from: ___________ To:. ____________ _ 
Lots: ______________ · Blocks: _________________ _ 

Addition: ---------------------------------
1 f you have any questions pertaining to the zoning process, please contact the City of Lubbock Planning Department 
by phone at (806) 775 - 2108 or by e-mail at cityplanning@mylubbock.us. 

789-6087

(Self Storage) & C3









   
Regular City Council Meeting 8. 7.        
Meeting Date: 06/08/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning: Consider Ordinance No. 2021-O0069, for Zone Case 3433, a
request of AMD Engineering, LLC for Baxter Trusts, for a zone change from Transition (T) to Restricted
Local Retail District (C-2A), generally located south of 114th Street and east of Memphis Avenue, on 7.84
acres of unplatted land out of Block E2, Section 22. 

Item Summary
On May 25, 2021, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance.

For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto. As noted in the report, staff recommends approval of the request. The Planning and Zoning
Commission heard this case on May 6, 2021, and recommended approval of the request by a unanimous
vote.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager
Planning and Zoning Commission 

Attachments
3433 Ordinance 
3433 Staff Report 
3433 Documentation 









 

AMD ENGINEERING, LLC

 
DESCRIPTION FOR A ZONING CHANGE REQUEST IN 

SECTION 22, BLOCK E2, 

LUBBOCK COUNTY, TEXAS 
 

(Sheet 1 of 2, Sketch of tract attached as Sheet 2) 

 
METES AND BOUNDS DESCRIPTION of a 7.84-acre tract of land located in Section 22, Block 

E2, Lubbock County, Texas, prepared for Zone Change Purposes only and being further 

described as follows: 
 

BEGINNING at a point for the southwest corner of said 7.84-acre tract, whence the northwest 

corner of plat limits of lots 1-40, Hatton Place, an addition (CCFN: 2016042417) bears N 88° 17’ 

04” W, a distance of 32.00 feet and  S 01° 47’ 28” W, a distance of 487.00 feet; 

 

THENCE S 88° 16’ 35” E an approximate distance of 549.10 feet; 

 

THENCE N 32° 21’ 34” E an approximate distance of 573.78 feet; 

 

THENCE S 88° 17’ 04” W an approximate distance of 805.40 feet; 

 

THENCE S 46° 45’ 12” W an approximate distance of 42.45 feet; 

 

THENCE S 01° 47’ 28” W an approximate distance of 70.00 feet; 

 

THENCE S 03° 53’ 28” W an approximate distance of 150.10 feet; 

 

THENCE S 01° 47’ 28” W an approximate distance of 243.58 feet to the Point of Beginning and 

containing approximately 7.84 acres. 

 

This description was prepared for purposes of a zoning request and does not represent a 

survey made upon the ground.  

 

Prepared for:  Baxter Trusts   

April 1, 2021 





Page 1 of 2 
 

 
Planning Department 
City of Lubbock 
 

Staff Report  Zone Case 3433 
City Council Meeting May 25, 2021 

 
Applicant AMD Engineering, LLC  
 
Property Owner  Baxter Trusts 
  
Council District   4 
 
Recommendations   

• Staff recommends Approval of this request. 
 
Prior Board or Council Action 

• January 14, 1999: This property was annexed through Ordinance No. 1999-O10117 and was zoned 
Transition District (T).  

• May 6, 2021 Zone Case 3433: Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of a zone change 
to Restricted Local Retail District (C-2A) from T by a vote of 5-0-0.  

 
Notification Summary   

• Notifications Sent: 7 
• Received In Favor: 3 
• Received In Opposition: 1 

 
Site Conditions and History 
The subject property was annexed in 1999 and has remained undeveloped. 
 
Adjacent Property Development  
The properties to the north, east, and south are zoned T and are currently developed with single family homes 
as well as Laura Bush Middle School to the southeast. The property to the west is zoned High Density Apartment 
District (A-2) and is currently being developed with apartments. 
 
Zoning Request and Analysis 
Item Summary 
The subject property is generally located south of 114th Street and east of Memphis Avenue. The applicant 
requests a zone change for 7.84 acres of unplatted land out of Block E2, Section 22 from T to Restricted Local 
Retail District (C-2A).  
 
Current zoning:  Transition (T)  
 
Requested zoning:  Restricted Local Retail District (C-2A) 
 
Intent Statements 
The intent of the proposed C-2A zoning is, “…to provide limited local retail and service commercial uses which 
serve one or several neighborhoods. Such districts may be located on existing shallow commercial centers 
adjacent to thoroughfares.” 
 
The intent of the current T zoning is “…to protect existing and future development in newly annexed territory 
until the proper zone classification can be determined and established by zone change.”  
 
 



Page 2 of 2 

Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts 
The proposed zone change location is along 114th Street, which is designated as a Minor Arterial and Memphis 
Avenue, which is designated as a Collector by the Master Thoroughfare Plan, 2018. The current roadway network 
is capable of supporting the amount of traffic that C-2A zoning generates. 

Compatibility with Surrounding Property 
The proposed zoning is compatible with the surrounding area and will not change the character of the existing 
development. High Density Apartments and commercial uses are near in proximity to the subject property. The 
permitted uses in C-2A would be a suitable addition to this area. The property is intended to be a mixture of 
garden office and restaurant uses. 

Conformance with Comprehensive Plan Principles and Future Land Use Map 
The Future Land Use Plan designates the subject area for “Low Density Residential” land uses; however, areas 
between major intersections are referred to as neighborhood centers and are “intended for lighter types of 
retail, low intensity office, residential, and Public/Semi-Public uses” according to the Comprehensive Plan. The 
level of intensity in C-2A is appropriate for this area, and is compatible with both the Comprehensive Plan and 
Future Land Use Plan. 

Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 
The proposed zoning request is in conformance with the zoning ordinance and is appropriate adjacent to other 
residential and commercially zoned properties in the area.  

Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 
The property is well suited for the proposed use of garden offices and restaurants and may require additional 
public improvements to support the intensity of the uses. 

Attachments 
A. Case Information
B. Thoroughfare Map
C. Notification Map
D. Aerial Map
E. Zoning Map
F. Future Land Use Map
G. Photos
H. Application and supporting documentation
I. Response Letters 

Staff Contacts 
Bailey Shillings  Kristen Sager 
Planner  Planning and Zoning Manager 
Planning Department Planning Department 
806-775-3147 806-775-2109
bshillings@mylubbock.us ksager@mylubbock.us

mailto:bshillings@mylubbock.us
mailto:ksager@mylubbock.us


Attachment A   Page 1 of 2 

Case Information: Zone Case 3433 

Allowable Uses: Restricted Local Retail District (C-2A) 

Transportation:  The proposed development has points of access from 114th Street and Memphis 

Avenue.  

Thoroughfare Existing 
Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

114th Street 
Minor Arterial, Partial 

R.O.W. 110 feet, one-lane, 
undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 110 feet, five-
lane, undivided, paved 

Memphis Avenue 
Collector, Partial 

R.O.W. 75 feet, one-lane, 
undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 75 feet, 3-lane, 
undivided, paved 

Engineering Comments:  No comments. 

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments: No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes 

5.9  Case 3433: AMD Engineering LLC for Baxter Trusts  

Request for a zone change to Restricted Local Retail District (C-2A) from Transition (T) at: 

• Generally located south of 114th Street and east of Memphis Avenue, on 7.84 acres of

unplatted land out of Block E2, Section 22.

PLANNER BAILEY SHILLINGS stated there were seven (7) notifications sent out, with three (3) returned in 

favor and one (1) in opposition. Staff shared the location with maps and pictures and discussed the 

surrounding area. Staff recommends approval of the request. 

APPLICANT WILL STEPHENS, AMD Engineering 6515 68th Street stated that staff did a great job and has 

nothing else to add. 

Public Hearing 

OPPOSITION THOMAS PAYNE 15309 FM 1730, Lubbock County, advised there were facts omitted from 

the presentation. The land across the street is under development as R-1 Single Family Residential to the 

north. The Future Land Use Plan is misleading, as it shows it designated for Parks. The subject property is 

located dead center between Indiana and Quaker on a Collector at the half section line. If the intended 

use is garden office and commercial, why did the applicant not spilt the designations? There is a slippery 

slope the Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council need to consider. He assumes the City does 

not want to see commercial all the way across the thoroughfare, but a lot of zone cases will follow this 

https://z2codes.franklinlegal.net/franklin/Z2Browser2.html?showset=lubbockset&collection=lubbock&doccode=z2Code_z20001240


Zone Case 3433 

Attachment A   Page 2 of 2 

one if it is approved, that will be even more righteous. The Comprehensive Plan does not recommend 

commercial here and people will use this case as a precedent for other cases. 

FAVOR DR.BOLKAR SAHINLER 5008 116th Street , advised he is trying to put a restaurant on the property 

and is available for questions. His home at Vicksburg and 114th looks right out to a developing office park. 

There is already commercial in the area, so why would it be an issue here? You have the same situation 

one mile down the street. His plan is to construct a restaurant and he already has a name and website for 

the restaurant. He is not sure if it will be garden offices or retail behind the restaurant.  

THOMAS PAYNE advised the property to the north was still the golf course when the Comprehensive Plan 

was adopted, but the preliminary plat was on file with the City. He does not think it is accurate to compare 

this to what is down the street near Slide Road, which is zoned AM and GO, which is not commercial 

zoning. 

BOARDMEMBER DAN WILSON advised on Indiana and Quaker it is mostly commercial, with some garden 

office and office warehouse. Some areas on 114th are already residential. At times there are concerns 

with commercial next to residential when there is not a buffer. If this case is approved, are we opening 

the door to any property along a thoroughfare next to residential, to become commercial? Are we as a 

City ok with that? If this could be used as a case for precedence, are we ok with that?  

BOARDMEMBER JORDAN WHEATLEY advised this is a unique case because of the drainage. No developer 

will be able to sell a house in this location, so he is trying to think of the best case scenario of what this 

corner could be used for. He is in favor of the request, because something needs to go there. James Bell 

agrees this is unique. 

BOARDMEMBER DAN WILSON advised the Commission is charged with determining what is the best use 

for any tract of land that comes to them. He is not opposed, but if they approve this as commercial, will 

they have other cases coming that will call this case the precedence? 

In the matter of Zone Case 3433 a motion was made by JORDAN WHEATLEY seconded by JAMES BELL to 

approve as presented and the Commission members voted 5 (in favor) to 0 (in opposition) to approve the 

motion. The item will be forwarded to City Council for consideration. 













3433 

 

  

Subject property view to the east. View to the north. 

View to the west directly across Memphis 
Avenue. 

View to the south. 

  



Will Stephens
Image

Will Stephens
Image

Will Stephens
Image















   
Regular City Council Meeting 8. 8.        
Meeting Date: 06/08/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 1st Reading - Planning: Consider a request for Zone Case 3432, a request of Dwain Lane for
Carolyn Lane Musgrave, for a zone change from Commercial District (C-4) and Local Retail District
(C-2) to (C-4) with a Specific Use for a Dance Hall, at 1801 19th Street, and 1904 and 1906 Avenue R,
located south of 19th Street and west of Avenue R, Lane Addition, Block 1, Lots 1, 2, 5, and 6, and
consider an ordinance.

Item Summary
On May 25, 2021, the City Council held a public hearing, and the first reading of the ordinance was
postponed to June 8, 2021. At the public hearing, the City Council inquired about the prior zone change to
C-2 on a portion of this property.  The prior zone change was initiated at the request of a City
Councilmember and included all properties fronting 19th Street between University and Avenue Q. The
minutes from the Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council meetings in which this prior zone
case was heard are attached.

For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto. As noted in the report, staff recommends approval of the request. The Planning and Zoning
Commission heard this case on May 6, 2021, and recommended approval of the request by a unanimous
vote.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager
Planning and Zoning Commission 

Attachments
Ordinance 3432 
Staff Report 3432 
Documentation 3432 
Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes - February 6, 2014 
City Council Minutes - February 27, 2014 
City Council Minutes - March 13, 2014 









Page 1 of 3 

Planning Department 
City of Lubbock 

Staff Report Zone Case 3432 
City Council Meeting May 25, 2021 

Applicant Dwain Lane 

Property Owner  Carolyn Lane Musgrave 

Council District  1 

Recommendations 
• Staff recommends approval.

Prior Board or Council Action 
• February 7, 1921: This property was annexed through Ordinance 197.
• March 13, 1941, Original Zoning Ordinance: This property was zoned Commercial District (District H) and

Two-Family District (District B).
• December 22, 1960, Zone Case 0884: This property was zoned Commercial District (C-4).
• March 13, 2014, Zone Case 3224: The northern section of this property was zoned Local Retail District

(C-2).
• May 6, 2021, Zone Case 3432: The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of a zone

change to C-4 with a Specific Use for a Dance Hall by a vote of 5-0-0.

Notification Summary 
• Notifications Sent: 25
• Received In Favor: 0
• Received In Opposition: 2

Additional Information Compiled Since the May 25, 2021 City Council Meeting 
The following table includes land uses that could potentially include the sale or consumption of alcohol for on 
and/or off premise consumption.   

Land-Uses That Could Include the Sale or Consumption of Alcohol 

Local Retail District (C-2) Commercial District (C-4) 
Permitted Uses Permitted Uses 

Drug Store Drug Store 
Grocery Store - greater than 3,000 s.f. but not greater 
than 35,000 s.f. 

Gasoline Service Station 

Restaurants Grocery Store 
Package Store - less than 8,750 s.f. Restaurants 

Package Store 
Microbrewery, microdistillery, or microwinery 
Wine, beer, or alcohol tasting facility 
Brewpub 

Conditional Uses Conditional Uses 
Brewpub 
Grocery Store - greater than 35,000 s.f. 
Microbrewery, microdistillery, or microwinery 
Package Store - greater than 8,750 s.f. 



Page 2 of 3 

Land-Uses That Could Include the Sale or Consumption of Alcohol (Continued) 

Local Retail District (C-2) Commercial District (C-4) 
Conditional Uses Conditional Uses 

Wine, beer, or alcohol tasting facility 
Specific Uses Specific Uses 

Self-service gasoline sales Commercial private clubs 
Game room, pool, billiard and/or domino parlors 
Nightclubs, bars or lounges 

A Lubbock Police Department call summary report has been included in the case backup.  This report includes 
calls to the addresses associated with this property from January 1, 2017 to May 27, 2021. 

Site Conditions and History 
The subject property was annexed in 1921 and was developed with a commercial building in 1941. The building 
was originally granted a certificate of occupancy as a café on January 10, 1942; and on February 6, 1974, the 
use of the building was changed to a public bar. On February 24, 1989, the bar was then turned into a game room 
and club.  

Adjacent Property Development  
The properties to the north, east and west are zoned C-2 and have been developed with commercial buildings. 
The property to the south is zoned C-4 and is developed with a parking lot.  

Zoning Request and Analysis 
Item Summary 
The subject property is addressed as 1801 19th Street and 1904 and 1906 Avenue R, and is located south of 19th 
Street and west of Avenue R. The applicant requests to rezone the subject property from C-2 and C-4 to C-4 with 
a Specific Use for a dance hall.  

Current zoning:  Local Retail District (C-2) and Commercial District (C-4) 

Requested zoning: Commercial District (C-4) with a Specific Use for a Dance Hall. 

Intent Statements 
The intent of the current C-2 zoning is “…to provide limited local retail and service commercial uses which serve 
one of several neighborhoods. Such districts may be located on existing thoroughfares or at the intersections of 
major thoroughfares.” 

The intent of the current and proposed C-4 zoning is “…to provide for heavy retail and wholesale commercial 
uses which serve a city-wide or regional area. Such districts should have frontage on regional thoroughfares such 
as state or federal highways. Because of the heavy commercial nature of the permitted uses, compatibility with 
adjacent residential areas should be carefully considered.” 

The intent of the proposed Specific Use zoning is “…to provide for design and land use flexibility in the various 
districts. This district provides for variations in the land use standards within the [zoning] ordinance, provided 
the intent, principles, and innovations of modern urban planning and design are used.” 

Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts 
The proposed rezoning location is along 19th Street and Avenue R. 19th Street is designated as Minor Arterial by 
the Master Thoroughfare Plan, 2018, and Avenue R is designated as a Local street. Minor Arterial roads are 
designed for a higher intensity of traffic, and Local streets are designed for medium volumes of vehicles operating 
at lower speeds and provide access and movement within residential, commercial, and industrial areas 
(Comprehensive Plan, page 87). The proposed rezoning will be suitable for these types of roads.  



Page 3 of 3 
 

 
Compatibility with Surrounding Property 
The proposed zoning is compatible with the surrounding area and will not change the character of the existing 
development.  
 
Conformance with Comprehensive Plan Principles and Future Land Use Map 
The principles outlined in the Comprehensive Plan designate this area for “Commercial/Light Retail”. The level 
of intensity for a dance hall is appropriate for this area, and C-4 would conform to the Comprehensive Plan 
principles and Future Land Use Plan.  
 
Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 
The proposed zoning request is in conformance with the zoning ordinance and is appropriate adjacent to other 
commercial uses that are already established. The existing building was used as a club and game room 
(Crossroads) until 2017; but according to the owner, it began its use as a venue (Stiletto’s) in 2019 and therefore 
it lost its nonconforming status as a bar/nightclub due to there being no alcohol sales for over a year. It appears 
that it was allowed to continue as a similar use when the current tenants occupied the building, and so the 
building still retains its nonconforming status as a dance hall today. Dance halls do not permit the sale of alcohol 
as an incidental use, and therefore this request would bring the use of the building into conformance with the 
zoning ordinances.  
 
Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 
The property is suitable for the proposed uses and will not need additional public improvements to support the 
intensity of uses described in the C-4 zoning districts, or for the Specific Use of a Dance Hall. 
 
Attachments 

A. Case Information 
B. Thoroughfare Plan Map 
C. Notification Map 
D. Aerial Map 
E. Zoning Map 
F. Future Land Use Map 
G. Photos 
H. Application and supporting documents 
I. Notification Response Letters 
J. LPD Call Summary 01/01/2017 – 05/27/2021 

 
Staff Contacts 
Jacob Hawkins    Kristen Sager 
Planner     Planning and Zoning Manager 
Planning Department   Planning Department 
806-775-2096    806-775-2109 
jhawkins@mylubbock.us   ksager@mylubbock.us 

mailto:jhawkins@mylubbock.us
mailto:ksager@mylubbock.us


Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 1 of 2 
 

 

Case Information: Zone Case 3432 

 

Allowable Uses:   Commercial District (C-4) 

Transportation:  The proposed development has points of access from 19th Street and Avenue R.   

Thoroughfare Existing 
Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

19th Street 
Minor Arterial, 

Completed 

R.O.W. 88 feet, five-lane, 
undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 100 feet, five-
lane, undivided, paved 

Avenue R 
Local, Completed 

R.O.W. 50 feet, two-lane, 
undivided, paved 

Two-lane, undivided, 
paved  

  

Engineering Comments:  No comments. 

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments:  No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes 

 5.8  Case 3432: Dwain Lane for Carolyn Lane Musgrave 

Request for a zone change from Commercial District (C-4) and Local Retail District (C-2) to C-4 

with a Specific Use for a Dance Hall, at: 

• 1801 19th Street and 1904 and 1906 Avenue R, located south of 19th Street and west of 

Avenue R, Lane Addition, Block 1, Lots 1, 2, 5, and 6. 

PLANNER JACOB HAWKINS stated there were twenty-five (25) notifications sent out, with zero (0) 

returned in favor and two (2) in opposition, stating concerns about a possible increase in violence, the 

close proximity to Lubbock High School, and the potential to devalue the neighborhood. Staff shared the 

location with maps and pictures and discussed the surrounding area. Staff recommends approval of the 

request. 

CHAIR ZACH SAWYER asked how long the property has been a dance hall. Mr. Hawkins stated it has been 

Stiletto’s Dance Hall since 2019, but deferred to the applicant to explain further.  

APPLICANT DWAIN LANE 18810 FM 1730 co-owner of the property advised it has been operating for over 

40 years as a bar. First was it was Town Draw, then Crossroads, but was shut down in 2019. At that time 

he took over the property again. The building was in disrepair, there was trash, weeds, people driving 

across the property, and homeless people breaking into the building often. Now he has a lease with Sandra 

who cleaned it up, erected a fence, repaired the roof, and spent a lot of time and money on it, but could 

not do anything with it for a year because of COVID. When she went to get a Certificate of Occupancy, she 

https://z2codes.franklinlegal.net/franklin/Z2Browser2.html?showset=lubbockset&collection=lubbock&doccode=z2Code_z20001395


Zone Case 3432 
 

Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 2 of 2 
 

was told it was not zoned correctly. That is what has brought them in front of the board today to get the 

correct zoning for them to open as an event center.  

Public Hearing 

No one spoke in favor or in opposition to the request.  

BOARDMEMBER DAN WILSON asked for clarification on the required zoning for an event center. Mrs. 

Sager answered it is C-4 Specific Use for a Dance Hall, as the Code does not call out event center. 

In the matter of Zone Case 3432 a motion was made by DAN WILSON seconded by JAMES BELL to approve as 

presented and the Commission members voted 5 (in favor) to 0 (in opposition) to approve the motion. The item 

will be forwarded to City Council for consideration.  





19TH     ST

PZC Mailout 
Notifications Received

³
Legend

Mailout Buffer 3432
Notification Result

In Favor
No Feedback
Opposed

0 110 22055 Feet
Date: 5/6/2021

Created by Planning Department









3432 
 
 

 

View of subject property. View south. View of adjacent property. View east. 
 
 

 

 

View of adjacent property. View west. View of adjacent property. View north. 









Call Type Codes  

 

15 – civil disturbance  

16 – domestic disturbance  

46 – assist motorist 

50 – traffic accident  

57 – hit and run  

500 – burglary 

800 – alarm down  

808 – check subject  

1400 – criminal mischief  

SS – subject stop 

1400 – criminal mischief  

F32 – Fire Department call 

F32E – Fire Department call 

CVC – coronavirus count  

 

 

  

 



Call summary for: 01/01/2017 - 05/27/2021

Output for: 103776

Click on heading to change sort order.
Seq#
IncName

Pri Type Zone Area Unit From To Location

[3/01/17]
#P170300180 3 808 Z2 003B 1124 11:10 11:34 CROSSROADS CLUB, LU 
[3/07/17]
#P170303766 2 16 Z2 003B 1127 10:13 11:26 CROSSROADS CLUB, LU 
#F170300723 1A F32 CITY 003B 10:16 10:17 CROSSROADS CLUB, LU 
[4/05/17]
#P170402778 3 SS Z2 003B 1125 11:29 11:42 CROSSROADS CLUB, LU 
#F170400460 1A F32 CITY 003B E1 11:29 11:39 CROSSROADS CLUB, LU 
#F170400461 1A F32 CITY 003B 11:30 11:31 CROSSROADS CLUB, LU 
#F170400462 1A F32E CITY 003B 11:30 11:32 CROSSROADS CLUB, LU 
[4/15/17]
#P170409712 3 808 Z2 003B 2124 19:31 20:25 CROSSROADS CLUB, LU 
[5/09/17]
#P170505192 3 50 LISD 003B 5L47 08:35 09:09 1801 19TH ST, LU 
[8/28/17]
#P170817988 3 808 Z2 003B 1266 09:20 09:57 CROSSROADS CLUB, LU 
[10/29/17]
#P171017061 2 800 Z2 003B 2122 01:20 01:31 CROSSROADS CLUB, LU 
[2/16/18]
#P180212008 2 800 Z2 003B 1121 12:18 12:20 CROSSROADS CLUB, LU 
[3/28/18]
#P180322671 4 46 Z2 003B 1126 12:47 14:25 CROSSROADS CLUB, LU 
[4/30/18]
#P180424553 2 15 Z2 003B 2123 22:52 23:13 CROSSROADS CLUB, LU 
[5/26/18]
#P180521108 4 500 Z2 003B 1123 14:34 14:46 CROSSROADS CLUB, LU 
[9/12/18]
#P180907320 4 1400 Z2 003B 1124 13:39 14:13 CROSSROADS CLUB, LU 
[6/17/19]
#F190601907 1A F32 CITY 003B 11:24 11:27 CROSSROADS CLUB, LU 
[3/06/20]
#P200303779 2 15 Z3 003B 31D1 11:12 11:51 1801 19TH ST, LU 
[3/07/20]
#P200304739 3 57 Z3 003B 32A2 19:13 01:27 1801 19TH ST, LU 
[6/27/20]
#P200618366 3 CVC Z3 003B 32B3 21:54 22:24 1801 19TH ST, LU 

Page 1 of 1CAD/Ti

5/27/2021http://newlubbweb/Prd793/Html/SystemDocs/CADInterface.aspx?_CMD=IHQ&QQQ=&...




























































	Agenda
	3.03.__Board Appointments - Executive Session
	6.01.__Minutes - April 20, 2021, Special May 11, 2021
	       ATT_4.20.2021 S EUB
	       ATT_5.11.2021
	7.01.__Budget Amendment 25
	       ATT_Ordinance
	7.02.__Budget Amendment 26
	       ATT_Ordinance
	7.03.__Budget Amendment 27
	       ATT_Ordinance
	       ATT_Exhibit A
	       ATT_Exhibit B
	7.04.__Budget Amendment 30
	       ATT_Ordinance
	7.05.__Budget Amendment 31
	       ATT_Ordinance
	7.06.__Budget Amendment 32
	       ATT_Ordinance
	7.07.__Budget Amendment 33
	       ATT_Ordinance
	7.08.__Budget Amendment 34
	       ATT_Ordinance
	7.09.__ROW - Alley Closure in Block 1, Hewett Addition
	       ATT_ROW Abandon and Close 15-foot Alley,Hewett Addition
	       ATT_Exhibit A -Closure of a 15-foot Alley - Block 1 Hewett Addition 
	7.10.__ROW - Easement, Section 7 Block JS 
	       ATT_Ordinance - Closure  a Portion of a Drainage Easements - Section 7 Block JS
	       ATT_Exhibit A -Closure  a Portion of a Drainage Easements - Section 7 Block JS
	7.11.__Easement - LP&L to Oncor
	       ATT_LPandL Resolution - Easement and ROW to Oncor
	       ATT_Easement and Right-of-Way to Oncor Electric Delivery
	7.12.__ROW - Street Use License, Cooper ISD 
	       ATT_Resolution - Street Use License Lubbock Cooper ISD - ROW University 
	       ATT_Street Use License Lubbock Cooper ISD - ROW University 
	       ATT_Exhibit A - Lubbock Cooper ISD - ROW University
	7.13.__ROW - SUL, 1109 Broadway Ave 
	       ATT_Resolution - SUL - 2 Sparks and Co and Burklee Hill Vineyard - 
	       ATT_ Street Use License - 2 Sparks and Company and Burklee Hill Vineyard 
	       ATT_Exhibit A - SUL- 2 Sparks and Company and Burklee Hill Vineyard 
	7.14.__Unpaved Roads Improvements Phase 3 - Contract 15826
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Construction Contract 
	       ATT_Location Exhibit 
	       ATT_Budget Detail
	       ATT_CIP Detail
	       ATT_Project Summary Sheet
	7.15.__13th and Texas Paving Project
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Contract
	       ATT_Budget Detail
	       ATT_Project Summary
	       ATT_CIP Detail
	7.16.__HDR-Amendment No. 1 - Dam Inspection
	       ATT_Resolution- HDR-DamInspect-A1
	       ATT_Contract-HDR-DamInspect-A1
	       ATT_CIP Detail
	       ATT_CIP 8543 Budget Detail
	7.17.__SafeRide Contract for NEMT Services
	       ATT_SafeRide Resolution
	       ATT_SafeRide Contract 6-21
	       ATT_SafeRide Amendment (c)
	       ATT_SafeRide Memo of Ratification
	7.18.__LP&L Ordinance - Update Fee Structure
	       ATT_City Council Ordinance Amendment
	7.19.__ROW Closure - 2021 IRONMAN 70.3
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_IRONMAN 70.3 2021 TxDOT Agreement
	AGREEMENT FOR THE TEMPORARY CLOSURE
	W I T N E S S E T H
	A G R E E M E N T


	       ATT_IRONMAN Host Venue Agreement
	7.20.__Hacker Stephens LLP - Legal Services
	       ATT_Resolution - Hacker Stephens LLP
	       ATT_Engagement Letter - Hacker Stephens LLP
	       ATT_Amendment - Hacker Stephens LLP Agreement
	7.21.__Palisade Pipeline
	       ATT_Resolution
	8.01.__Zone Case 1788-F
	       ATT_Ordinance 1788-F
	       ATT_Staff Report 1788-F
	       ATT_Documentation 1788-F
	1788-F Staff Report
	1788-F Case Information
	1788f_1locator
	1788f_2imag
	1788f_3zoning
	1788f_4flup
	1788-F Photos
	1788-F Application

	8.02.__Zone Case 2909-E
	       ATT_2909-E Ordinance
	       ATT_2909-E Staff Report
	       ATT_2909-E Documentation
	8.03.__Zone Case 2984-M
	       ATT_2984-M Ordinance
	       ATT_2984-M Staff Report
	       ATT_2984-M Documentation
	2984-M Staff Report
	2984-M Case Information
	2984m_1locator
	2984m_2imag
	2984m_3zoning
	2984m_4flup
	2984-M Photos
	2984-M Application
	Zoning Application - Signed
	Commercial Description
	R-2 Zone Description


	8.04.__Zone Case 2985-C
	       ATT_2985-C Ordinance
	       ATT_2985-C Staff Report
	       ATT_2985-C Documentation
	8.05.__Zone Case 3050-G
	       ATT_3050-G Ordinance
	       ATT_3050-G Staff Report
	       ATT_3050-G Documentation
	8.06.__Zone Case 3431
	       ATT_3431 Ordinance
	       ATT_3431 Staff Report
	       ATT_3431 Documentation
	5.7 Zone Case 3431 - Documentation.pdf
	Zone Case 3431 - Case information
	3431_1locator
	Notification Map
	3431_2imag
	3431_3zoning
	3431_4flup
	Zone Case 3431 - Photos
	Zone Case 3431 - Application
	Application for Zone Change
	C-3 Description
	C-3 Specific Use Description

	Zone Case 3431 - Zone Exhibit
	Sheets and Views
	11x17



	146TH & SLIDE-Proposed Site Plan03.20.2021
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	5.7 Zone Case 3431 - Documentation
	3431 Reply 1.pdf


	8.07.__Zone Case 3433
	       ATT_3433 Ordinance
	       ATT_3433 Staff Report
	       ATT_3433 Documentation
	5.9 Zone Case 3433 Documentation.pdf
	Zone Case 3433 - Case Information
	3433_1locator

	Notification Map
	5.9 Zone Case 3433 Documentation
	3433_2imag
	3433_3zoning
	3433_4flup
	Zone Case 3433 - Photos
	Zone Case 3433 - Application
	Graphic model
	22116-BASEPLAN
	Reply 1.pdf
	Reply 2
	Reply 3
	Reply 4


	8.08.__Zone Case 3432
	       ATT_Ordinance 3432
	       ATT_Staff Report 3432
	       ATT_Documentation 3432
	3432 Staff Report
	3432 Case Information
	3432_1locator
	3432_2imag
	3432_3zoning
	3432_4flup
	3432 Photos
	3432 Application

	       ATT_Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes - February 6, 2014
	       ATT_City Council Minutes - February 27, 2014
	       ATT_City Council Minutes - March 13, 2014

